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22 August 2007

Securities and Exchange Commission
Division of Corporation Finance

Office of International Corporate Finance
100 F Street, N.E.

Room 3616A .
Washington DE 20549 E7SU ? P L
USA L 8

-

DEPFA File number: 082-34794
Dear Sirs,
Please find enclosed documents for filing from DEPFA BANK plc. for Q2 2007.

We enclose also a list of the documents and you should find that the documents
themselves adhere to the order of this list.

Yours faithfully,
l’\-t’( ( o%ﬁ(‘&
Hilary Costell

Legal Department
DEPFA BANK plc

PROCESSED

AUG 2 9 2097

THOMSON
FINANCIAL

A

DEPFA BANK plc

1 Commons Street
Dublin 1, ireland

Phone: +353 1 792 2222
Fax:  +353 17922211
info@depfa.com
www.depfa.com

Company Secretary:
Elaine Tiernan
Registered in lreland
Company no. 348619
VAT no. IEB368819N

Board of Directors: G. Bruckermann, Dr. R. Brantner,
Prof, Dr, A, Hemmelrath, Dr. T. M. Kolbeck, H. W. Reich,
Prof. Dr. Dr. h.c. mult. H. Tietmeyer (all German),

J. Poos (Lux}, D. M. Cahillane, M. O'Connell {both Irish)



r“‘?"ll‘-

DEPFA BANK plc R 4 D
FILINGS WITH THE IRISH STOCK EXCHANGE ' *' -0 2y A oo
Made in accordance with the listing rules of the Irish Stock Exchange : r o £
L',I‘f‘)(jk‘;‘_; i
: Date Document
2 April 2007 Final Terms for the series 1080 issue TRY 100,000,000
Fixed Rate Instruments due 2 April 2008 under the
€40,000,000,000 Programme for the issuance of Debt
Instruments (ISIN XS80293272208)

4 April 2007 Final Terms for the series 1071 issue EUR 4,266,000 Index
Linked Interest Note due 4 October 2007 under the
€40,000,000,000 Programme for the issuance of Debt
Instruments (ISIN XS028%648890)

11 April 2007 Final Terms for the series 1047 issue ZAR 1,250,000,000
8.75% notes due 24 July 2008 under the €40,000,000,000
Programme for the issuance of Debt Instruments.(ISIN

X50282504017)

12 April 2007 Final Terms for the series 1081 issue ISK 3,000,000,000
Fixed Rate Instruments due 15 April 2008 under the
€40,000,000,000 Programme for the issuance of Debt
Instruments (ISIN X80293841002)

19 April 2007 Final Terms for the series 1084 issue EUR 5,250,000 Index
Linked Callable Instruments due April 2017 under the
€40,000,000,000 Programme for the issuance of Debt
Instruments (ISIN X80295348451)

30 April 2007 Final Terms for the series 1092 issue AUD 70,000,000
6.65% fixed rate instruments due 30 October 2008 under
the €40,000,000,000 Programme for the issuance of Debt
Instruments (ISIN XS0298031450)

7 May 2007 ‘Final Terms for the series 1093 issue EUR 2,619,000 Daily
Range Accrual notes due 7 May 2008 under the
€40,000,000,000 Programme for the issuance of Debt
Instruments (ISIN XS0298348730)

9 May 2007 Final Terms for the series 1088 issue RON 200,000,000
' Fixed Rate Instruments due 9 May 2012 under the

€40,000,000,000 Programme for the issuance of Debt
Instruments (ISIN XS0296421414)

14 May 2007 Final Terms for the series 1089 issue EUR 5,000,000 Fixed

' Rate notes due 14 May 2017 under the €40,000,000,000

Programme for the issuance of Debt Instruments (ISIN
XS50297115692)



31 May 2007 Final Terms for the series 1098 issue EUR 20,000,000
notes due 31 May 2010 under the €40,000,000,000
Programme for the issuance of Debt Instruments (ISIN
X80299580844)

FILINGS WITH THE COMPANIES REGISTRATION OFFICE AND
DOCUMENTATION SENT TO SHAREHOLDERS
Made in accordance with the Irish Companies Acts 1963-2005

Date Filed Document
20 April 2007 Form B10 - Change in Director
20 April 2007 Special Resolution — Amendments to Articles of
Association
COMPANY RELEASES

Made in accordance with the listing rules of the Frankfurt Stock Exchange and under
German Securities Law

Date Document
12 April 2007 Press and Investor Relations Release
25 April 2007 Press and Investor Relations Release
2 May 2007 Ad Hoc Statement
2 May 2007 Press and Investor Relations Release
24 May 2007 Press and Investor Relations Release
30 June 2007 Annual Report
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Final Terms dated 26 March 2007

DEPFA BANK ple

Issue of TRY 100,000,000 Fixed Rate Tnstruments due 2 April 2008 under the

EUR 40,000,000,000 Programme for the Issuance of Debt Instruments of
DEPFA BANK plc
DEPFA DEUTSCHE PFANDBRIEFBANK AG
DEPFA ACS BANK

PART A— CONTRACTUAL TERMS

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions set
forth in the Prospectus dated 30 June 2006 which constitute a hase prospectus for the purposes
of the Prospectus Directive (Directive 2003/71/EC) (the "Prospectus Directive”). This
document constitutes the Final Terms of the lostruments described herein for the purposes of
Article 5.4 of the Prospectus Directive and must be read in conjunction with such Prospectus.
Full information on the [ssuer and the offer of the Instruments is only available on the basis of
the combination of these Final Terms and the Prospectus. The Prospectus is available for
viewing at DBPFA BANK ple, 1 Commons Street, Dublin 1, freland and at
www.financialregiator.ie and copies may be obtained from DEPFA BANK plc; 1 Commons
Street, Dublin 1, Ireland. No website referred to in these Final Terms and the Prospectus forms
part of these Final Terms and the Prospectus. C

1. Tssuer: DEPFA BANK plc
2. Series Number; 1080
3. Specified Currency or Currencies: New Turkish Lira ("TRY")}
4,  Agegregate Nominal Amount: TRY 100,000,000
5. lssue Price: : 100.423 per cent. of the Aggregate
Nominal Amount
6.  Specified Denominations: TRY 2,000.
7. (@) Tssue Date: 2 April 2007
(i) Interest Commencernent Date 2 April 2007
8. Maturity Date: 2 April 2008
9.  Interest Basis: 19.00 per.ccnt. Fixed Rate.
10. Redemptionf?&‘yment Basis: Redemption at par




11.  Change of imerest or Redemption/Payment
Basis:

12.  Put/Cail Options:

13. ) Status of the Instruments:
(ii) Date Board approval for issuance
of Instruments cbtained:

14,  Method of distribution:

Not Applicable

Not Applicable
Senior Unsubordinated and unsecured

Not Applicable

Nen-syndicated

PROVISIONS RELATING TO INTEREST (IF ANY) PAYABLE

15. Fixed Rate Instrument Provisions

4] Rare of Interest:

(ii) Ipterest Payment Date(s):

(i) Fixed Coupon Amount(s);

(iv) Broken Amount(s):
{v) Day Count Fraction:

{vi) Other terms relating to the
method of calculating interest for
Fixed Rate Instruneats:

16. Floating Rate Instrument Provisions
17.  Zero Coupon Instrument Provisions

19. Dual Currency Instrument Provisions

PROVISIONS RELATING TO REDEMPTION

20,  Call Option

21, Put Option

Applicable

19.00 per cent. per annum payable annually
in arrear

2 April 2008

TRY 380 per TRY 2,000 in Nominal
Amount

Not Applicable
Actual/Actual ICMA

Not Applicable

Not Applicable
Naot Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO THE INSTRUMENTS

22. Final Redemption Amount of each
Instrument

23. Early Redemption Amount

TRY 2,000 per lnstrument of TRY 2,000
Specified Denomination

LI SVIRE A
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Early Redemption Amoum(s) of each
Instruinent payable on redemption for
taxation reasons or on event of default or
other early redemption and/or the method
of calculating the same (if required or if
different from that set out in the
Conditions):

As set out in Condition 10(b) and 13(b}

GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO THE INSTRUMENTS

24,

25,
26.

27.

28,

29.

Farm of lastruments:

New Global Instrument:

Additional Financial Centre(s) or other
special provisions relating to Payment
Dates:

Talons for furure Coupons or Receipts to
be attached to Definitive Bearer
Instruments (and dates on which such
Talons mature):

Details relating to Partly Paid Instruments:

Details relating to Lnstalment Instruments:
amount of cach instalment, date on which
¢ach payment is to be made:

Redenomination, renominalisation and
reconventioning provisions:

Consolidation provisions:
Other final terms:

If non-syndicated, name and address of
Dealer:

Bearer Tnstruments:

Permanent Globa) Instrument
exchangeable for Definitive Instruments in
the limited circumstances specified in the
Permanent Global Instrument

No

London, Istanbul, TARGET
No

Not Applicable

N.ot Applicable

Not Applicable

The provisions in Condition 19 apply
Not Applicable

The Toronto-Dominjon Bank ("Dealer")
Triton Court

|4/18 Finsbury Square

London EC2A 1DB

)




34,

33

Total commission and concession:

Additional selling restrictions:

Selling Concession of 0.875 per cent, of
the Aggregate Nominal Amount.

Combined Management and Underwriting
Commission of 0.125 per cent. of the
Agpregate Nominal Amount,

As set out under "Subscription and Sale” in
the Prospectus, except that TEFRA C shall
apply for the United States of America and
the following additional selling restriction
shall appiy:

Turkey

The Dealer has represented and agreed that
the Notes have not been, and will not be,

. registered with the Turkish Capital Markets

Board (“CMB™) under the provisions of
Law No, 2499 of the Republic of Turkey
relating to capital markets (the. “Capital
Markets Law™).

The Dealer has represented and agreed that
neither the Prospectus nor any other
offering material related to the offering will
be utilised in connection with any general
offering to the public within the Republic
of Turkey for the purpose of the sale of the
Notes (or beneficial interests theréin)
without the prior approva) of CMB,

The Dealer has represented and agreed that
it has not sold or caused to be sold, and
will not sell or cause to be seld, outside
Turkey, the Notes (or beneficial interests
therein} to residents of Turkey, unless such
sale is authorised pursuant to Article
15(d)ii} of Degree 32 (as amended from
time to time) and the CMB regulations,

Ten W2,

PP L B




PART B - OTHER INFORMATION

LISTING

(i) Listing: Irish Stock Exchange

(i) Admission to trading: Application has been made for the Instruments to be
admitted to trading on the lrish Stock Exchange
with effect fram 2 April 2007,

RATINGS

Ratings: ) Not Applicable

NOTIFICATION

The Trish Financial Regulator (FR) has provided AFM (Autoniteit Financitle Mérktcn)
{the Netherlands); The UK Listing Authority {United Kingdom) (the Financlal Services
Authority, acting as competent authority for listing); BeFin (Bundesanstelt fir
Finanzdienstleistungsaufsicht) {Germany); CSSF (Comrhission de Surveillance du
Secteur Financier) (Luxembourg); Comisién Nacional de Mercado de Valores (CNMV)
(Spain), Commissione Nazionale per le Societa ¢ la Borsa (CONSOB) (ltaly), Autorité
des Merchés Financiers (AMF) (France), Finanstilsynet {(Demnark); Comision Bancaire,
Financiere ¢t des Assurances (Belgium); and FMA. Finanzmarktaufsichtsbehiirde
{Austria) with a cenificate of approval attesting that the Prospectus has been drawn up in
accordance with the Prospectus Directive. )

INTERESTS OF NATURAL AND LEGAL PERSONS INVOLVED IN THE
ISSUE

Save as discussed in "Subscription and Sale", so far as the Issuer is aware, no person
involved in the offer of the [nstruments has an interest material to the offer,

ESTIMATED NET PROCEEDS
) Estimated net proceeds: TRY 99,405,000

()  Estimate of tota] expenses TRY 20,000
related to the admission to
trading:

FIXED RATE INSTRUMENTS ONLY - YIELD

Indication of yieid: 18.499 per cent




The yield is calculated at the Issue Date on the basis
of the Issue Price. Tt is not an indication of future
yield,

7. OPERATIONAL INFORMATION
1SIN Code: . XS50293272208
Common Code: 029327220

German Securitiecs  Code AOLPBE
{WKNY _

New Global Instrument intended Not Applicable
to be held in 2 manner which

would allow  Eurosystem

eligibility:

Any clearing system(s) other Not Applicable
than Euroclear Bank S.A/N.V.
and Clearstream  Banking,

société  anonyme and the

relevant identification

number(s):

Delivery: Delivery against payment

Fiscal Agent: Deutsche Bank AG, London Branch

Names and addresses of Not Applicable
additional Paying Agent(s) (if
any):

Tradeable Amounts: Not Applicable

LISTING AND ADMISSION TO, TRADING APPLICATION

These Final Terms comprise the final terms required 1o list and have admitted to trading the
issue of Instruments described herein pursuant to the EUR 40,000,000,000 Programme for the
[ssuance of Debt Instruments of DEPFA BANK plc, DEPFA DEUTSCHE
PFANDBRIEFBANK AG and DEPFA ACS BANK.
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RESPONSIBILITY

The Issuer accepts responsibility for the information contained in' these Final Terms.
Signed oo behalf of the Issuer:

By:

..................

Duly authorised Q\\‘\\q (::ASQ%‘AQ"

Philip Cotscadden
Associate

Depfa Bank Pic

e

Barry Stoneham
Managing Direclor

- DEPFA BANK Plg

e .
P Y




Final Terms dated 29* March 2007

DEPFA BANK plc
DEPFA DEUTSCHE PFANDBRIEFBANK AG
DEPFA ACS BANK
Issue of EUR 4,266,000 Index Linked Interest Note
under the €40,000,000,000 Programme for the Issuance of Debt Instruments

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions

set forth in the Prospectus dated 30 June 2006 which constitute a base prospectys for the
purposes of the Prospectus Directive (Directive 2003/71/EC) (the "Prospectus Dircctive®).
This document constitutes the Final Terms of the Instruments described herein for the )
purposes of Article 5.4 of the Prospectus Directive and must be read in conjunction with such
Prospectus. Full information on the Issuer and the offer of the Instruments is only available

on the basis of the combination of these Final Terms and the Prospectus. The Prospectus is
available for viewing at DEPFA BANK plc, | Commons Street, Dublin I, Treland and website
www . financialregulator.ie and copies may be obtained from address. 1 Commons Street,,
Dublin 1, '

PART A - CONTRACTUAL TERMS
1. ()] [ssuer: DEPFA BANK PLC
2. D] Series Number: 1071

[(i} Tranche Number: (If fungible |
with an existfng Series, details of
that Series, including the date on
which the Instruments become

fungible).)
3.  Specified Cumrency or Currencies: EUR
4, Aggrogate Nominal Amount: EUR 4,266,000
[(i)] Series: EUR 4,266,000
[(i))  Trauche: EUR 4,266,000
5.  Issue Price: ) 100 per cent of the Aggregate Nominal

Amount.




6.  Specified Denominations:
7. D] lIssue Date:

[(ii)} Interest Commencement Date
8. Maturity Date:

9.  Interest Basis;

10. Redemption/Payment Basis:

il. Change of Interest or Redemption/Payment
Basis!

12, Put/Call Options:

13. [(] Status of the [nstruments:

14.  Maethod of distribution:

EUR 1,000

4" April 2007

Not Applicable

4" October 2007

Index Linked Interest

(further particulars specified below)
Redemption at par

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Senior, Unsecured,Unsubordinated

Nen-syndicated

PROVISIONS RELATING TO INTEREST (IF ANY) PAYABLE

15. Fixed Rate Instrument Provisions
16.  Floating Rate Instrument Provisions
17. Zero Coupon Instrument Provisions

18. Index-Linked Interest Instrument/other
variable-linked interest Instrument
Provisions

{i - Index/Formula/other variable:

(ii)Calculation Agent responsible
for calculating the interest due

(iii) Provisions for determining

Coupen where calculated by -

reference to Index and/or Formula
and/er other variable

Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Applicable

425%*n/N

Banco Santander Central Hispano,S.A.

“n” means the number of days in the
Observation Period that the Index is equal
to or above the Lower Level of the Range
and equal to or below the Upper Level of
the Range;




W)

(vi)
(vii)
(viii)

(0
(x)

{iv) Determination Date(s)

Provisions  for  determining
Coupon  where calculation by
reference to Index and/or Formula
and/or  other  variable s
impossible or impracticable or
otherwise disrupted:

Interest or calculation period(s):
Specified Interest Payment Dates:

Business Day Convention:

Additional Business Centre{s):

Minimum Rate/Amount of

[nterest:

“Index” wmeans the EUR-EURIBOR-
Reuters with a Designated Maturity of 12
months, as those terms are defined in the
2006 ISDA  Definitions, with the
modification that the words “on the day
that is two Target Settlement. Days
preceding thal Reset Date” shall be
replaced by “on that Reset Date™, where
Reset Date means cach day comprised in
the Observation Period. For those days
which are not Business Day, the Index
shall be equal to that of the immediately
preceding Business Day..

Upper Level of the Range: 4.25%
Lower Level of the Range: 3.95%

“N” means the total mnnber of calendar
days in the Observation Period

“Observation Period” means the period
form, and including, the lssue Date, to, and
including, the Maturity Date.

Not Applicable

“EUR-EURIBOR-Reference Banks™ as
this is defined in the [SDA Definitions.

Not Applicable
Maturity Date

Modified
Convention

Following Business Day

Target

Not Applicable




interest:

(xi) Maximum  Rate/Amount  of
" Interest: :
{xii) Day Count Fraction:

19.  Dual Currency Instrument Provisions

PROVISIONS RELATING TO REDEMPTION

20.

21

Call Option

Put Option

Not Applicable

Act/365

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO THE INSTRUMENTS

23.

Early Redemption Amount

Early Redemption Amount(s) of e¢ach
Instrument payable on redemption for
taxation reasons or on event of default or

other early redemption and/or the method

of calculating the same (if required or if
different from that set out in the
Conditions}:

As per Conditions

GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO THE INSTRUMENTS

24,

25.

26.

Form of Instruments:

New Global Instrument:

Additiona! Financial Centre(s) or other
special provisions relating to Payment
Dates:

Bearer Instruments:

Permanent Global Instrument
exchangeable for Definitive Instruments in
the limited circumstances specified in the

. Permanent Global Instrument

No

Not Applicable




27.

28.

29,
3e.

32.

33.

34.

33.

36.

L.

Talons for future Coupons or Receipts to
be attached to Definitive Bearer
Instruments (and dates on which such
Talons matuzc);

Details relating to Partly Paid Instruments:
amount of each payment comprising the
Issue Price and date on which each
payment is to be made [and consequences
(if any) of failure to pay, including any
right of the Issuer to forfeit the Instruments
and interest due on late payment]:

Details relating to Instalment Instruments:
amount of each instalment, date on which
each payment is to be made:

Redenomination, renominalisation and
reconvenlioning provisions:

Consolidation provisions:
Other final terms:

(i) "lf syndicated, names and
addresses of Managers and
underwriting commitments:

(i) Date of {Subscription]
Agreement:

(iiiy  Stabilising Manager(s) (if any).

If non-syndicated, name and
address of Dealer:

Total commission . and
concession:

Additional selling restrictions:

No

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable
Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable
Banco Santander Central Hisparo, S.A.
Ciudad Grupo Santander, Edificio Encinar

Planta Baja, 28660 Boadilla del Monte,
Madrid, Spain

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

PART |B] - OTHER INFORMATION

LISTING




(i) Listing: Ieish Stock Exchange

{ii) Admission to trading: Application has been made for the Instruments to be
admitted to trading on [Irish Stock Exchange with
effect from 4% April 2007.

RATINGS

Ratings: Not Applicable

NOTIFICATION

The Irish Financial Regulator (FR) has provided AFM (Autariteit Financigle Markten)
(the Netherlands), The UK Listing Authority (United Kingdom) (the Financial Services
Authority, acting as competent authority for listing); BaFin (Bundesanstalt fir
Finanzdienstleistungsaufsicht) (Germany); CSSF (Commission: de Surveillance du
Secteur Financier) (Luxembourg); Comisién Nacional de Mercado de Valores (CNMV)
(Spain), Commissione Nazionale per la Societa e la Borsa (CONSOB) (ltaly), Autorité
des Merchés Financiers (AMF) (France), Finanstilsynet (Dsnmark); Comision Bancaire,
Financiere et des Assurances (Belgium); and FMA Finanzmartaufsich (Austria) with a
certificate of approval attesting that the Prospectus has been drawn up in accordance with
the Prospectus Directive,

INTERESTS OF NATURAL AND LEGAL PERSONS INVOLVED IN THE
[TSSUE/OFFER] . :

[Save as discussed in {"Subscription and Sale"], so far as the Issuer is aware, no- person
involved in the offer of the Instruments has an interest material to the offer."]

ESTIMATED NET PROCEEDS

(i) Estimated net proceeds:  EUR 4,266,000

(in Estiimate of total EUR 2,500
expenses related to the
admission to trading:

FIXED RATE INSTRUMENTS ONLY - Y1ELD
Indication of yield: ’ Not Applicable
FLOATING RATE INSTRUMENTS ONLY - HISTORIC INTEREST RATE

Not Applicable




8. Index-Linked or other variable-linked Instruments only — PERFORMANCE OF
INDEX/FORMULA/OTHER VARIABLE, EXPLANATION OF EFFECT ON
VALUE OF INVESTMENT AND ASSOCIATED RISKS AND OTHER
INFORMATION CONCERNING THE UNDERLYING

Past and future performance and volatility of the EUR-EURIBOR-Reuters can be
obtained on the Reuters Screen EURIBORO1 page. '

9. Dual Currency Instruments only - PERFORMANCE OF RATE[S] OF
EXCHANGE AND EXPLANATION OF EFFECT ON VALUE OF
INVESTMENT

Not Applicable

10. OPERATIONAL INFORMATION
ISIN Code: X50289648890
Common Code: 028964889

" German Securities Code WNot Applicable
(WKN):

Any clearing system(s) other Not Applicable
than Euroclear Bank

S.AMY. and Clearstream

Banking, société anonyme

and the relevant

identification number(s):

Delivery: ' Delivery against payment

[Fiscal Agent’German Fiscal Naot Applicable
Agent]:

Names and addresses of Not Applicable
additional Paying Agent(s)
(if any):

Tradeable Amounts: EUR 50,000
LISTING AND ADMISSION TO TRADING APPLICATION

These Final Terms comprise the final terms required to list and have admitted to trading the
issue of Instruments described herein pursuant to the €40,000,000,000 Programmie for the
Issuance of Debt Instruments of DEPFA BANK ple, DEPFA DEUTSCHE
PFANDBRIEFBANK AG and DEPFA ACS BANK,

Signed on behalf of the Issuer:

e B

oo Calscadden Barry Stoneham
Assoclate .
Depfa Bank Pic Managing Director

DEPFA BANK Plc




Duly authorised] .
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Final Terms dated 5 April 2007 ks IR
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DEPFA BANK ple IO Pt e
DEPFA DEUTSCHE PFANDBRIEFBANK AG CERURATE ¢ AR
DEPFA ACS BANK e
Issue by DEPFA BANK plc of ZAR 250,000,000 8.75% Notes due 24 July 2008
(to be consolidated and form a single series with the ZAR 750,000,000 8.75% Notes due 24 July
2008 issued on 23 January 2007 and the ZAR 250,000,000 8.75% Notes due 24 July 2008 issued
on 20 March 2007)
under the €40,000,000,000 Programme for the Issuance of Debt Instruments

PART A - CONTRACTUAL TERMS

Terms vsed herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions set
forth in the Prospectus dated 30 June 2006 which constitutes a base prospectus for the purposes of
the Prospectus Directive (Directive 2003/71/EC) (the "Prospectus Directive"). This doecument
constitutes the Final Terms of the Instruments described herein for the purposes of Article 5.4 of
the Prospectus Directive and must be read in conjunction with such Prospectus. Full information
on the Issuer and the offer of the Instruments is only available on the basis of the combination of
these Final Terms and the Prospectus, The Prospectus is available for viewing at DEPFA BANK

plc 1 Commons Street, Dublin 1, Ireland and at www.financialrepulator.ic and copies may be
obtained from DEPFA BANK plc, 1 Commons Street, Dublin 1, Jreland.

1. Issuer: ' DEPFA BANK PLC
2. Series Number: 1047
(i) Tranche Number: 03
3. Specified Currency or Currencies: South African Rand ("ZAR™)

4,  Aggregate Nominal Amount:

(i) Series: ZAR 1,250,000,000.00
(ii) Tranche: ZAR 250,000,000.00
5. lssue Price: 100.162 per cent of the Aggregate Nominal

Amount of the Instruments plus 78 days
accrued interest from and including 23
January 2007 to but excluding the Issue
Date

6.  Specified Denominations: ZAR 10,000

7. (i) Issue Date: 11 April 2007



10.

11,

12.

13.

14,

(3ii) Interest Commencement Date
Maturity Date:

Interest Basis:

Redemption/Payment Basis:

Change of Interest or Redemption/Payment
Basis:

Put/Call Options:
(i) Status of the Instruments:
(ii) Date approval for issuance of

Instruments obtained:

Method of distribution:

23 January 2007
24 July 2008

8.75 % Fixed Rate
{further particulars specified below)

Redemption at par

Not applicable

Not applicable
Senior, unsubordinated & unsecured

Not applicable

Non-syndicated

PROVISTIONS RELATING TQ INTEREST (TF ANY) PAYABLE

15,

Fixed Rate Instrument Provisions

(i) Rate of Interest:
(ii) Interest Payment Date:
(11i) Fixed Coupon Amount:

(iv) Broken Amount:

) Day Count Fraction:

(vi) Determination Dates:

(vii) Other terms relating to the
method of calculating interest for
Fixed Rate Instruments:

Applicable

8.75 per cent. per annum payable annually
in arrear with short first coupon payable on
24 July 2007

24 July of each year

ZAR 875 per ZAR 10,000 in Nominal
Amount

ZAR 436.30 per ZAR 10,000 in Nominal
Amount short first coupon payable on 24
July 2007

Actual/Actual (ICMA) following
unadjusted

24 July of each year

Not Applicable



16. Floating Rate Instrument Provisions Not Applicable
17.  Zero Coupon Instrument Provisions Not Applicable

18. Index-Linked Interest Instrument/other Not Applicable
variable-linked interest Tostrument
Provisions

19.  Dual Currency Instrument Provisions Not Applicable

PROVISIONS RELATING TO REDEMPTION

20.  Call Option Not Applicable

21.  Put Option Not Applicable

GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO THE INSTRUMENTS

22, Final Redemption Amount of each ZAR 10,000 per Instrument of ZAR 10,000

Instrument Specified Denomination
(i) Index/Formula/variable: Not applicable
(i) Calculation Agent responsible for  Not applicable
calculating the Final Redemption
Amount:
(iii) Provisions for determining Final Not applicable

Redemption  Amount  where
calculated by reference to Index
and/or Formula and/or other

variable:
(iv) Determination Date(s): 24 July 2008
(v) Provisions for determining Final Not applicable

Redemption  Amount  where
calculation by reference to Index
and/or Fonmula and/or other
variable is  impossible or
impracticable  or  otherwise




23.

disrupted:
(vi) Payment Date:

(vii) Minimum  Final Redemption
Amount:

(vi) Maximum Final Redemption
Amount;

Early Redemption Amount

Early Redemption Amount(s) of each
Instrument payable on redemption for
taxation reasons or on event of default or
other early redemption and/or the method
of calculating the same (if required or if
different from that set out in the
Conditions):

24 July 2008

par

par

As set out in the Prospectus

GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO THE INSTRUMENTS

24.

25,

26.

27.

Form of Instruments:

New Global Instrument:

Additional Financial Centre{(s} or other
special provisions relating to Payment
Dates:

Talons for future Coupons or Receipts to
be attached to Definitive Bearer
Instruments (and dates on which such
Talons mature):

Bearer Instruments:

Permanent Global Instrument
exchangeable for Definitive Instruments in
the limited circumstances specified in the
Permanent Global Instrument

1

No

London, Johannesburg, TARGET

No




28.

29.

30.

31

32.

33.

34,

35

36.

Details relating to Partly Paid Instruments:
amount of each payment comprising the
Issue Price and date on which each
payment is to be made [and consequences
(if any) of failure to pay, including any
right of the Issuer 1o forfeit the Instruments
and interest due on late payment]:

Details relating to Instalment Instruments:
amount of each instalment, date on which
each payment is to be made:

Redenomination, renominalisation and
reconventioning provisions:

Consolidation provisions:
Other final terms:

(i) If syndicated, npames and
addresses of Managers and
underwriting commitments:

(ii) Date of Subscription Agreement:
(iii) Stabilising Manager(s) (if any):

If non-syndicated, name and
address of Dealer:

Total commission and
concession:

Additional selling restrictions:

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable
Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable
Not Applicable

The Torento-Dominion Bank
Trton Court,

14/18 Finsbury Square,
London, UK, EC2A 1DB

1,125 per cent. of the Aggregate Nominal
Amount

South Africa

The Manager will be required to represent
and agree that it has not and will not offer
for sale or subscription or sell any
Instruments, directly or indirectly, within
the Republic of South Africa or to any
person, corporale or other entity resident in
the Republic of South Africa except (a) in
accordance with the Exchange Control
Regulations of the Republic of South




Africa and (b) to any entity resident or
within the Republic of South Africa in
accordance with the Commercial Paper
regulations and the Companies Act 1973
and the Financial Advisory and
Intermediary Services Act 2002,




ta

PART B - OTHER INFORMATION

LISTING

(1) Listing: Irish Stock Exchange

(ii) Admission to trading: Application has been made for the Instruments to be
’ admitted to trading on the Official List of the Irish

Stock Exchange with effect from 11 April 2007

RATINGS

Ratings: Not Applicable

NOTIFICATION

Not Applicable

INTERESTS OF NATURAL AND LEGAL PERSONS INVOLVED IN THE ISSUE
! OFFER

Save as discussed in "Subscription and Sale", so far as the Issuer is aware, no person
involved in the offer of the Instruments has an interest material to the offer.

ESTIMATED NET PROCEEDS

() Estimated net proceeds:  ZAR 247,592,500 in principle amount of the
Instruments less ZAR 25,000 plus accrued interest of
ZAR 4.674,657.53. Total ZAR 252,242,157.53

(i) Estimate of total EUR 2,500
expenses related to the
admission to trading:

YTELD
Indication of yield: 8.635 per cent. annyal

Calculated as the yield to maturity on an
Actual/Actual (ICMA) basis on the Issue Date.

As set out above, the yield is calculated at the Issue



10.

Date on the basis of the Issue Price. It is not an
indication of future yield.

HISTORIC INTEREST RATES

Not Applicable

PERFORMANCE OF INDEX/FORMULA/OTHER VARIABLE, EXPLANATION
OF EFFECT ON VALUE OF INVESTMENT AND ASSOCIATED RISKS AND
OTHER INFORMATION CONCERNING THE UNDERLYING

Not Applicable

PERFORMANCE OF RATE|S] OF EXCHANGE AND EXPLANATION OF
EFFECT ON VALUE OF INVESTMENT

Not Applicable

OPERATIONAL INFORMATION

1SIN Code:
Common Code:

German  Securitics Code
(WKN):

New  Global Instrument
intended to be held in a
manner which would allow
Eurosystem eligibility:

Any clearing system(s) other
than Euroclear Bank
S.A/M.V. and Clearstream
Banking, société anonyme
and the relevant identification
number(s):

Delivery:
Fiscal Agent:

Names and addresses of
additional Paying Agent(s) (if
any):.

XS$0282504017
028250401

AOG4YR

Not Applicable

Delivery Against Payment
Deutsche Bank AG, London Branch

Not Applicable



Tradeable Amounts: ZAR 10,000 and multiples thereof

LISTING AND ADMISSION TO TRADING APPLICATION

These Final Terms comprise the final terms required to list and have admitted to trading the issue
of Instruments described herein pursuant to the €40,000,000,000 Programme for the Issuance of
Debt Instruments of DEPFA BANK plc, DEPFA DEUTSCHE PFANDBRIEFBANK AG and
DEPFA ACS BANK.

RESPONSIBILITY
The Issuer accepts responsibility for the information contained in these Final Terms.

Signed on behalf of the Issuer:

Philip Colscadden Barry Stoneham

Associate i i

Deots B Managing Director
epfa Bank Pic DEPFA BANK Plc
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Final Terms dated 4 April 2007
DEPFA BANK plc

Issue of 1SK 3,000,000,000 Fixed Rate Instruments due 15 Apri} 2008 under the

EUR 40,000,600,000 Programme for the Issuance of Debt Instruments of
DEPFA BANK plc
DEPFA DEUTSCHE PFANDBRIEFBANK AG
DEPFA ACS BANK '

PART A - CONTRACTUAL TERMS

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions set

. forth in the Prospectus dated 30 June 2006 which constitute a base prospectus for the purposes '
of the Prospectus Directive (Directive 2003/71/EC) (the "Prospectus Directive™). This
document constitutes the Final Terms of the Instruments described herein for the purposes of
Article 5.4 of the Prospectus Directive and must be read in conjunction with such Prospectus.
Full information on the Issuer and the offer of the Instruments is only available on the basis of
the combination of these Final Terms and the Prospectus. The Prospectus is available for -
viewing at DEPFA BANK, 1 Commons Strest, Dublin 1, lreland and at
www financialrggulator.ic and copies may be obtained from DEPFA BANK, | Commons
Street, Dublin 1, Ireland. No website referred to in these Final Terms and the Prospectus forms
part of these Final Tenns and the Prospectus.

1. issuer DEPFA BANK ple

2. Scrics-Numbcr. 1081

3.  Specified Currency or Currencies: | Icelandic Krona ("ISK")
4,  Aggregate Nominal Amount: ISK 3,000,000,0Q0

3. Issup Price:

6. Specified Denominations:

7. ()’
(i)

8. Ma'turity b’ate:

Issue Date:

Interest Commencement Date

9,  Interest Basis:

10. Redemption/Payment Basis:

UK/1103938/01

100.55 per cent. of the Aggregate Nominal
Amount

ISK 100,000

12 April 2007

12 April 2007

15 April 2008

13.00 per cent, Fixed Rate

Redemption at par

500131/70-40167061




11, Change of Interest or Redemption/Payment Not Applicable

Basis:
12. Put/Call Options: Not Applicable
13. (i) Status of the [nstruments: Senior Unsubordinated and unsecured
(i) Date Board approval for issuance Not Applicable
of Instruments obtained:
14, Method of distribution: Non-syndicated

PROVISIONS RELATING TO INTEREST (IF ANY) PAYABLE

15, Fixed Rate Instrument Provislons Applicable
{i) Rate of Interest: . 13.00 per cent. per annum payable annually
in arrear
(i) Interest Payment Date(s): . 15 April, 2008, adjusted in accordance with

the Following Business Day Convention.
No adjustments will be made to Fixed
Coupon Amounts

(iid) Fixed Coupon Amount(s): ISK 13,000 per ISK 100,000 in Nominal
' Amount, long coupon with respect to the
period from and including the Issue Date to

but excluding the Maturity Date

{(iv) Broken Amount(s): 1SK 13,000 per, ISK 100,000 in respect of
the period from and including the Issue
Date to but excluding the Maturity Date
and payable on the Maturity Date

(4%] Day Count Fraction: Actual/Actual ICMA

(vi) Other terms relating to the Not Applicable
: method of calculating interest for
Fixed Rate Instruments:

16. Floating Rate Instrament Provisions Not Applicable
17.  Zero Coupon Instrument Provisiong Not Applicable
19. Dual Currency Instrument Provisions Naot Applicable

PROYVISIONS RELATING TO REDEMPTION

20. Call Option Not Applicable

-21.  Put Option Not Applicable
UK/1103938/01 -2- 500131770-40167061




GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO THE INSTRUMENTS

22,

23.

Final Redemption Ameunt of each
lpstrument

Early Redemption Amount

Rarly Redemption Amount(s) of each
Instrument payable on redemption for
taxation reasons or on event of default or
other early redemption and/or the method
of calculating the same (if required or if
different from that set out in the
Conditions):

ISK 100,000 per Instrument of ISK

- 100,000 Specified Denomination

As set out in Condition 10(b) and 13(b).

GENERAL PROVISTONS APPLICABLE TO THE INSTRUMENTS

24.  Form of Instruments:

25.  New Global Instrument:

26. Additional Financial Centre(s) or other
special provisions relating to Payment
Dates:

27. Talons for future Coupons or Receipts to
be attached to Definitive Bearer
Instruments (and dates on which such
Talons mature):

28. . Details relating to Partly Paid Instruments:

29, Details relating to Instalment Instruments:
amount of each instalment, date on which
each payment is to be made:

30. Redenomination, renominalisation and
reconventioning provisions:

31. Consolidation provisions:

32.  Other final terms:

UK/110393801 -3-

Bca.r_cr [nstruments:

Permanent Global Instrument
cxchangeable for Definitive Instrurnents in
the limited circumstances specified in the
Permanent Global Instrument

No

Reykjavik, TARGET

No

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

The provisions in Condition 19 apply

Not Applicable

S00131/770-10167061
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33. If non-syndicated, name and address of Scatia Capital Inc. ("Dealer”)

Dealer:

34. Total commission and concession:

35. Additional selling restrictions:

UK/1103938/01

Scotia House
33 Finsbury Street
London EC2A 1BB

1.00 per cent. of the Apgregate Nominal
Amount

As set out under "Subscription and Sale” in
the Prospectus, except that TEFRA C shall
apply for the United States of America and
the following additional selling restrictions
shall apply:

Ie¢land

Each Manager has agreed that it will not
offer Instruments to the public in Iceland,
cxcept in compliance with .the Icelandic
Act on Securities Transactions (No.
33/2003) as amended and any applicable
laws or regulation in Iceland

Italy

The offering of the Instruments has not
been registered pursuant to the Italian
securities legislation and, accordingly, the
Dealer has represented and agreed that it
has not offered or sold, and will not offer
or sell, any Instruments in the Republic of
lzaly in a solicitation to the public, and that
sales of the [nstruments in the Republic of
[taly shall be effected in accordance with
all Italian securities, tax and cxchange
control and other applicable laws and
regulation.

Accordingly, the Dealer has represented
and agreed that it will not offer, sell or
deliver any [nstruments or distribute copies
of the Prospectus and any other document
relating to the Instruments in the Republic
of ltaly except:

50013 1/70-40167061

Tate ps gi e
Lt ‘-“'_" )

RSN




UK/1103938/01

M

)

to "Professional TInvestors", as
defined in Article 31.2 of CONSOB
Regulation No. 11522 of 1 July
1998, as amended ("Regulation Ne.
11522, pursuant to Article 30.2
and 100 of Legislative Decree No.
58 of 24 February 1998, as ammended
("Decree No. 58"); ‘

in any other circumstances where an
express exemption from compliance
with the solicitation restrictions
applies, as provided under Decree
No. 58 or CONSOB Regulation No.
11971 of 14 May 1999, as amended.

Any such offer, sale or delivery of the
lustruments or distribution of copies of the
Prospectus or any other document relating
to the Instruments in the Republic of Italy
must be:

(a)

®

made by investment firms, banks or

financial intermediaries permitted to
conduct such activities in the

Republic of Italy in accordance with

Legislative Decree No. 385 of |

September 1993 as amended

("Decree No, 385"), Decree No. 58,

CONSOB Regulation No. 11522

and any other applicable Jaws and

regulations; and '

in compliance with any other
applicable notification requirement
or limitation which may be imposed
by CONSOB or the Bank of Ttaly.

500131/70-40067061




Investors should also note that, in any
subsequent distribution of the Instruments
in the Republic of Haly, Article 100-bis of
Decree No. 58 may require compliance
with the law relating to public offers of
securities.  Furthermore, where the
Instruments are placed solely with
professional investors and are then
systematically resold on the secondary
market at any time in thc 12 months

following such placing, purchasers of ]

Instruments who are acting outside of the
. course of their business or profession may
in certain circumstances be entitled to
declare such purchase void and to claim
damages from any authorised person at

~ whose premises the Instruments were
purchased, unless an exemption provided
for under Decree No. 58 applies.

PART B - OTHER INFORMATTON

1. . LISTING
(i) Listing:

(ii} Admission to trading:

2. RATINGS

Ratings:

UK/1103938/01

Irish Stock Exchange

Application has been made for the [nstruments to be
admitted to trading on the Eish Stock Exchange

© with effect from 12 April 2007.

Not Applicable

p

-6- . 50013 /7040167061




3. NOTIFICATION

The Irish Financial Regutator (FR) has provided AFM (Autoriteit Fingncitle Markten)
(the Netherlands); The UK Listing Authority (United Kingdom) (the Financial Services
Authority, acting as competent authority for [listing); BaFin (Bundesanstalt flir
Finanzdienstleistungsaufsicht) -(Germany); CSSF (Commission de Surveillance du
Secteur Financier) (Luxembourg); Comisidon Nacicnal de Mercade de Valores (CNMV)
{Spain), Commissione Nazionale per la Societa e la Borsa (CONSOB) (Italy), Autorité
des Merchés Financiers (AMF) (France), Finanstilsynet (Denmark); Comision Bancaire,
Financiere et des Assurances (Belgium); and FMA Finanzmartaufsich (Austria) with a
certificate of approval attesting that the Prospectus has been drawn up in accordance with
the Prospectus Directive. ' - :

4. INTERESTS OF NATURAL AND LEGAL PERSONS TNVOLVED IN THE
ISSUE :

Save as discussed in “Subscription and Sale, so far as the Issuer is aware, no person
invalved in the offer of the Instruments has an interest material to the offer.

5. ESTIMATED NET PROCEEDS
0} Estimated net proceeds:  ISK 2,985,100,000

iy  Estimate of total expenses Listing expenses: EUR 2,500
related to the admission to '
trading:

6. FIXED RATE INSTRUMENTS ONLY - YIELD
Indication of yield: . 12.39 per cent

The yield is calculated at the Issue Date on the basis
of the Issue Price. It is not an indication of future
yield, ’

7.. OPERATLONAL INFORMATION
ISIN Code: _ XS0293841002
Common Code: ' 029384100

German  Securities  Code Not Applicable
(WKN):

New Global Instrument intended Not Applicable
to be held in a manner which

would  allow  Eurosystem

cligibility: '

Any clearing system{s) other Not Applicable
than Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V.
and  Clearstream  Banking,

UK/ 103938401 -7- 500131/70-40167061




société anonyme and the
relevant identification
number{s):

Delivery:
Fiscal Agent:

Names and addresses of _
additional Paying Agent(s) (if
any):

Tradeable Amounts:

Delivery against payment
Deutsche Bank AG, London Branch

DEPFA BANK plc
1 Commons Street
Dublin 1

Jreland

Not Applicable

LISTING AND ADMISSION TO TRADING APPLICATION

These Final Terms comprise the final terms required to list and have admitted to trading the
issue of Instruments described herein pursuant to the EUR 40,000,000,000 Programme for the
Issuance of Debt Instruments of DEPFA BANK ple, DEPFA DEUTSCHE
PFANDBRIEFBANK AG and DEPFA ACS BANK.

UK/1103%38/01

-8- 500131/70-40167061




RESPONSIBILITY

The Issuer accepts responsibility for the information contained in these Final Tetms.

Signed on behalf of the Issuer:

vl Coasendlan v %
Philip Cabscadden .
Assoclate )

Depfa Bank Pic ' Barry Stonehiam
' Managing Director
DEPFA BANK Plc

UK/110393801

-9- 500131/70-40167061
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7 NG 2U A 2=l * Fingl Terms dated 16 April 2007 \

e ATITHAL DEPFA BANK ple

Issue of EUR 5,250,000 Index Linked Callable Instruments due April 2017
under the €40,000,000,000 Programme for the Issuance of Debt Instruments

) PART A - CONTRACTUAL TERMS

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions set forth
in the Prospectus dated 30 Junc 2006, which constitutes a base prospectus for the purposes of the
Prospectus  Directive (Directive 2003/71/EC) (the “Prospectus Directive”). This document
constitutes the Final Terms of the Instruments described herein for the purpases of Article 5.4 of the
Prospectus Directive and must be read in conjunction with such Prospectus. Full information on the
Issuer and the offer of the Instruments is only available on the basis of the combination of thesc Final
Terms and the Prospectus. The Prospectus is available for viewing at DEPFA BANK ple, 1 Commaons
Street, Dublin 1, Ireland and at www.financialregulator.ie and copies may bo obtained from DEPFA
BANK plc, | Commons Street, Dublin 1, Ireland. No website referred to in these Final Terms and the
Prospectus forms part of these Final Terms and the Prospectus.

. () lssuem DEPFA BANK ple

2. ()  Serics Number: 1084
(i) Tranche Number: 1
3 Specified Currency or Currencies: Euro (“EUR” or “€”)
4, Aggregate Nominal Amount:
(i) Scrics: EUR 5,250,000
(i) Tranche: EUR 5,250,000
5. Issue Price: 100.00 per cent of the Aggregate Nominal
Amount
6. Specified Denominations: EUR 50,000
7. (i) Issue Date: 19 April 2007
-(ii) Interest Commencement Date;  Issue Date
B. Maturity Date: 'l;he Specified Interest Payment Date falling in
April 2017
9, Interest Basis: Index Linked (further particulars specified
below)
10. Redemption/Payment Basis: Redemption at par
1. Change of Interest or Not applicable
Redemption/Payment Basis:

12, Put/Call Options: Issuer Call (further particulars specified below)




13. () Status of the Instruments:
(i) Date [Board] approval for
issuance of Instruments
obtained:

14. Method of distribution:

Seniar, Unsecured, unsubordinated

Not applicable

Non-syndicated

PROVISIONS RELATING TO INTEREST (IF ANY) PAYABLE

15. Fixed Rate Instrument Provisions
16. Floating Rate Instrument Provisions
17. Zero Coupon Instrument Provisions

18. Index-Linked Interest Instrument /
other variable-linked interest
Iustrument Provisions

(i) Index / Formula / other
variable:

(i) Calculation Agent responsible

for calculating the interest due:

Provisions for determining
Coupon where calculated by
reference 1o Index and/or
Formula and/or other variable:

(iiif)

(iv) Determination Date(s):

Provisions for determining
Coupon where calculation by
reference to Index and/or
Formula and/or other variable is
impossible ar impracticable or
otherwise disrupted:

(v)

Interest or Calculation
Period(s):

vi)

(vii)  Specified Interest Payment

Dates:

(viil)

(ix)

Business Day Convention:

Additional Business Centre(s):

Not applicable
Not applicable
Not applicable
Applicable

As specified in the section of these Final Terms
entitled “Part B — Other Information”

BNP Paribas (the “Calculation Agent”)

As specified in the section of these Final Terms
entitled “Part B — Other Information”

As specified in the section of these Final Terms
cutitled “Part B — Other Information”

As specified in the section of these Final Terms
entitled “Part B — Other nformation”

From and including the Interest Commencement
Datc to but excluding the first Specified [nterest
Payment Date and each subsequent period from
and including a Specified Interest Payment Date
to but excluding the immediately following
Specified Interest Payment Date

19 January, 19 April, 19 July and 19 October of
each year from and including 19 July 2007 to and
including 19 April 2017

Modified Following Business Day Convention
TARGET and London




x) Minimum Rate/Amount of Not applicable

Interest:
(x1) Maximum Rate/Amount of Not applicable
Interest:
(xii)  Day Count Fraction: 30/360 unadjusted
19. Dual Currency Instrumeni Provisions  Not applicable

PROVISIONS RELATING TO REDEMPTION

20. Call Option Applicable

@) Optional Redemption Date(s): Each Specified Interest Payment Date from and
including the Specified Interest Payment Date
falling in October 2007 to and including the
Specified Interest Payment Date falling in
January 2017

{ii) Optional Redemption EUR 50,000 per [nstrument of EUR 50,000
Amount(s) of each Instrument  Specified Denomination
and method, if any, of
calculation of such amount(s):

(iii)  If redeemable in part:

(a) Minimum Redemption  Not applicable
Amount:

(b) Maximum Redemption  Not applicable

Amount:
(iv) Notice period: No fewer than five TARGET Business Days
prior to the relevant Optional Redemption Date
21, Put Option Not spplicable

GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO THE INSTRUMENTS

122, Final Redemption Amount of each ~ EUR 50,000 per Instrument of EUR 50,000
Instrument Specificd Denomination

23. Early Redemption Amount

Early Redemption Amouni(s) of each As set out in the Conditions
Instrument payable on redemption for

taxation reasons or on event of default or

other early redemption and/or the

method of calculating the same (if

required or if different from that set out

in the Conditions);

GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO THE INSTRUMENTS

24. Form of Instruments: Bearer Instruments:




25,
" 26.

27

28.

29.

30.

31.
32.
33

34

35.
36,

New Global Instrument:

Additional Financial Centre(s) or other
special provisions relating to Payment
Dates:

Talons for future Coupons or Receipts to
be attached to Detinitive Bearer
Instruments (and dates on which such
Talons mature):

Details relating to Partly Paid
Instruments: amount of each payment
comprising the Issue Price and date on
which each payment is to be made and
consequences (if any) of failure to pay,
including any right of the Issuer to
forfeit the Instruments and interest due
on latc payment;

Deteils relating to Instalment
Instruments; amount of ¢ach instalment,
date on which each payment is to be
made: '

Redenomination, renominalisation and
recanventioning provisions:

Consolidation provisions:
Other final terms:

()] If syndicated, names and
addresses of Managers and
underwriting commitments:

(i) Date of Subscription
Agreement;

(iii) Stabilising Manager(s) (if any):

If non-syndicated, name and address of
Dealer:

Total commission and concession:

Additional selling restrictions:

Permanent Globa! Instrument exchangeable for
Definitive Instruments in the limited
circumstances specified in the Permanent Global
Instrument

Yes

TARGET and London

No

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable
Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

BNP Paribas, 10 Harewood Avenue, London
NW1 6AA, United Kingdom

None

Not applicable




PART B - OTHER INFORMATION

LISTING

f)] Listing: : Irish Stock Exchange

(i) Admission to wading: Application has been made for the Instruments to
be admicted to trading on the Irish Stock
Exchange with effect from the Issue Daie

RATINGS

Not applicable

NOTIFICATION

The Irish Financial Regulator has provided: AFM (Aworiteit Financitle Markien) (the
Netherlands); UK Listing Authority (the Financial Services Authority, acting as competent
authority for  listing) (United Kingdom); BaFin  (Bundesansialt  fir
Finanzdienstleistungsaufsicht) (Germany); CSSF (Commission de Surveillance du Secieur
Financier) (Luxembourg); CNMV (Comisidn Nacional de Mercado de Valores) (Spain);
CONSOB (Commissione Nazionale per la Societa e la Borsa) (ltaly), AMF (Awtorité des
Merchés Financiers) (France); Finanstilsyner (Denmark); Commissiun Bancaire, Financiere et
des Assurances (Belgium), and FMA (Finanzmarktaufsicht) (Austria) with a certificate of
approval attesting that the Prospectus has been drawn up in accordance with the Prospectus
Directive,

INTERESTS OF NATURAL AND LEGAL PERSONS INVOLVED IN THE OFFER

Save as discussed in “Subscription and Sale”, so far as the Issuer is aware, no person involved
in the offer of the Instruments has an interest material to the offer,

ESTIMATED NET PROCEEDS

() Estimated net proceeds: EUR 5,250,000

(i) Estimate of total expenses related  EUR 2,500
to the admission to rading:

TNDEX / FORMULA { OTHER VARIABLE, EXPLANATION OF EFFECT ON
VALUE OF INVESTMENT AND ASSOCIATED RISKS AND OTHER
INFORMATION CONCERNING THE UNDERLYING

The Rate of Interest for each Interest Period shall be determined by the Calculation Agent in
accordance with the following formula:

Gearing multiplied by EURI0YCMS
“Barrier” means:

(i) 5.10 per cent. for the Interest Periods ending in October 2007, January 2008 and April
2008, :




(i} 5.20 per cent. for the Interest Periods ending in July 2008, October 2008, January 2009
and April 2009,

(iii)  5.35 per cent. for the Interest Periods ending in July 2009, October 2009, January 2010
and April 2019;

(iv)  5.60 per cent. for the Interest Periods ending in July 2010, October 2010, January 2011
and April 2011,

(v) 5.85 per cent. for the Interest Periods ending in July 2011, October 2011, January 2012
and April 2012; . '

(vi)  6.10 per cent. for the Interest Periods ending in July 2012, October 2012, January 2013
and April 2013;

(vii)  6.35 per cent. for the Interest Periods ending in July 2013, October 2013, January 2014
and April 2014;

(viii)  6.60 per cent. for the Interest Periods ending in July 2014, October 2014, January 2015
and April 2015; and . :

(ix) 6.85 per cent. for all subsequent Interest Periods.

<“FUR10YrCMS” means the fixed leg, expressed as a per annum percentage rate, of an
interest rate swap transaction in EUR with a term equal to ten years versus six month
EURIBOR as appearing on Reuters page ISDAFIX2 (or such other page or service which
displays such information) under the heading “EUR 11:00 AM™ as of 11:00 am., Centra)
European Time, five TARGET Business Days prior to the first day in the relevant Interest
Period provided that if such rate is not available on any such day then the Calculation Agent
shall determine the rate by reference to such factors and sources as it deems appropriate.

“Gearing” means:

(0 150 per cent, for the [nterest Period ending in July 2007; and

(i) Previous Gearing multiplied by the Range and divided by the Total for all subsequent
Interest Periods.

“fpdex” means, for cach day in the relevant Interest Period, the fixed Jeg, expressed as a per
annum percentage rate, of an interest rate swap travsaction in EUR with a term equal to ten
years versus six month EURIBOR as appearing on Reuters page ISDAFIX2 (or such other
page or service which displays such information) under the heading “EUR 11:00 AM” as of
§1:00 a.m., Central European Time, five TARGET Business Days prior to such day provided
that if such rate is not available on any such day then the Calculation Agent shall determine the
rate by reference to such factors and sources as it deems appropriate.

“Previous Gearing” means the Gearing for the Interest Period immediately preceding the
relevant Interest Period.

For the avoidance of any doubt, the “Previous Geuring” for the Interest Period ending in
October 2007 shall be 150 per cent.

“Range” means the number of days in the relevant Interest Period on which the Index is lower
than the Barrier,

“TARGET Business Day” means a day on which the TARGET System is open.

-6-




“Total” means the total number of days in the relevant Interest Period.

7. OPERATTIONAL INFORMATION

ISIN Code: XS0295348451
Common Code: 029534845
German Securities Code (WKN): Not applicable

New Global Instrument intended to be Yes
held in a manner which would allow
Eurosystem eligibility:

Any clearing system(s) other than Not applicable
Euroclear Bank S.A./N.Y. and

Clearstream Banking, société anonyme

and the relevant identification number(s}:

Delivery: Delivery against payment
Names and addresses of additional Paying  Not applicable

Agent(s) (if any):

Tradeable Amounts: Not applicable

LISTING AND ADMISSION TO TRADING APPLICATION
These Final Terms comprise the final terms required to List and have admitted to trading the issuc of
(nstruments described herein pursuant to the €40,000,000,000 Programme for the Issuance of Debt

[nstruments of DEPFA BANK plc, DEPFA DEUTSCHE PFANDBRIEFBANK AG and DEPFA
ACS BANK,

RESPONSIBILITY
The Issuer accepts responsibility for the information contained in these Final Terms.

Signed on behalf of the Issuer:

ing
DEPFA BANK Plc
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1ssue of AUD 70,000,000 6.65 per cent. Fixed Rate Instruments due 30 October 2008
under the €40,000,000,000 Programme for the Issuance of Debt Instruments

PART A - CONTRACTUAL TERMS

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions set forth
in the Prospectus dated 30 June 2006, which constitutes » base prospectus for the purposes of the
Prospectus Directive (Directive 2003/71/EC) (thc ‘Prospectus Directive™). This document
constitutes the Final Terms of the Instruments described herein for the purposes of Ariicle 5.4 of the
Progpectus Directive and must be read in conjunction with such Prospectus. Full information on the
[ssuer and the offer of the Instruments is only available on the basis of the combination of these Final
Terms and the Prospectus. The Prospectus is available for viewing at DEPFA BANK plc, | Commons
Street, Dublin 1, Treland and at www. financialregulator.ie and copics may be obtained from DEPFA
BANK plec, 1 Commons Street, Dublin ], Ireland. No website referred to in these Final Terms and the
Prospectus forms part of these Final Terms and the Prospectus.

1. %)) Issuer: DEPFA BANK pic
2. (i) Series Number: 1092
(il) Tranche Number: 1
3. Specified Currency or Currencies: Australian Dollar (*AUD™)
4, Apggregate Nominal Amount:
() Series: AUD 70,000,000
(ii) Tranche: AUD 70,000,000
5. Issue Price: 100.00 per cent of the Aggregate Nominal
: Amount
6. Specified Denominations: AUD 100,000
7. (i) Issue Date: 30 Aprit 2007
(i) Interest Commencement Date:  Issue Date
8. Maturity Date: 30 October 2008 subject to adjustment in
accordance with the Modified Following
Business Day Convention for which the Business
Centres are Sydney and TARGET
9. Interest Basis: 6.65% Fixed Rate (further particulars specified
below)
10, Redemption/Payment Basis: Redemption at par
11. Change of Interest or Not applicable
Redemption/Payment Basis:




12. Put/Call Options: Not applicable

13, ®» Status of the Instruments: Senior, Unsecured, unsubordinated
) (il Date [Board] approval for Not applicable
issyance of Instruments
abtained:
14, Method of distribution: Non-syndicated

PROVISIONS RELATING TO INTEREST (IF ANY) PAYABLE

15. Fixed Rate Instrument Provisions Applicable
{0 Rate(s) of Interest: 6.65 per cent. per annum payable semi-annuafly
in arrear
{ii) Interest Payment Date(s): 30 October 2007, 30 April 2008 and 30 October

2008 subject to adjustment in accordance with
the Modified Following Business Day
Convention for which the Business Centres are

Sydney and TARGET

(iii) Fixed Coupon Amount(s): Not applicable
(iv) Broken Amount(s): Not applicable
v) Day Count Fraction(s): Actual/365 unadjusted .
{vi) Determination Date(s): Not applicable
(vity  Other tenns relating to the Not applicable

method of calculating interest

for Fixed Rate Notes:

16. Floating Rate Instrument Provisions  Notapplicable

17. Zero Coupon Instrument Provisions  Not applicable

18. Index-Linked Interest Instrument / Not applicable
other variable-linked interest
Instrument Provisions

19, Duat Currency Instroment Provisions  Not applicable
PROVISIONS RELATING TO REDEMPTION

20. Call Option Not applicable

21 Put Option Not applicable
GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO THE INSTRUMENTS

22. Final Redemption Amount of each AUD 100,000 per Instrument of AUD 100,000
Tastrument Specified Denomination

21, Early Redemption Amount




Early Redemption Amount(s) of each As set out in the Conditions
Instnument payable on redemption for

taxation reasons or on event of default or

other early redemption and/or the

method of calculating the same (if

required or if different from that set out

in the Conditions):

GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO THE INSTRUMENTS

24.

25.

26.

27.

28,

29.

30,

31.
32.
33.

Form of Instrnments: Bearer Instruments:

Permanent Global Instrument exchangeable for
Definitive Instruments in the limited
circumstances specified in the Permanent Global
Instrument

New Global Instrument: No

Additional Financial Centre(s) or other Sydney and TARGET
special provisions relating to Payment
Dates:

Talons for future Coupons or Receipts to  No
be attached to Definitive Bearer

Instruments (and dates on which such

Talons mature):

Details relating to Partly Paid Not applicable
Instruments: amount of each payment

comprising the Issue Price and date on

which cach payment is to be made and

consequences (if any) of failure to pay,

including any right of the Issuer to

forfeit the Instruments and interest due

on late payment:

Details relating to Instalment _ Not applicable
Instruments: amount of each instalment,

date on which each payment is to be

made;

Redenomination, renominalisation and ~ Not applicable
réconventioning provisions:

Consolidation provisions: Not applicable
Other final terms: Not gpplicabie
(i) If syndicated, names and Not applicable
addresses of Managers and
underwriting commitments:
(ii) Date of Subscription Not applicable
Agreement:




34.

35.
36.

(i)  Stabilising Manager(s) (if any):

If non-syndicated, name and address of
Drealer:

Total commission and concession:

Additional selling restrictions:

Not applicable

BNP Paribas, 10 Harewood Avenue, London
NWI 6AA, United Kingdom

None
AUSTRALIA

No prospectus or other disclosure document (as
defined in the Corporations Act 2001 of
Australia) in rejation to the Instruments has been
lodged with the Australian Securiries and
Investmenis Commission (the “ASIC™)

The Dealer has represented and agreed that it:

(i) has not offered or invited applications,
and will not offer or invite applications,
for the issue, sale or purchase of the
Instruments in Australia (including an
offer or invitation which is received by a
person in Australia); and

(ii) has not distributed or published, and will
not distribute or publish, any draft,
preliminary or definitive offering
memorandum, advertisement or other
offering material relating to the
Instruments in Australia

unless:

1. the aggregstc consideration payable by
each offeree or invites is at least AUD
500,000 (or its equivalent in other
currencies, but disregarding moneys lent
by the offeror or its associates) or the
offer or invitation otherwise does not
require disclostre to investors in
accordance with Part 6D.2 of the
Corporations Act;

2, such action complies with all applicabie
laws, regulations and directives; and

3. does not require any document ta be
lodged with the ASIC




PART B - OTHER INFORMATION

LISTING

(&) Listing: Irish Stock Exchange

(i) Admission to trading: Application has been made for the Instruments to
be admitted to trading on the Irish Stock
Exchange with effect from the Issue Date

RATINGS

Mot applicable

NOTIFICATION

The Irish Financial Regulator has provided: AFM (Autoriteit Financiéle Markien) (the
Netherlands); UK Listing Authority (the Financial Services Authority, acting as competent
authority for  listing) (United  Kingdom); BaFin (Bundesanstali  filr
Finanzdienstlelstungsaufsicht) (Germany), CSSF (Commission de Swurveillance du Secteur
Financier) (Luxembourg), CNMV (Contisldn Nacional de Mercado de Valores) (Spain);
CONSOB (Cammissione Nazionale per {a Societa e la Borsa) (taly); AMF (Autorité des
Merchés Finamciers) (France); Finanstilsynet (Denmark), Commission Bancaire, Financiere et
dey Assurances (Belgium): and FMA (Finanzmarktaufsicht) (Austria) with a certificate of
approval attesting that the Prospectus has been drawn up in accordance with the Prospectus
Directive. _ '

INTERESTS OF NATURAL AND LEGAL PERSONS INVOLVED IN THE OFFER

Save as discussed in “Subscription and Sale”, so far as the Issuer is aware, no person involved
in the offer of the Instruments has an interest material to the offer.

ESTIMATED NET PROCEEDS

4] Estimated net proceeds: AUD 70,000,000

(i) Estimate of total expenses related  Euro 2,500
to the admission 1o rading:

YIELD
Indication of yield; The Instruments shall bear interest of 6.65 per
: cent. per annum.

The yield is caiculated as at the Issue Date on the
basis of the Issue Price. Jt is not an indication of
future yield.

OPERATIONAL INFORMATION

ISMN Code: X50298031450
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Common Code: 029803145
German Securities Code (WKN); Not applicable

New Global Instrument intended to be No
held in a manner which would allow
Eurosystem ¢ligibility:

Any clearing systeni(s) other than Not applicable
Eureclear Bank S.A/N.V. and

Clearstream Banking, société anonyme

and the relevant identification number(s);

Delivery: Delivery against payment
Names and addresses of additional Paying  Not applicable

Agent(s) {if any);

Tradeable Amounts: Not applicable

LISTING AND ADMISSION TO TRADING APPLICATION

These Final Terms comprise the final terms required 0 list and have admitted to trading the issue of
Instruments described herein pursuant to the €40,000,000,000 Programme for the Issuance of Debt
Instruments of DEPFA BANK plc, DEPFA DEUTSCHE PFANDBRIEFBANK AG and DEPFA
ACS BANK. '

RESPONSIBILITY

_ The Issuer accepts responsibility for the information contained in these Final Terms.

Signed on behslf of the Issuer:
o . Tily K Tz
Duly authori Prati p.my T
Asgociate Managing Directos
DEPFA BANK Plc DEPFA BANK Pl
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. . -Final Terms dated 03rd May 2007

DEPFA BANK plc

Tssue of EUR 2,619,000 Daily Range Accroal Notes due May 2008
under the €40,000,000,000 Programme for the Issuance of Debt Instruments

PART A - CONTRACTUAL TERMS

Terms used herein shail be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions
set forth in the Prospectus dated 30 June 2006 which constitutes a base prospectus for the
purposes of the Prospectus Directive (Directive 2003/71/EC) (the "Prospectus Directive”).
This document constitutes the Final Terms of the [nstruments described -herein for the
purposes of Article 5.4 of the Prospectus Directive and must be read in conjunction with such
Prospectus. Full information on the Issuer and the offer of the Instruments is only available
on the basis of the combination of these Final Terms and the Prospectus. The Prospectus is
available for viewing at DEPFA BANK, | Commons Street, Dublin 1 and at
wwav, fingncialregulatoe ie and copies may be abtined from DEPFA BANK, 1 Commans
Street, Dublin 1. No website referred to in these Final Terms and the Prospectus forms part of
these Final Terms and the Prospectus.

LM Issuer: DEPFA BANK PLC
2. (D) Series Number: 1093
(i) Tranche Number: |

3.  Specified Currency or Currencies: EURO (“*EUR"™)

Aggregate Nominal Amount:

() Series:
(ii) Tranche:
Issue Price:

Specified Denominations:

(i) Issue Date:
i) Interest Commencement Date
Maturity Date:

EUR 2,619,000
EUR 2,619,000
EUR 2,619,000

100 per cent of the Aggregate Nominal
Amount

EUR 1,000
07" May 2007
07" May 2007

07® May 2008, subject to adjustment for
payment only in accordance with Modified
Following Business Day Convention.




14,

Interest Basis:

Redemption/Payment Basis:

Change of [nterest ar Redemption/Payment
Basis:

Put/Call Options:
() Status of the Instruments;

Date Board approval far issuance
of Instruments obtained:

(ii)

Method of distribution:

Other (Daily Range Accrual)
(further particulars specified below)

Redemption at par

Not Applicable

Not Applicable
Senior, Unsecured, Unsubordinated

Not Applicable

Non-syndicated

PROVISIONS RELATING TO INTEREST (IF ANY) PAYABLF,

15.

16.

Fixed Rate Instrument Provisions

Floating Rate Instrument Provisions
£))] Specified Period(s)

(i)

Specified Interest Payment Dates:
(iii) Business Day Convention:
(iv) Business Centre(s):
(v) Manner in which the Rate(s) of

Interest is/are to be determined:

Nat Applicable

Appl.icable
Quarterly

07" August 2007, 07" November 2007,
07" February 2008 and 07" May 2008,
subject to adjustment for payment only in
accordance with Business Day Convention
specified below.

Modified
Convention

Following Business Day

TARGET

The Calculation Agent will determine the
applicable Rate of Interest in sccordance
with the following formula:

Specified Denominations * {(Floating Rate
+ 60 Basis Points) * n/N * Day Count
Fraction}

Where:

= “n”™ Number of calendar days in the
Observation Period in  which the
Reference Rate is greater or equal than
0.01%. For the avoidance of doub, if a




calendar déy within the relevant
Observation Period is not a Target
Business Day, then the Reference Rate
for such calendar day will be decmed
10 be the Reference Rate for the one of
two (2) TARGET Business Days
preceding thst calendar day, in such
Observation Period, which is & Target
Business Day. If, on any Valuation
Date, Reuters screen  EURIBOROI
does not publish “Reference Rate”, the
fixing of the precedent Business Day
will be used for these purposes.

“N™ Number of calendar days in the
Observation Period (each such day
being & “Valuation Date™).

“Observation Period™ means for
every Interest Period, the period from
and including the Business Day that
falls two (2) TARGET Business Days
prior to the first day of thar relevant
Interest Period to but excluding the
Business Day that falls two (2)
TARGET Business Days prior to the
lest day of that relevant Interest Period.

“Euribor 12Month” means the rate
for deposits in EUR for & period of 12
months which appears on the Relevant
Screen Page as of 11:00 a.m. Brussels
Time each Valuation Date.

“Euribor 3Month™ means the rate for
deposits in EUR for a period of 3
months which appears on the Relevant
Screen Page as of 11:00 a.n. Brussels
Time each Valuation Date.

“Floating Rate” means the rate for
depdsits in EUR for a period of 3
months which appears on the Relevant
Screen Page as of 11:00 a.m. Brussels
Time on the datc that is two (2)
TARGET Business Days prior to the
start of the relevant Interest Period.




18.

(vi) Party respcasible for calculating
the Rate(s) of Interest and Interest
Amount(s) (if not the Agent):

(vii) Screen Rate Determination:
— Reference Rate:

— Interest Determination Date(s):

— Relevant Screen Page:
(viii) ISDA Determination:
(ix)  Margin(s):
(x) Minimwn Rate of Interest:
(xi) Maximum Rate of Interest;
(xii) Day Count Fraction:

(xiii) Fall back provisions, rounding
provisions, denominator and eny
other terms relating to the method
of calculating interest on Floating
Rate Instruments, if different
from those set out in the
Conditions:

Zero Coupon Lestrument Pravisions

Index-Linked TInterest Instrument/other
variable-linked interest Instrument
Provigions

19.  Dual Currency Instrument Provisions

- “Interest Period”: means the period
from {and including) the lIssue Date
and ending on (but excluding} the first
Specified Interest Payment Date and
each successive period commencing on
(and including) a Specified Interest
Payment Date to (but excluding) the
next succeding Specified Interest
Payment Date.

Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria S.A.

{Euribor 12Month — Euribor 3Month}

03" August 2007, 05% November 2007,
04® Fehruary 2008 and 05" May 2008

Reuters Screen EURIBORO]
Not Applicable

Not Applicable

0 per cent. per annumn

Not Applicable

Act/365

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable



PROVISIONS RELATING TO REDEMPTION
20. Call Option

21, PutOption

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO THE INSTRUMENTS

22. Final Redemption Amount of each
Instrument

23.  Early Redemption Amount

Early Redemption Amouni(s) of each
Instrument payable on redemption for
taxation reasons or on event of default or
other carly redemption and/or the method
of calculating the same (if required or if
different from that set out in the
Conditions):

EUR 1,000 per Instrument of EUR 1,000
specified denomination

Not Applicable

GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO THE INSTRUMENTS

24. Form of Instruments:

25. New Global Instrument:

26. Addimional Financial Centre{s) or other
special provisions relating to Payment
Dates: ’

27. Talons for future Coupons or Receipts to
be attached to Definitive Bearer
[nstruments (and dates on which such
Talons mature);

28,  Details relating to Partly Paid Instruments:
29. . Details relating to Instalment Instruments:

30. Redenomination, renaminalisation and
reconventioning provisions:

Bearer Instruments:

Permanent Global Instrument
exchangeable for Definitive Instruments in
the timited circumstances specified in the
Permanent Global Instrument

Registered

No

Not Applicable

No
Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable
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34,

35.

36.

Consolidation provisions:

QOther final terms:

Not Applicable

Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria, S.A.
will act as the Calculation Agent. All
determingtions in respect of the Notes shall
be made by the Calculation Agent in its
sole and absolute discretion acting in good
faith and in a commercially reasonable
manner and shall be binding on the
Noteholders in the absence of manifest
error.

Not Applicable
Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Banco Bilbao Vizeaya Argentaria, 8.A,
Via de los Poblados s/n, 2* Planta
Madrid 28033 — Spain

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

PART [B] - OTHER INFORMATION

(i) If  syndicated, names and
addresses of Managers and
underwriting commitments:

(in Date of Subscription Agreement:

(iii) Stabilising Manager(s) (if any):

If non-syndicated, name and
address of Dealer:
Total commission and
" concession:
Additional selling restrictions:
LISTING
(i) Listing:

(iiy Admission to trading:

lrish Stock Exchange

Application has been made for the Instruments to be

admitted to trading on 07 May 2007 with etfect
from 07% May 2007

RATINGS

Ratings:

Not Applicable

The above disclosure should reflect the rating
allocated to Instruments of the typec being issued
under the Programme generally or, where the issue
has been specifically rated, that rating.




NOTIFICATION

The Irish Financial Regulator (FR) has provided AFM (Autoriteit Financigle Markten)
(the Netherlands), The UK Listing Authority (United Kingdom) {the Financial Services
Avuthority, acting as competent authority for listing); BaFin (Bundesanstalt fir
Finanzdienstleistungsaufsicht) (Germany); CSSF (Commission dc Surveillance du
Secteur Financier) (Luxembourg); Comision Naciona) de Mercado de Valores (CNMV)
(Spain), Commissione Nazionale per la Societa e la Borsa (CONSOB) (ltaly), Autorité
des Merchés Financiers (AMF)} (France), Finanstilsynet (Denmark); Comision Bancaire,
Financiere et des Assurances (Belgium); and FMA Finanzmartaufsich (Austria) with a
certificate of epproval attesting that the Prospectus has been drawn up in accordance
with the Prospectus Directive.

INTERESTS OF NATURAL AND LEGAL PERSONS INVOLVED IN THE
ISSUE

Save as discussed, so far as the Issuer is aware, no person involved in the offer of the
Instruments has an interest material to the offer.

ESTIMATED NET PROCEEDS

0] Bstimated net proceeds: EUR 2,619,000

(in Estimate - of total EUR 2,500
expenses related to the
admission 1o trading;

FIXED RATE INSTRUMENTS ONLY - YIELD
Indication of yield: Not Applicable
FLOATING RATE INSTRUMENTS ONLY - HISTORIC INTEREST RATES

Details of historic EURIBOR 3Month and EURIBOR|2Month rates can be obtained
from Reuters screen EURIBORO1

Index-Linked or other variable-linked Instruments only — PERFORMANCE OF
INDEX/FORMULA/QOTHER VARIABLE, EXPLANATION OF EFFECT ON
VALUE OF INVESTMENT AND ASSOCIATED RISKS AND OTHER
INFORMATION CONCERNING THE UNDERLYING

Not Applicable

Dual Currency Instruments only — PERFORMANCE OF RATE[S] OF
EXCHANGE AND EXPLANATION OF EFFECT ON VALUE OF
INVESTMENT




Not Applicable

10. OPERATIONAL INFORMATION
ISIN Code: X50298348730
Common Code: - 029834873

Cerman  Securities Code
(WKN): Not Applicable

New  Global Instrument
intended to be held in a
manner which would allow
Eurosystem cligibility: No

Any <learing system(s) other
than Euroclear Bank
S.AM.V. as operator of the
Eurcclear  System  and
Clearstream Banking, société
anonyme and the relevant

identification number(s): Not Applicable
. Delivery: Delivery against payment
Fiscal Agent: Deutsche Bank AG, London Branch

Names and  addresscs  of
additional Paying Agent(s)
(if any): Not Applicable

Tradeable Amounts: EUR 1,000

LISTING AND ADMISSION TQ TRADING APPLICATION

These Final Terms comprise the final terms required to list and have admitted to trading the
issue of Instruments described herein pursuant to the €40,000,000,000 Programme for the
{ssuance of Debt Instruments of DEPFA BANK plc, DEPFA DEUTSCHE
PFANDBRIEFBANK AG and DEPFA ACS BANK.

RESPONSIBILITY
The Jssuer accepls responsibility for the information contained in these Final Terms.
Signed on behalf of the Issuer:

By: ...

Duly authorised P
[ g

Associalgm Barry Stoneham
Managing Diractor
DEPFA BANK Pic DEPEA BANK Pic
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Final Terms dated 3 May 2007
DEPFA BANK ple

Issue of RON 200,000,000 Fixed Rate Instruments due 9 May 2012 under the
€40,000,000,000 Programme for the Iasuance of Debt Instruments of
DEPFA BANK plc
DEPFA DEUTSCHE PFANDBRIEFBANK AG
DEPFA ACS BANK

PART A - CONTRACTUAL TERMS

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions set
forth in the Prospectus dated 30 June 2006 which constitutes a base prospectus for the purposes
of the Prospectus Directive (Directive 2003/71/EC) (thc "Prospectus Directive"). This
document constitutes the Final Terms of the Instruments described herein for the purposes of
Article 5.4 of the Prospectus Directive and must be read in conjunction with such Prospectus.
Full information on the Issuer and the offer of the Instruments is only availablc on the basis of
the combination of these Final Terms and the Prospectus. The Prospectus is available for
viewing at DEPFA Bank ple, 1 Commons Street, Dublin 1, Ireland and at
www._financialregulator.je and copies may be obtained from DEPFA Bank ple, 1 Commons
Street, Dublin 1, kreland. No website referred to in these Final Terms and the Prospectus forms
part of these Final Terns and the Prospectus.

1. Issuer: DEPFA BANK PLC
2. Series Number: 1088
3. Specified Currency or Currencies: Romanian New Leu ("RON™)
4, Agprepgate Nominal Amount: RON 200,000,000
5. Issue Price: 100.57 per cent of the Aggregate Nominal
Amount
6. Specified Denominations: RON 5,000
7. (i) Issue Date: 9 May 2007
(i) interest Commencement Date: S May 2007
8. Maturity Date: 9 May 2012
9. Interest Basis: 6.75 per cent. Fixed Rate

10, Redemption/Payment Basis: Redemption at par




11, Change of Interest or Not Applicable

Redemption/Payment Basis:
12."  Put/Call Options: Not Applicable
13, Status of the Instruments: Senior Unsubordinated and Unsecured
14, Method of distribution: Unsyndicated

PROVISIONS RELATING TO INTEREST (IF ANY) PAYABLE

15.  Fixed Rate Instrument Provisions Applicable
(i) Rate of Interest: 6.75 per cent. per annum payzble annually
in arrear
(it  Interest Payment Date{s): 9 May in each year commencing on 9 May

2008 and ending on the Maturity Date,
adjusted in accordance with the Following
Business Day Convention

(iii)  Fixed Coupon Amount: RON 337.50 per RON 5,000 in Nominal
Amount

iy  Broken Amount(s): Not Applicable

(  Day Count Fraction: Actual/Actual (ICMA)

(viy  Determination Dates: 9 May in éach year commencing on 9 May

2008 and ending on the Maturity Date

(vii)y  Other terms relating to the method Not Applicable
of calculating interest for Fixed
Rate instruments:

16.  Floating Rate Instrument Provisions Not Applicable
17.  Zero Conpon Instrament Provisions Nat Applicable

18.  Index-Linked Interest Instrument/other Not Applicable
variable-linked  interest  Instrument
Provisions

19.  Dual Currency Instrument Provisions Not Applicable
PROVISIONS RELATING TO REDEMPTION
20.  Call Option Not Applicable

21.  Put Option Not Applicable

UK/1239565/03 _ -2- 248163/70-40263083




GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO THE INSTRUMENTS

22,

23

Final Redemption Amount of each
Instrument

Early Redemption Amount

Early Redemption Amount(s) of each
instruyment payable on redemption for
taxation reasons ot on event of default or
other early redemption and/or the method
of calculating the same (if required or if
different from that set out in the
Conditions):

RON 5,000 per Instrument of RON 5,000
specified denomination

Not Applicable

GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO THE INSTRUMENTS

24,

25,

26.

27.

28,

29,

30.

31.

32.

Form of [nstruments:

New Global Instrument:

Additional Financial Centre{s) or other
special provisions relating to Payment
Dates:

Talons for future Coupons or Receipts to
be attached to Definitive Bearer
Instruments (and dates on which such
Talons mature):

Details  relating to  Partly Paid
Instruments; amount of each payment
comprising the Issue Price and date on
which each payment is to be made:

Details relating to Instalment Instruments:
amount of each instalment, date on which
each payment is to be made:

Redenomination, renominalisation and
reconventioning provisions:

Consolidation provisions:

Other final terms:

UK/1239565/03 -3.

Bearer instruments:

Permanent Global Instrument
exchangeable for Definitive Instruments in
the limited circumstances specified in the
Permanent Global Instrument

No

London, Bucharest, TARGET

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

The provisions in Condition 19 apply

" Not Applicable

248163/70-4026308)




33, If syndicated, names and addresses of WNot Applicable
Managers and underwriting

commitments:

34. If non-syndicated, name and address of J.P. Morgan Securities Ltd

Dealer:

35.  Total commission and concession:

36.  Additional selling restrictions:

UK/1239565/03

125 London Wall
London EC2Y 5AJ
United Kingdom

Selling Concession of 1.60 per cent. of the
Apgregale Nominal Amount

Combined Management and Underwriting
Commission of 0.275 per cent. of the
Aggregate Nominal Amount.

Romania

The Instruments have not been and will not
be registered under Law No. 297/2004
regarding capital market ("Capital Market
Law") and may not be offered, sold, traded
or delivered within Romanian territory
without the prior approval of or notification
to the Romanian National Securities
Commission ("RNSC").

The Manager has represented and agreed
that neither the Prospectus nor any other
offering material related to the sale or
distribution of the securities under this
programme be used in the Romanian
territory and/or to residents of Romania,
unless such sale or distribution is in
cowpliance with the Capital Market Law
and applicable regulations issued by the
RNSC, and other Romanian retevant laws
and rcgulations, including any applicable
exchange laws,

248163/70-4026308)




PART B - OTHER INFORMATION

LISTING

(i) Listing: Irish Stock Exchange

(i)  Admission to trading: Application has been made for the
Instruments to be admitted to trading on
the Irish Stock Exchange with effect from
9 May 2007.

RATINGS

Ratings: Not Applicable

NOTIFICATION

The Trish Financial Regulator has provided: AFM (Autoriteit Financiéle Murkten) (the
Netherlands); UK Listing Authority (the Financial Services Authority, acting as
competent authority for listing) (United Kingdom), BeFin (Bundesanstalt fir
Finarediensileistimgsaufsicht) (Germany); CSSF (Commission de Swrveillance du
Secteur Financier) (Luxembourg); CNMV (Comision Nacional de Mercado de Valores)
(Spain); CONSOB (Commissione Nazionale per la Societa ¢ la Borsa) (ltaly). AMF
(Adutorité des Merchés Financiers) (France). Fincmstilymet (Denmark); Commission

Bancaire, Financiere et des Assurances (Belgium); and FMA (Finanzmarktaufsicht)

(Austria) with a certificate of approval attesting that the Propsectus has been drawn up in
accordance with the Praspective Directive.

INTERESTS OF NATURAL AND LEGAL PERSONS INVYOLVED IN THE
ISSUE

Save 8s discussed in "Subscription and Sale”, so far as the Issner is aware, no person
involved in the offer of the Instruments has an interest material to the offer.

ESTIMATED NET PROCEEDS
) Estimated net proceeds; RON 197,390,000.00

(i) Estimate of total expenses rclat_ud to EUR 2,500
the admission to trading:

FIXED RATE INSTRUMENTS ONLY - YIELD
Indication of yield: 6.612 per cent.

The yield is calculated at the Issue Dale on
the basis of the Issue Price. [t is not an
indication of future yield.

OPERATIONAL INFORMATION

ISIN Code: X50296421414

UK/1239565/03 S -5- 248163/70-40263083




Common Code:
German Securities Code (WKN):

New Global Instrument intended to be
held in a manner which would allow
Eurosystem cligibility:

Any clearing system(s) other than
Euroclear Bank S.A/N.V. and Clearstream

Banking, société  anonyme and the
relevant identification number(s):
Delivery:

Fiscal Agent:

Names and addresses of additional Paying
Agent(s) (if any);

Tradeable Amounts:

029642141
Not Applicable

No

Not Applicable

Delivery against payment
Deutsche Bank AG, London Branch

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

LISTING AND ADMISSION TO TRADING APPLICATION

These Final Terms comprise the final terms required to list and have admitted to tradiog the
issue of (nstruments described herein pursuant to the €40,000,000,000 Programme for the
Issuance of Debt Instruments of DEPFA BANK ple, DEPFA DEUTSCHE
PFANDBRIEFBANK AG and DEPFA ACS BANK,

UK/£239565/03 248163/70-40263083



RESPONSIBILITY
The Issuer accepts responsibility for the information contained in these Final Terms.
Signed on behalf of the Issuer:;

BY: e
Duly authorised

DEPFA BANK Plc Barry Stongham

Managing Director
. DEPFA BANK Pic

UK/1239565/03 -7- 248162/770-40263082
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Final Terms dated 9 May 2007

DEPFA BANK pk
Issue of EUR 5,000,000 Fixed Rate Notes due May 2017
under the EUR 40,000,000,000 Programme for the Issuance of Debt Instruments

PART A - CONTRACTUAL TERMS

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions set
forth in the Prospectus dated 30 June 2006 which constitutes a base prospectus for the purposes
of the Prospectus Directive (Dircctive 2003/71/EC) (the "Prospectus Directive"). This
document constitutes the Fina! Terms of the Instruments described herein for the purposes of
Article 5.4 of the Prospectus Directive and must be read in conjunction with such Prospectus.
Full information on the Issuer and the offer of the Instruments is only available on the basis of
the combination of theése Final Terms and the Prospectus. The Prospectus is available for
viewing at DEPFA BANK plc, | Commons Street, Dublin |, Ireland and at
www financialregulator.ie and copies may be obtained from the Issuer 2t 1 Commons Street,
Dublin 1, Ireland. No website referred to in these Final Terras and the Prospectus forms part of
these Final Terms and the Prospectus.

1. Issuer DEPFA BANK ple
2. W Serics Number: 1089 .

(i} Tranche Number; 1
3.  Specified Currency or Currencies: Euro (“EUR"}

4. Aggregale Nomina! Amount:

(i) Series; EUR 5,000,000
(i) Tranche: EUR 5,000,000
5. Issue Price: 100.00 per cent of the Aggregate Nominal
Amount
6. Specified Denominations: EUR 50,000 |
7. ) Issue Date: 14 May 2007
(ii) Interest Commencement Date 14 May 2007
8.  Maturity Date: 14 May 2017

9.  Interest Basis: 4,99 per cent, Fixed Rate
' (further particulars specified below)

10. Rcdemptio-anaymcnt Basis: Redemption at par

11.  Change of Interest or Redemption/Payment  Not Applicable
Basis:




12.

13.

Put/Call Options:

(i) Status of the Instruments:

(i) Date Board approval for issuance

of Instruments obtained:

14. Method of distribution:

[ssuer Call
(further particulars specified below)-
Senior, Unsecured, Unsubordinated

Not Applicable

Non-syndicated

PROVISIONS RELATING TO INTEREST (IF ANY) PAYABLE

15.

16,

17.

19.

Fixed Rate Instroment Provisions

(1) Rates of Interest:

(i) Interest Payment Dates:

{iii) Fixed Coupon Amounts:

(iv) Broken Amount;
{v) Day Count Fraction:
(vi) Determination Dates:

(vii) Other terms relating to the
method of calculsting interest for
Fixed Rate Instruments:

Floating Rate Instrument Provisions
Zero Coupon Instrument Provisions

Index-Linked Interest Instrument/other
variable-linked interest Tostrument
Provisions

Dual Currency Instrument Provisions

Applicable

4.99 per cent. per annum payable annuaily
in arrear.

The coupon will remain unadjusted, being
a fixed amount as set out below

The 14® May in cach year, from and
including the 14® May 2008, to and
including the Maturity Date, as adjusted in
accordance with the Modified Following
Business Day Convention.

For the avoidance of doubt each Interest
Period shall be unadjusted for the purpose
of calculating the Interest Amount.

EUR 2,495 per EUR 50,000 in Nominal
Amount

Not Applicable
301360
Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable
Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable




PROVISIONS RELATING TO REDEMPTION

20.

21.

Call Option

(i} Optional Redemption Date(s):

(i) Optional Redemption Amount(s)
of each Instrument and method, if
any, of calculation of such
amount(s);

(iii) If redeemable in part:

{a) Minimum
Redemption Amount:

{b Maximum
Redemption Amount:

(iv) Notice Period:

Put Option

Applicable

The Issuer may, having given #rrevocable
notice to the Noteholders, redeem the
Notes in whole, but not in part, on the 14th
May in cach year, from and including the
14th May 2008, to and including the 14th
May 2016, subject to adjustment in
accordance with the Modified Business
Day Convention (each on “Optional
Redemption Date™)

EUR 50,000 per Instrument of EUR 50,000
specified denomination

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

The Issuer will give notice of the exercise
of the option to redeem of not less than 5
{(five) TARGET Business Days prior to the
Optional Redemption Date.

Not Applicable

GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO THE INSTRUMENTS

22,

23,

Final Redemption Amount of each
Instrument

Early Redemption Amount

Early Redemption Amount(s) of each
Instrument payable on redemption for
taxation reasons or bn cvent of default or
other early redemption and/or the method
of calculating the same (if required or if
different from that set out in the
Conditions):

Not Applicable

As set out in the Conditions

GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO THE INSTRUMENTS

24,

Form of Instruments:

Bearer [nstruments:



25. New Global Instrument

26. Additional Financial Centre(s) or other
special provisions relating to  Payment
Dates:

27.. Talons for future Coupons or Receipts to
be attached to Definitive Bearer
Instruments (and dates on which such
Talons mature):

28. Details relating to Partly Paid Instruments:
amount of each paymemt comprising the
Issue Price and date on which each
payment is to be made:

29, Details relating to instalment Instruments:
amount of each instalment, date on which
cach payment is to be made:

30. Redenomination, renominalisation and
reconventioning provisions:

31. Consolidation provisions:

32.  Other final terms:

DISTRIBUTION

33 () If  syndicated, names  and

-addresses of Managers and
underwriting cominitments:
(ii) Date of Subscription Agrsement:
(iii) Stabilising Manager(s) (if any):

34, If non-syndicated, name and

address of Dealer:

35. Total commission and

concession:

Temporary Global Instrument
exchangesble for Permanent Global
[nstrumeat which is exchangeable for

Definitive Instruments in the limited
circumstances specified in the Permanent
Global Instrument

Yes

TARGET

No

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable
Not Applicable

Credit Suisse Securities (Europe) Limited
Ong Cabot Square
London E14 4QJ

Not Applicable




36.

Additional selling restrictions:

Taiwan

The Notes may not be sold, issued or

-publicty offered in Taiwan and may only

be made available 10 Taiwan investors on a
private placement basis outside of Taiwan.
No person or entity in Taiwan has been
authorised to offer, sell, give advice
regarding or otherwise intermediate the
offering and sale of the Notes.




PART B - OTHER INFORMATION

L.

LISTING
(i) Listing: Irish Stock Exchange

(iii) Admission to trading: Application has been made for the [nstruments to be
listed on the Irish Stock Exchange with effect from
14 May 2007

(iii) Cstimate of total expenses gy)p 2 500
related to admission to trading

RATINGS

Ratings: Not Applicable
NOTIFICATION

The Irish Financial Regulator (FR) has provided AFM {Autoriteit Financiéle Markten)
(the Netherlands); The UK Listing Authority (United Kingdom} (the Financial Services
Authority, acting as competent avthority for listing); BaFin (Bundesanstalt fir
Finanzdienstleistungsaufsicht) (Germany); CSSF (Commission de Surveillance du
Secteur Financier) (Luxembourg); Comisién Nacional de Mercado de Valores (CNMV)
(Spain), Commissione Nazionale per la Socicta ¢ la Borsa (CONSOB) (ltaly), Autorité
des Merchés Financiers (AMF) (France), Finanstitsynct (Denmark);, Comision Bancaire,
Financiere et des Assurances (Belgium); and FMA Finanzmartaufsich (Austria) with a
certificate of approval sttesting that the Prospectus has been drawn up in accordance
with the Prospectus Directive.

INTERESTS OF NATURAL AND LEGAL PERSONS INVOLVED IN THE
[ISSUE/OFFER|

Save as discussed in "Subscription and Sale” section of the Prospectus, so far as the
Issuer is aware, no person involved in the offer of the Instruments has an interest
materisl to the offer.

ESTIMATED NET PROCEEDS
(i} Estimated net proceeds: EUR 5,000,000

{ii) Estimate of total EUR 2,500
expenses related to the
admission to trading:

FIXED RATE INSTRUMENTS ONLY - YIELD
[ndication of yield: 4.99 per cent.
As calculated on the Issue Date,
FLOATING RATE INSTRUMENTS ONLY - HISTORIC INTEREST RATES

Not Applicable




10.

Index-Linked or other variable-linked Instruments only — PERFORMANCE OF
INDEX/FORMULA/OTHER VARIABLE, EXPLANATION OF EFFECT ON
VALUE OF INVESTMENT AND ASSOCIATED RISKS AND OTHER
INFORMATION CONCERNING THE UNDERLYING

Not Applicable

Dual Currency Instruments only - PERFORMANCE OF RATES OF EXCHANGE
AND EXPLANATION OF EFFECT ON VALUE OF INVESTMENT

Not Applicable

OPERATIONAL INFORMATION

ISIN Code:
Common Code:

New  Global  Instrument
intended to be held in a
manner which would allow

Eurosystem eligibility:

German  Securities Code
{(WKN):

Any clearing system(s) other
than Euroclear Bank
S.A/N.V. as operator of the
Euroclear  System  and
Clearstream Banking, société
enonyme &nd the relevant
identification number(s):

Delivery:
Fiscal Agent:
Calculation Agent:

Names and addresses of
additional Paying Agent(s) (if
any):

RESPONSIBILITY

=T B SN L=
e e

XS0297115692
029711569

Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Delivery against payment
Deutsche Bank AG, London Branch
Credit Suisse Securities (Europe) Limited

Not Applicable

The Issuer accepts responsibility for the information contained in these Final Terms.

Signed on behalf of the Issuer:

By: e

Duly authorised A
A ﬁg.: m

Barry Stoneham

Mari Moreno oy Direstr

Associate

DEPFA BANK Plc

TYRPFA RANYK Pl»




Final Terms dated 29" May 2007

DEPFA BANK ple o <
DEPFA Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG - __'P‘?‘."r‘.‘f-; £ 5; I SN
DEPFA ACS BANK PIETHALC
Issue of EUR 20,000,000 Index Linked Interest Note -
under the €40,000,000,000 Programme for the Issnance of Debt Instroments ‘
PART A - CONTRACTUAL TERMS N
Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions %
set forth in the Prospectus dated 11 May 2007 which constitutes a base prospectus for the
purposcs of the Prospectus Directive (Directive 2003/71/EC) (the Prospectus Directive). This
document constitutes the Final Terms of the Instruments described herein for the purposes of
Article 5.4 of the Prospectus Directive and must be read in conjunction with such Prospectus.
Full information on the Issuer and the offer of the Instruments is only available on the basis of
the combination of these Final Terms and the Prospectus. The Prospectus is available for
viewing at | Commons Street, Dublin [, Ireland and at www financialregulator.ie and copies
may be obtained from the Issuer at 1 Commons Street, Dublin 1, Ireland, No website referred
to in these Final Terms and the Prospectus forms part of these Final Terms and the
Prospectus.
L. (1) Issuer: DEPFA BANK plc -
2. (i)  Series Number: 1098 3
4
(i)  Tranche Number: (If fungible with 1 5
an cxisting Secrics, details of that
Series, including the date on which
the Instruments become fungible).]
3. Specified Currency or Currencies: Euro (EUR)
4.  Aggregate Nominal Amount: 20,000,000
(D) Series: 20,000,600
(i)  Tranche: 20,000,000
5. Issue Price: 100 per cent of the Aggrepate Nominal _
Amount. 5
3
6.  Specified Denominations: EUR 1,000 \Jx
7. (i) Issue Date: 31 May 2007 '
(i)  Interest Commencement Date Not Applicable

8. Maturity Date: " 31 May 2010




9. Interest Basis: index Linked Interest
(further particulars specified below)

10. Redemption/Payment Basis: Redemption at par

11.  Change of Interest or Redemption/Payment WNot Applicable

Basis:
12.  Put/Cali Options: Not Applicable
13. () Status of the Instruments: Senior, Unsecured, Unsubordinated
14, Method of distribution: Non-syndicated

PROVISIONS RELATING TOQ INTEREST (TF ANY) PAYABLE

15.  Fixed Rate Instrument Provisions Not Applicable
16. Floating Rate Instrument Provisions Not Applicable
17.  Zero Coupon Instrument Provisions Not Applicable

18. Index-Linked Interest lnstrument/other Applicable
variable-linked  interest  Instrument
Provisions

(1) Index/Formula/other variable: Applicable

(i) Calculation Agent responsible for Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A.
calculating the interest due:

(ii)  Provisions for determining Coupon
where calculated by reference to
Index and/or Formula and/or other
variable:

The Interest Amount will be payable on the Maturity Date and will be calculated by the
Calculation Agent in accordance with the following provisions:

a) If all Closing Prices of the Index on any Exchange Business Day from the Initial Valuation
Date to and including the Final Valuation date are greater than 55% of the Initial Price, the
Interest Amount will be calculated in accordance with the following formula:

Sp* Max{{); 500 * [F inalPrice— InitialPr zceﬂ . Ma{O; SO%* [ InitialPrice— F malPrtce]]

InitialPrice InitialPrice

b) Otherwise, if any Closing Price of the Index on any Exchange Business Day from the Initial
Valuation Date to and including the Final Valuation date is equal to or less than 55% of the Initial
Price, no Interest Amount will be payable and the Note will redeem at par on the Maturity Date.




Where

“Clasing Price™ means the official closing price of the Index on each Scheduled Trading Day as
published by the Tndex Sponsor.

“Exchange” means in respect of each component security of the Index (each a “Component
Security”) the principal stock exchange of the euro zone countries on which such Component
Securities are principally traded.

“Exchange Business Day” means any Scheduled Trading day on which the Index Sponsor
publishes the level of the Index and the Related Exchange is open for trading during its regular
trading session, notwithstanding any such Exchange or Related Exchange closing prior to its
Scheduled Closing Time.

“Final Price” means the Closing Price of the index as published by the Index Sponsor on the
Final Valuation Date.

“Final Valuation Date” means May 28, 2010 or, if such day is not a Scheduled Trading Day, the
immediately following day that is a Scheduled Trading Day unless such day is a Disrupted Day.
If the Calculation Agent determines that such day is a Disrupted Day then the Calculation Agent
in its sole discretion shall do whatever it deems necessary in the circumstances to determine the
level of the Index which may include (without limitation) taking the level of the Index preceding
or following the occurrence of such Disrupted Day or estimating the level of the Index that would
have prevailed but for the occurrence of the Disrupted Day.

“Index” means the Dow Jones EURO STOXX 50°™ Index (SX5E), an Index of 50 blue chips of
Eurozone countries which is calculated and published by Stoxx Limited (the “Sponsor™).

“TInitial Price™ means the Closing Price of the Index as published by the Index Sponsor on the
Initial Valuation Date

“Initial Valuation Date™ means May 31, 2007 or, if such day is not a Scheduled Trading Day,
the immediately following day that is a Scheduled Trading Day unless such day is a Disrupted
Day. If the Calculation Agent determines that such day is a Disrupted Day then the Calculation
Agent in its sole discretion shall do whatever it deems necessary in the circumstances (o
determine the level of the Index which may include (without limitation) taking the level of the
Index preceding or following the occurrence of such Disrupted Day or estimating the level of the
Index that would have prevailed but for the occurrence of the Disrupted Day.

“Max”, means Maximum
“Related Exchange” means EUREX DEUTSCHLAND.

“8.D.” means Specified Denomination.




(iv)  Determination Date(s): Maturity Date

) Provisions for determining Coupon
where calculation by reference 1o
Index and/or Formula andfor other
variable is impossible or
impracticable or otherwise
disrupted:

“Market Disruption Event” means either;
{i) (a) the occurrence or existence, in respect of any Component Security, of:

{1) a Trading Disruption in respect of such Component Security, which the Calculation Agent
determines is material, at any time during the one hour period that ends at the relevant Valuation
Time in respect of the Exchange on which such Component Security is principally traded.

(2) An Exchange Disruption in respect of such Component Security, which the Calculation Agent
determines is material, at any time during the one hour period that ends at the relevant Valuation
Time in respect of the Exchange on which such Component Security is principally traded; OR

(3) An Early Closure in respect of such Component Security; AND

The aggregate of all Component Securities in respect of which a Trading Disruption, an Exchange
Disruption or an Early Closure occurs or exists comprises 20 per cent or more of the level of the
Index; OR

(ii) the occurrence or existence, in respect of futures or options contracts relating to the Index, of:
{a) a Trading Disruption; (b) an Exchange Disruption, which in either case the Calculation Agent
determines is material, at any time during the one hour period that ends at the Valuation Time in
respect of the Related Exchange; or (c) an Early Closure, in each case in respect of such fuwres or
options contracts. For the purposes of determining whether a Market Disruption Event exists in
respect of the Index at any time, if a Market Disruption Event occurs in respect of a Component
Security at that time , then the relevant percentage contribution of that Component Security to the
level of the Index shall be based on a comparison of (x) the pertion of the level of the Index
attributable to that Component Security to (y) the overall level of the Index, in each case using the
official opening weightings as published by the Sponsor as part of the market “opening data”.

“Trading Disruption™ means any suspension of or limitation imposed on trading by the relevant
Exchange or Related Exchange or otherwise and whether by reason of movements in prices
exceeding limits permitted by the relevant Exchange or Related Exchange or otherwise: (i)
refating to any Component Security on the Exchange in respect of such Component Security; or
(i1) futures or options contracts relating to the Index on the Related Exchange.

Exchange Disruption means any event (other than Early Closure) that disrupts or impairs (as
determined by the Calculation Agent) the ability of market participants in general to effect
transactions in, or obtain market values for: (I} any Component Security on the Exchange in
respect of such Component Security; or (ii) futures or options contracts relating to the Index on




the Related Exchange. -

Early Closure means the closure on any Exchange Business Day of the Exchange in respect of
any Component Security or the Related Exchange prior to its Scheduled Closing Time unless
such earlier closing is announced by such Exchange or Related Exchange (as the case may be) at
least one hour prior to the earlier of: (i) the actual closing time for the regular trading session on
such Exchange or Related Exchange (as the case may be) on such Exchange Business Day; and
(i1} the submission deadline for orders to be entered into the Exchange or Related Exchange
system for execution at the relevant Valuation Time on such Exchange Business Day.

Disrupted Day means any Scheduled Trading Day on which: (i} the Index Sponsor fails to
publish the level of the Index; (ii) the Related Exchange fails to open for trading during its regular
trading session; or (iii) a Market Disruption Event has ocecurred.

Valuation Time: Means i) for purposes of determining whether a Market Disruption Event has
occurred:

-in respect of any Component Security, the Scheduled Closing Time on the Exchange in respect
of such Component Security and

-in respect of any options contracts or future contracts on the Index, the close of trading on the
Related Exchange; and

il) in all other circumstances, the time in which the official closing level of the Index is
calculated and published by the Index Sponsor.

“Scheduled Trading Day” means any day on which: i) the Index Sponsor publishes the level of
the [ndex and ii) the Related Exchange is scheduled to be open for trading for their respective
regular trading sessions.

“Scheduled Closing Time” means in respect of the Exchange or Related Exchange and a
Scheduled Trading Day, the scheduled weekday closing time of such Exchange or Related
Exchange on such Scheduled Trading Day. without regard to after hours or any other trading
outside of the regular trading sessions hours.

Adjustments to the Index:

If the Index is (i) not calculated and announced by the Index Sponsor but is calculated and
announced by a successor sponsor acceptable to the Calculation Agent, or (ii) replaced by a
successor index using, in the determination of the Calculation Agent, the same or a substantially
similar formula for and method of calculation as used in the calculation of that lndex, then in each
case that index (the “Successor Index’} will be deemed to be the Index.

If on or prior to any Valnation Date, a relevant Index Sponsor announces that it will make a
material change in the formula for or the method of calculating that Index or in any other way
materially modifies that Index (other than a modification prescribed in that formula or method 1o
maintain that Index in the event of changes in constituent stock and capitalization and other
routine events) or permanently cancels the Index and no Successor Index exists or on any
Valuation Date, the Index Sponsor fails to calculate and announce the Index, then the Calculation




Agent shall determine if any such event has a material effect on this transaction, and if so, shall

calculate the relevant price on any valuation date, using in lieu of a published level far that Index,
the level for that Index as at that Valuation Date as determined by the Calculation Agent in
accordance with the formula and method of calculating that Index last in effect prior to the
change, failure or cancellation, but using only those securities that comprised that Index
immediately prior to that event.

19.

{(vi)  Interest or calculation period(s):
(vii)  Specified Interest Payment Dates:

(viii) Business Day Convention:

(ix}  Business Centre(s):

“(x) Minimwn Rate/Amount of Interest:

(xiy  Maximum Rate/Amount of [nterest:
(xii)  Day Count Fraction:

Dual Currency Instrument Provisions

PROVISIONS RELATING TQ REDEMPTION

20.
21.

22,

Call Option
Put Option

Final Redemption Amount of each
Instrument

Early Redemption Amount

Early Redemption Amount(s) of each
Instrument payable on redemption for
taxation reasons or on event of default or
other early redemption and/or the method of
calculating the same (if required or if
different from that set out in the
Conditions):

Not Applicable
Not Applicable

Modified  Following  Business  Day
Convention

Target, L.ondon
Not Applicable
Not Applicable
30/360

Not Applicable

Not Applicable
Not Applicable

EUR 1,000 per Instrument of EUR 1,000
specified denomination.

As per Conditions

GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO THE INSTRUMENTS

24.

Form of [nstruments:

Bearer Instruments:

Permanent Global Instrument exchangeable
for Definitive Instruments on in the limited
circumstances specified in the Permanent




25. New Global Instrument:

26. Additional Financial Centre(s) or other
special provisions relating to Payment
Dates:

27.  Talons for future Coupons or Receipts to be
attached to Definitive Instruments (and dates
on which such Talons mature):

28. Deails relating to Partly Paid Instruments:
amount of each payment comprising the
Issue Price and date on which each payment
is to be made [and consequences (if any) of
failure to pay, including any right of the
Issuer to forfeit the Instruments and interest
due on late payment):

29.  Details relating to Instalment Instruments:
amount of each instalment, date on which
each payment is to be made:

30. Redenomination, renominalisation and
reconventioning provisions:

31. Consolidation provisions:

32.  Other final terms:

DISTRIBUTION

33, ) If syndicated, names [and addresses]'

of Managers [and underwriting
commitments]'

34. If non-syndicated, name and address of
Dealer: ’

35. Total commission and concession:

Global Tnstrument.
No

Not Applicable

No

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A.
Ciudad Grupo Santander Edificio Encinar

Planta Baja, 28660 Boadilla del Monte
Madrid

Spain

Not Applicable

' Only applicable to Tranches of Instruments with a denomination of fess than €50.000 or equivalen! in other
currencics.




36.  Additional selling restrictions: Not Applicable




PART B - OTHER INFORMATION

LISTING

() Listing: Irish Stock Exchange

(i) Admission to trading Application has been made for the
Instruments to be admitted to trading on the
irish Stock Exchange with effect from the
Issue Date.

RATINGS

Ratings: Not Applicable

NOTTFICATION

The Irish Stock Exchange Limited has provided the provided AFM (Autoriteit Financiéle
Markten) (the Netherlands); The UK Listing Authority (United Kingdom) (the Financial
Services Authority, acting as competent authority for listing); BaFin (Bundesanstalt fiir
Finanzdienstleistungsaufsicht) (Germany); CSSF (Commission de Surveillance du
Secteur Financier) (Luxembourg); Comisiéon Nacional de Mercado de Valores (CNMV)
(Spain), Commissione Wazionale per la Socicta ¢ la Borsa (CONSOB) (ltaly). Autorité
des Merchés Financiers (AMF) (France), Finanstilsynet (Denmark); Comision Bancaire,
Financiere et des Assurances (Belgium); and FMA Finanzmartaufsich (Austria) with a
certificate of approval attesting that the Prospectus has been drawn up in accordance with
the Prospectus Directive.

INTERESTS OF NATURAL AND LEGAL PERSONS INVOLVED IN THE ISSUE

Save as discussed in "Subscription and Sale”, so far as the Issuer is aware, no person
involved in the offer of the Notes has an interest material to the offer.

REASONS FOR THE OFFER, ESTIMATED NET PROCEEDS AND TOTAL
EXPENSES' ‘

(i) Reasons for the offer See "Use of Proceeds” wording in
Praspectus

(i) Estimated net proceeds: EUR 20,000,000




PERFORMANCE OF INDEX/FORMULA/other variable, and other information

concerning the underlying

, Past and future performance and volatility of the Index indicated in the Annex can be
obtained through BLOOMBERG Screen WEL

The Interest Amount of each Note is linked to the DJ Euro Stoxx 50 Index which means:
the Dow Jones Euro Stoxx 50, an Index of the 50 most capitalized companics of the euro
zone countries, which is calculated and published by Stoxx Limited.

OPERATIONAL INFORMATION
ISIN Code:

Common Code:

German Securities C.ode (WKN):

New Global Instrument intended to be
held in a manner which would allow
Eurosystem eligibility:

Any clearing system(s) other than
Euroclear Bank SA/NV and Clearstream
Banking, société anonyme and the
relevant identification number(s):

Delivery:

Names and addresses of additional Paying
Agent(s) (if any):

X50299580844
(29958084
Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Delivery against

Not Applicable

LISTING AND ADMISSION TO TRADING APPLICATION

These Final Terms comprise the final terms required to list and have admitted to trading the
issue of Instruments described herein pursuant to the €40,000,000,000 Programme for the
Issuance of Debt Instruments of DEPFA BANK plc, DEPFA Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG
and DEPFA ACS BANK.

RESPONSIBILITY

The Issuer accepts responsibility for the information contained in these Final Terms.

Signed on behalf of the Issuer:

d\'\'\\q CC!-\.‘SQ q;\AQ,« ...............

Philip Cotscadden
Associate

Depfa Bank Plc

Barry Stoneham

Managing Director
DEPFA BANK Plc



NOtiCe o7 cnange in aireClors or secretaries or

in their particulars

$195 Companies Act 1963 {inseried by s51 Companies Act 1880, and
‘amended by s47 Companies (Amendment){(No. 2) Act 1999 and by
$91 Company Law Enforcement Act 2001)

S5249A Companies Act 1990 (inserted by s107 Company Law
Enforcement Act 2001)

543, s44 (other than subsection (2)) and 545 {other than subsections
(3)(b) and {5)) Companies (Amendment}{No. 2} Act 1999

Companies Act 1890 (Form and Coentent of Documents
Delivered to Registrar) Regulations 2002

Tick box if bond
is attached |:|

hote six

Company number
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CRO receipt date stamp

Companies Acts 1963 to 2003

B10

Please complete using black typescript or BOLD CAPITALS, referring to explanatory notes

Company name ) DEPFA BANK Public Limited Company
in fun Limited
Change(s) . ) Dr. Reinhard Grzesik has resigned as a Director of the Company
rote one
Day Month Year
Date change(s) take(s) effect. [2 ]OJ m |4 ] |2 I(m IT—l
New secretary/directo Please give details below of the person who has coﬁsented in writing to become secretary
:nﬂfe’fr‘r‘a"tivgc;’::tzrf anqlor director. (continued overteal) note two
Surname Former surname
Forename Former forename
nofe three Day Month Year nate four
Date of birth f ] | | I | [ I I Irish resident D Alternate director I:l
note five . note six note seven
Residential address
note three
Business occupation Nationality
ess r?ore five note five [

Other directorships

Consent
note ten

Company note eight

Company number

Place of incorporation note nine

| hereby consent to act as:

D director of the aforementioned company and | acknowledge that as director | have legal duties
and obligations - imposed by the Companies Acts, other -enactments and at common law.

D secretary of the

secretary | have legal

Signature

aforementioned
duties and obligations

company and | acknowiledge that - as
imposed by the Companies Acts.

Date

‘

Continue overloaf for certification

Presenter details D

Name DEPFA BANK Public Limited Company
Address 1 Commons Street, Dublin 1, Ireland
DX number DX exchange
Telephone number +353 1 792 2222 Fax number +353 1 792 2211
E-mail ' Reference number

Farm effective date: 15 February 2005




i Sumame

Former surname '

Forename Former forename L
noie three note four
Day Month Year
Date of birth L1 LT lrish resident [ ] Alternate director ||
note five note six note seveh
Residential address
note three
Business occupation [_ J Nationality [ |
note five note five
Ofther directorships Company note eight Ptace of incorporation note nine Company number
Consent | hereby consent to act as:
te t . . R
note fen D director of the aforementioned company and | acknowledge that as director | have legal duties
. and obligations imposed by the Companies Acts, other enactments and at common law.
D secretary of the aforementioned company and | acknowledge that as
secretary | have legal duties and obligations imposed by the Companies Acts.
-Signature Date
| Surname Former surname
! Forename | Former forename
; note three mate four
_ Day Month Year
pateofoite [ [ ] [T ] [T T[T Irish resident [ ] Alternate director || .
note five note six nofe seven
Residential address
note three
Business occupation P ] Nationality | |
nmate five note five
Olther directorships Company note eight Place of incorporation nofe nine Company number
Consent I hereby consent to act as:
note len

1

D director of the aforementioned company and | acknowledge that as director { have legal duties
and obligations imposed by the Companies Acts, other enactments and at common law,

D secrelary of the
secretary | have

Signature

legal

aforementioned
duties and obligations

company and |

Date

acknowledge that as
imposed by the Companies Acts.

il

Certification _)

| hereby certify that the particulars contained in this form are correct and have been given in accordance
with the Notes on Completion of Form B10. ' '

Signature

1
r
"

D Director

Secretary rote eleven Date

tName in bold capitals or typescript

[Elaine Tiernan

[26th April 2007

il
]




COMPANIES REGISTRATION OFFICE

RESEIVED

ML A 2Ly _
Special Resolution Companies Acts, 1963 to 2006 Registration fee

FiOEOr BITIOE AT stamp to be
CORPORATE FIHANLCE ) fixed above
Form No

GI
(16)

This form must be typewritten

Section 141 of the Companies Act 1963 Company Number 348819
Company Name in full DEPFA BANK Public Limited Company

AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the members of the Company, duly convened and
held at the Four Seasons Hotel, Dublin 4, Ireland

on the 20™ Day April Month 2007 Year

the following Special resolutions were dl-lly passed:

Please see attached

I hereby certify that the above particulars are correct ] Director D/Company Secretary Date Qé‘mHPﬂlL 2o
Signature % z '/ g/;:' ) .

Name Block letters please Elaine Tiernan

Presenter's name McCann FitzGerald, Solicitors ~ Address Riverside One, Sir John
Rogerson's Quay, Dublin 2

Telephone Number 01 829 0000 Reference DJB\1456887.1




SPECIAL RESOLUTION NO. 1

That Article 81(a) of the Articles of Association of the Company be and is hereby deleted and replaced
with the following:

“The Directors may delegate any of their powers, authorities and discretions {with power to sub-
delegate) for such time, on such terms and subject to such conditions as they think fit to any
committee consisting of one or more Directors and (if thought fit) one or more other persons,
provided that, for any such committee established as an audit committee or a compensatlon
committee:

0] a majority of members of such committee shall be Directors; and

(i) no resolution of such committee shall be effective unless a majority of those present when it
is passed are Directors or alternate Directors.”

SPECIAL RESOLUTION NO. 2.

That Aricle 112 of the Articles of Association of the Company be and is hereby deleted and replaced
with the following:

“Every instrument to which the Seal (including any such official securities seal) shall be affixed shall
be signed by two persons appointed for the purpose by the Directors or a duly authorised committee
of the Directors save that as regards any certificates for shares or debentures or other securities of
the Company the Directors or such a Commitiee may determine by resolution either generalfy or in
any particular case (and subject to such restrictions as the Directors may determine) that such
signatures or either of them shall be dispensed with, or be printed thereon or affixed thereto by.
some method or system of mechanical signature.”



DEPFA BANK plc appoints Eric Schuh as Head of Investor Relations
Press and Investor Relations Release
Dublin/Frankfurt, 12 April 2007.

DEPFA BANK plc is pleased to announce the appointment of Eric Schuh (32) as its
new Head of Investor Relations effective 1 May 2007. Eric Schuh joins DEPFA
BANK from Hannover Riickversicherung AG, where he was responsible for the
reinsurance group's Corporate Communications and Investor Relations department
during the past four years. Prior to that, he worked for two years as an equity analyst
at J.P. Morgan Securities Ltd. covering European insurance stocks. Eric Schuh is a
CFA charterholder and brings with him a reputation for active and open
communication with the capital markets. Together with his team he will be based in
London.

Company Profile:
DEPFA BANK plc is a leading provider of financial services to public sector clients
worldwide. It is a Dublin-based public limited company, incorporated under Irish law,
with a network of subsidiaries and branch offices across Europe, as well as in the
Americas and Asia. DEPFA’s public finance capabilities cover a full spectrum of
products and services, and are targeted at clients across all levels of the public sector.
The DEPFA share is listed on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange, and included in the
MDAX index. it is one of the 30 largest companies traded on the German equity
market.




DEPFA BANK plc appeints Cyril Dunne as Chief Operating Officer and
Member of the Executive Committee

Press and Investor Relations Release
Dublin/Frankfurt, 25 April 2007.

DEPFA BANK plc is pleased to announce the appointment of Cyril Dunne (47) as

Chief Operating Officer and Member of the Executive Committee. His appointment,

~ which takes effect from 14 May 2007, completes the Executive Committee of DEPFA
BANK.

Cyril Dunne’s wealth of experience will further strengthen DEPFA BANK s ability to
realise its growth potential. His key responsibility will be to ensure that DEPFA has a
world class operational infrastructure that will enable the company to continue its
global expansion in a highly competitive marketplace.

Cyril Dunne joins DEPFA from Bank of Ireland Group where he was Group
Transformation Director, and Member of the Group Executive Committee.

Previously, Cyril Dunne was Strategic Development Director and IT Director for
Tesco plc in the U.K. and for Tesco Ireland respectively. He also has held senior
positions with Irish Permanent Building Society and Allied Irish Banks plc.




DEPFA BANK with a solid start in 2007

Ad hoc statement according to Irish Market Abuse Regulations

Dublin/Frankfurt, 2 May 2007.

DEPFA BANK plc released its first quarter 2007 results today. Net profit totalled €
123 m (~8% compared to Q1 2006). Net interest income stood at € 101 m (y-o-y down
6%) while net fee and commission income rose by 20% to € 6 m. Net trading income
totalled € 12 m, gains from sale of assets were up by 47.1% to € 103 m and operating
expenses rose y-o-y by 15.5% to € 67 m. Despite a y-o-y staff increase of 26% the
cost/income ratio remained at a moderate level of 30.2%. Profit before taxation
amounted to € 155 m. The operating performance remained sound in the light of an
accelerated level of investments in client activities; the combined pre-tax result of
Budget Finance, Infrastructure Finance and Client Product Services was up 12% y-o-y
to € 173 m. DEPFA BANK is confident that it is on track in its plans to create a
dynamic earnings base from its client business but adequate time must be allowed for
factors such as consistently rising gains in competitiveness and the healthy transaction
pipeline in client derivatives to feed through fully into its results. The ongoing
investments in business capacity will underpin DEPFA’s transformation into a full
service provider for the financial needs of the public sector worldwide.

Group figures Q1 2007 (IFRS)

Q12007 Q12006 Change
EUR m EUR m

Net interest income 101 107 -5.6%
Net fee and commission income - 6 5  20.0%
Net trading income 12 62 -80.6%
Gains less losses from financial assets 103 70 47.1%
Total operating income 222 244 -9.0%
Operating expenses -67 -58  15.5%
Profit before taxes . 155 186 -16.7%

Profit after taxes 123 134 -8.2%




DEPFA BANK with solid start in 2007: net profit of € 123 m in Q1

» Infrastructure Finance and Budget Finance continue strong performance?

= e

+ Global Markets under way to a more diversified trading platform

e Continued build-up of client franchise wo B
1= R |
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DEPFA BANK plc released its first quarter 2007 results today. The net profit totalled
€ 123 m, down 8% compared to Q1 2006. The operating performance remained sound
in the light of an accelerated level of investments in client activities. The combined
pre-tax result of Budget Finance, Infrastructure Finance and Client Product Services
(CPS) was up 12% year-on-year to € 173 m. However, the much lower contribution
from Global Markets activity, due in particular to changes in the interest rate
environment, has depressed earnings in the first quarter. DEPFA BANK is confident
that it is on track in its plans to create a dynamic earnings base from its client
activities but adequate time must be allowed for factors such as consistently rising
gains in competitiveness and the healthy transaction pipeline in client derivatives to
feed through fully into its results.

Net interest income amounted to € 101 m. Net interest income from the lending
business in Budget Finance was up 3% y-o-y. Carry income from Global Markets
activity was negative due to the less favourable interest rate environment. The level of
new business commitments in Budget Finance and Infrastructure Finance remained
robust in the first quarter at € 14 bn, slightly higher than the same period in 2006.
While business activity continues to be dynamic in infrastructure-related public
financing, in particular in the US market for PPP, the Bank has continued to maintain
a disciplined stance with regard to new direct lending to public sector authorities and
only taken on assets that meet DEPFA’s high standards for pricing and asset quality.
Net fee and commission income was slightly higher at € 6 m (up 20% y-o-y) and
mainly comprises income from the US liquidity facilities that are providing a very
stable and growing source of revenue.

Net trading income amounted to € 12 m, down from € 62 m compared to the first
quarter 2006, which included particularly large IFU related transactions. Client
derivative and Global Markets activity started slowly into the year, picking up only
towards the end of the reporting period. DEPFA expects subsequent quarters to
properly capture the healthy pipeline of transactions in this area.

Gains from sale of assets that mainly comprises the asset management of DEPFA’s
fully hedged Budget Finance portfolio grew considerably to € 103 m, a rise of 47% y-
o-y. Credit spread movements in a number of regional sovereign debt markets
allowed the Bank to realise substantial gains from asset sales as part of the overall
portfolio optimisation within Budget Finance.

Total expenditure rose by 16% to € 67 m. This increase is within the projected level
for the year and is linked with the Bank’s investments in increased resources to



support growth in client products and regional offices. The cost base has absorbed a
high intake of new staff from the previous year of 100 employees and a further 36
employees were added to the staff levels in the first quarter. The new hires continue to
be evenly spread between client front office and support functions including risk
management, to ensure revenue growth is properly supported by proper controls
within an expanded organisation. The cost income ratio of 30% in the first quarter
represents a comfortable operating level for a bank with a stronger client focus.

Profit before taxation of € 155 m was 17% below the previous year’s level. The
income tax charge of € 32 m corresponded to an effective tax rate of 21%, in line with
the level for the whole of 2006. The relatively high income tax expense in the first
quarter of the previous year meant that the fall at the net profit level was much less
pronounced (-8%).

DEPFA has implemented the following steps to further build its client franchise: A
group of six regional heads responsible for the client facing business was
implemented to improve speed and quality of the client services globally. DEPFA
continues to go local in countries where the business opportunities justify the
investment. The Bank’s current global network encompasses 20 offices. DEPFA has
now established an Infrastructure Equity team and already approved its first equity
investment in infrastructure equity. A major focus during the next months will be the
full integration of the operations of First Albany Inc. in the US. The acquisition of this
business announced in March is expected to strengthen the US business even further,
given the possibilities from working directly with the unit’s municipal client base.

DEPFA continues to be extremely positive about the business opportunities in the
public sector globally. It represents around 40-50% of GDP in most economies and is
the world’s largest property owner. Budget constraints due to pension payments and
other constraints leading to more financing needs and/or monetisation of public sector
assets in various forms and the urgent necessity to either build or maintain
infrastructure are global trends favouring financial institutions focusing on this
specific group of clients. It is DEPFA’s vision, as the only listed pure public sector
and infrastructure bank operating globally, to capture a substantial portion of the huge
business opportunities in this sector.

Company profile:

DEPFA BANK plc is a leading provider of financial services to public sector entities
worldwide. It is a Dublin-based public limited company, incorporated under Irish law,
with a network of subsidiaries and branch offices across Europe, as well as in the
Americas and Asia. DEPFA’s products and services cover the entire range of the
public sector’s financing needs whether they be related to budget financing or funding
of public infrastructure projects, advising on the rating process associated with the
privatisation of public services, debt restructuring, supporting bond placements or
extending credit lines. Thanks to its strong focus on the public sector and its extensive
experience with the specific financial, political and social requirements involved,
DEPFA is both a strong financial partner and an independent advisor to its clients.



DEPFA BANK ple appoints Michael O'Hara to spearhead Asset Management
Initiative

Press and Investor Relations Release

Dublin/Frankfurt, 24 May 2007.

Michael O’Hara (57) will be joining DEPFA Bank on 1st July 2007 to develop
DEPFA’s asset management initiative. This will involve identifying and pursuing
opportunities for DEPFA to leverage off the Bank’s existing business relationships.
DEPFA’s asset management initiative will enhance existing client dialogues by
responding to the public sector clients’ needs to actively unlock public capital. The
effort will initially focus on creating investment products in all types of relevant asset
classes through establishing new funds, syndications, joint ventures and co-
investment opportunities and will complement other areas of in-house expertise. The
global reach of this function will benefit from the Bank’s strong existing international
franchise.

Michael O’Hara enjoys an investment banking career spanning three decades and
since joining AIB Investment Managers in 1995 has focused on the asset management
function across a broad spectrum of asset classes. More recently Michael O'Hara has
concentrated on Central and Eastern European Investment Markets raising Real Estate
and Private Equity Funds. Prior to 1995 Michael worked for AIB Capital Markets in
The Dublin International Financial Services Center specialising in cross-border
international finance.
He brings this breadth and depth of experience to DEPFA to avail of the opportunities
in the International Capital Markets combining this with the skill base and reputation
that DEPFA has established.
Michael is a Fellow of the Association of Chartered and Certified Accountants and is
also a member of The Securities and Investment Institute London.
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CIS (London/Dublin
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Group Figures and Ratings

Group Figures

Earnings
Net interest income
Net fee and commission income
Net trading income
Gains less losses from financial assets
QOther operating incoma
Tota! operating income
Operating expenses
of which personnel expenditure
of which other administrative expenditure
of which depreciation and amortisation
of which other expendiiure
Net operating profit before impairment losses
Impairment losses on loans and advances
Profit before taxation
Taxation
Profit for the year - continuing operations
Resutt from discontinued operations
Group net income

Batance sheet items
Fimancing volume

of which drawn

of which undrawn
Sharehelders” capital
Total assets

Key ratios
Cost/income ratio
Earnings per share
RoE after taxes

2006
€m

-139
507
19
526

31/12/2006
218,927
194,586

24,341
2,777
222,945

31/12/2006
26%
1.53
21%

Ratings (short-term/long-term/financial strengths}

DEPFA BANK plc
DEPFA Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG
DEPFA ACS Bank

Fitch

Fi1+, AA-, B
Fi+, AA-
F1+, AA-

2005
€m

3112/2005
205,418
183,047

21,471
2,304
228,630

31/12/2005
26%
1.39
23%

Moody's
P-1, Aa3, C+
P-1, Aa3, C+

P-1,Aa3,C

Change
%

1%
60%

-42%

7%
6%
5%
8%

50%
8%

8%
14%
7%

1%

7%
6%
13%
21%

10%

A-14, AA-
A-1, A+
A-1+, AA-




The only global bank that is exclusively focused on
public sector and infrastructure finance

Has extensive experience with the specific financial,
political and social requirements of the public sector

Provides tailor-made solutions for central and regional
governments, municipalities, cities and infrastructure
clients

is a strong financial partner and independent advisor to

its clients

Operates from 18 offices throughout Europe, America
and Asia

Has a strong entrepreneurial spirit and a corporate
culture that promotes diversity
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Business Principles
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Interview
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Business Development
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12
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18

28

48
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62
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Risk

. Risk Management Structure

. Credit Risk

. Property Risk in the Pfandbriefbank
. Market Risk

. Liquidity Risk

. Operationat Risk

. Internal Audit

. Compliance
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Corporate Governance

Accounts
Directors and other information
Directors' report
Statement of directors’ responsibilities
Independent auditors’ report to the members of DEPFA BANK plc
Consolidated income statement
Consolidated balance sheet
Company balance sheet
Consolidated statement of changes in equity
Statement of changes in equity - Company
Cash flow statement
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Addresses

74
74
75
81
81
84
84
85
86

88

96

96

97
102
103
106
107
108
109
110
111
113

186



Clients

DEPFA BANK is a leading provider of financial services to
the Public Sector worldwide. With this comes a unique
responsibility towards the respective communities within
which we operate. Our success depends on putting our
clients’ interests first.

Shareholders

We have provided superior returns to our shareholders in
the past and we remain committed to continuing to do so.
Excellent profitability can only be derived from the best
people, the right strategy and a strong focus on our clients’
needs. We believe in aligning our employees’ interests with
those of our shareholders through our share compensation
programme.




People

Our people are the key to our success. Employees must
reflect the integrity, honesty and reputation of our
franchise and the diversity of the communities and cul-
tures we serve. Given the wholesale nature of our business
we strongly believe in flat hierarchies, entrepreneurial
spirit and teamwork. All segments and all teams work
closely together towards our common goals.

Responsibility

We are committed to support long-term economic growth
and social responsibility. Therefore we promote various
social projects in the interests of some of the most
disadvantaged people in the world. We encourage our
people to join in with these efforts. We follow a strict
policy of neutrality in political matters. However, we try to
avoid regions exposed to military conflicts and refrain
from financing military projects in general.
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Executive Committee

Gerhard Bruckermann (Chairman & CEQO}

Gerhard Bruckermann has been on the Management Board of DEPFA Group since 1991 and has acted as its
spokesman since 2000, Since 2002 he has been Chairman & CEO of DEPFA BANK plc. He previously held
senior positions in the Capital Market Divisions of Deutsche Bank and Westdeutsche Landesbank. The
development and expansion of BEPFA's public finance activities are widely credited to Gerhard Bruckermann's
initiative and vision.

Dr. Matthias Mosler (Deputy CEQ)

Dr. Matthias Mosler joined DEPFA BANK plc on 1st October 2005 as member of the Executive Committee
and became Deputy CEO as of 14 February 2008. Furthermore, he is responsible for Client Relationship
Management. Between 2000 and 2005 Dr. Mosler worked for Merrill Lynch where he was CEQ for Germany and
Vice-Chairman of European Equity Capital Markets. He also worked for Goldman Sachs in New York and
London as Managing Director in M&A, Corporate Finance and Equity Capital Markets. Dr. Mosler began his
career at Deutsche Bank where he held positions in Debt Capital Markets and as assistant to the CEQ.

Dr. Reinhard Grzesik (CFO)

Dr. Reinhard Grzesik joined DEPFA Group in 1996 serving as Head of the Corporate Planning Division until 2001,
He previously worked in Group Development at Deutsche Bank. As a member of the Executive Committee,
he is, as Chief Financial Officer, respensible for Accounting, Controlling and Corporate Development. In addition,
Dr. Grzesik is in charge of Group Operations. He will remain with the Company until the Annual General Meeting
in April 2007.

Angus Cameron {CFC)

Angus Cameron joined PEPFA BANK plc as new CFO in January 2007, He previously worked for the Bank of
New York Europe where he was CFO. Furthermore, Angus Cameron held a number of senior finance roles at
Scottish Widows and Barclays Bank. As a member of the Executive Committee he is, as Chigf Financial Officer,
responsible for all Finance, Accounting and Financial Controls.

Bo Heide-Dttosen

Bo Heide-Ottosen joined DEPFA BANK plc in October 2004 as Head of Treasury. He previously held senior
management positions in Scandinavia and worked as Executive VP and CFO at Nordic Investment Bank in
Helsinki. As a member of the Executive Committee Bo Heide-Ottosen is responsible for the Group's Global
Treasury, Budget Finance and Global Markets.

Dr. Rolf Hengsteler

Dr. Rolf Hengsteler joined DEPFA Group in 1999 as Chief Operations Officer. Prior to this he worked for
more than ten years in various front and back office functions for Citigroup based in Frankfurt. Dr. Hengsteler is a
mathematician with a PhD in Business Administration. As a member of the Executive Committee and Chief Risk
Cfficer, he is currently responsible for Risk and IT.




Paul Leatherdale

Paul Leatherdale joined DEPFA Group in September 1999 to set up the Infrastructure Finance team in Dublin
with specialist local teams based in most of the Group's offices worldwide. Previously, after completing a
business degree, he qualified as a Chartered Accountant and then spent 15 years at Sumitome Bank in London
specialising in Real Estate, Consiruction and International Project Finance. As a member of the Executive
Committes, Paul Leatherdale is responsible for Infrastructure Finance.

Andrew T. Readinger

Andrew Readinger joined DEPFA BANK plc in January 2005 as a member of the Executive Committea. Prior to
joining DEPFA Group, he held senior positions in Fixed Income, Public Finance and Capital Markets in both
New York and London for JP Morgan and Morgan Stanley. As a membaer of the Executive Committee,
Andrew Readinger is responsible for Client Product Services and Globat Markets.

Board of Directors
Executive Members

Gerhard Bruckermann
(see page 8)

Dermot Cahillane

Dermot Cahillane joined the DEPFA Group in 1893 and was appointed Managing Director of DePfa-Bank Europe
plc in 1987, Prior to joining the DEPFA Group he held senior positions for many years in various national and
international divisions of Allied Irish Bank plc. Dermot Cahillane has been based in New York city as Branch
Manager and General Manager US since 2005.

Dr. Reinhard Grzesik
(see page 8)
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Board of Directors

Non-Executive Members

Dr. Thomas M. Kolbeck

Dr. Thomas Kolbeck has been Vice-Chairman of DEPFA BANK's Board of Directors since 2002 and Chairman of
its Risk Committee since February 2006. He was the Bank’s Deputy CEQ from 2002 to February 2006 and a
member of the former DEPFA Group's Management Board from 1997. Prior to joining DEPFA BANK, Dr. Kolbeck
held various senior management positions at Westdeutsche Landesbank, He is also Chairman of the Super-
visory Board of DEPFA Deutsche Pfandbriefoank AG, Frankfurt.

Dr. Richard Brantner

Dr. Richard Brantner has been a member of DEPFA BANK's Board of Directors since 2002 and is a member
of its Audit and Compensation Committees. From 1980 to 1995, Dr, Brantner was a member and spokespersen
of the Management Board of Kreditanstalt fir Wiederaufbau, Frankfurt. He was previously a member of the
Supervisory Board and Chairman of the Audit Committee of Aareal Bank AG, Wissbaden, and a Non-Executive
Director of the European investment Bank {EIB) in Luxemburg.

Prof. Dr. Alexander Hemmelrath

Prof. Dr. Alexander Hemmelrath has been a member of DEPFA BANK's Board of Directors since 2002 and
is Chairman of its Compensation Committee. He is a certified public accountant and tax lawyer and was a
founding partner of law, tax and audit firm Haarmann, Hemmelrath & Partner in 1987, In 2006 he founded the
Hemmelrath Group, a Europe-wide operating tax, law and audit firm. Prof. Hemmelrath teaches reorganisation
tax law at the University of Osnabriick. Amongst other functions, he is a member of the Tax Committee of the
Chamber of Commerce in Munich and serves as an associate judge in the senate for CPA affairs at the
Federal Supreme Court in Leipzig.

Maurice 0’Connell

Maurice O'Connell has been a member of DEPFA BANK's Board of Directors since 2002 and is Chairman of its
Audit Committee, He was Governcr of the Central Bank of Ireland from 1994 until 2002, Pricr to that, from 1962,
Maurice O'Connell worked for the Irish Department of Finance. He is also a member of the Board of Directors of
DEPFA ACS BANK, Dublin and a number of charitable and cultural organisations in Ireland.

Jacques Poos

Jacques Poos has been a member of DEPFA BANK's Board of Directors since 2002, He was a member of the
European Parliament untit 2004 and between 1884 and 1899 he held saveral Ministerial positions including
Minister of Foreign Affairs and Minister of Economy for Luxemburg. He was previously an Executive Director of
Bangue Paribas S.A. (Luxemburg). Jacques Poos is also a member of the Board of Directors of BNP Paribas
(Luxemburg) and a Member of the Board of Directors of Athens International Airport. In 2006 he was appointed
as a member of the Council of Luxemburg's Central Bank.




Hans W. Reich

Hans Reich has been a member of DEPFA BANK's Board of Directors since 2002 and is a member of its Com-
pensation Committee. He has been Vice-Chairman since 2005. From 1966 to 2006 he worked for Kreditanstalt
fur Wiederaufbau, Frankfurt, and was Chairman of its Board of Directors from 1989 until 2006. With effect from
1 January 2007, Hans Reich was appointed by Citigroup to chair their Public Sector Group for the EMEA region.
He is also a member of the Supervisory Board of HUK Coburg Versicherung, Thyssen-Krupp Steel AG,
Dlsseldorf and is Chairman of the Supervisory Board of Aareal Bank AG, Wiesbaden.

Prof. Dr. Or. h. ¢. mult, Hans Tietmeyer

Prof. Dr. Hans Tietmeyer has been a member of DEPFA BANK's Board since 2002 and is a member of its Audit
Committee. From 1990 to 1999 he worked for Deutsche Bundesbank, Frankfurt, and was its President from
1993. Prior to that Prof, Tietmeyer was Secretary of State for Germany’s Ministry of Finance from 1983 to 1989
and worked for the Ministry for Economy from 1962 to 1983. He is also a member of the Board of Directors of
the Bank for International Settlements (BIS), Basle, and a member of the Supervisory Boards of DWS Investment
GmbH, Frankfurt, Hauck & Aufhduser Bank, Frankfurt, and of BDO Wirtschaftsprifungsgesellschaft, Hamburg.

Prof. Frances Ruane

Prof. Frances Ruane was a member of DEPFA BANK's Board of Directors until November 2006. On 1 Decem-
ber 2006 she becarme Director of the Economic and Social Research Institute, Dublin. Her previous position was
as Associate Professor in the Department of Economics in Trinity College, Dublin where she also held the posts
of Director of the Policy Institute and Director of the MSc programme in Economic Policy Studies. Before
joining the Board of Directors of DEPFA BANK in 2002, she was a member of the Board of Directors of
DePfa-Bank Europe plc.
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Looking back on 2006 - what would you see as
the key achievements in DEPFA’s corporate
development?

GB: “In 2006 DEPFA BANK continued to develop
from a start-up to a more mature, structured
company while at the same time preserving its
entrepreneurial spirit. We have introduced seg-
mental reporting to the Bank with the four business
lines of Budget Finance, Infrastructure Finance,
Client Product Services and Global Markets and we
have seen a dramatic shift from trading activities to
client facing businesses.”

What do you currently see as the dominating
trends in public sector financing globally and
how well positioned is DEPFA to react to these
trends?

MM: “We see the following trends in the public
sector globaily: budget constraints, increasing
professionalism among the state entities and
increasing participation of the private sector,
especially in Infrastructure Finance. We think DEPFA
is well prepared to face these challenges. Our
Budget Finance division is providing our clierts with
loan and bond financing; cur Client Relationship
Managers and our continuously brcadening product
range serve more complex client needs. Finally, we
have built one of the leading franchises in Infra-
structure Finance to assist private sector project
sponsors and public entities alike.”

During the last few years DEPFA has entered
new areas of business and has been constantly
developing new products - what is on the
agenda in 2007?

MM: “We will continue to increase our capability to
meet our clients’ needs; from our regular dialogue
with our clients we seek to better understand their
needs, and then we can develop new products and
services. Given the high demand especially in
Europe and North America we will continue to
broaden our infrastructure franchise.”

Geographic expansion has been a key issue in
the past years with Amsterdam, Milan, Mumbai
and S3o Paulo as the latest new offices - which
regions could be attractive for future local
coverage?

GB: “We will further develop our client network and
expand inte markets where we see demand for our
products and services. Since the trends in the
public sector seem to have a global reach we can
leverage the expertise we have built in our European
franchise into other regions. In the near term we
plan to deepen our coverage mainly in the US and
Central/Eastern Europe.”




DEPFA has a very specific corporate culture -
what are its main features and how can these be
maintained while growing substantially?

MM: “DEPFA BANK’s corporate culture is charac-
terized by entrepreneurial spirit, flat hierarchies and
teamwork. In a bank of DEPFA's size, business
volume and international structure every single
employee counts so our staff have 1o be recruited
very carefully. We are especially looking for people
who have a multi-cultural background and a high
level of social skills in addition to their professional
expertise. The very positive results from our
employee survey in August 2006 make us confident
that we do offer attractive career opportunities and
will be able to maintain our very specific corporate
culture while growing continuously.”

What does DEPFA’s social engagement, e.q.
with the Irish NGO Concern, mean to you?

GB: "For us as a public sector specialist institution,
and also for us personally, it is very important to
make a contribution to social development. In 2004
we started our cooperation with the iIrish NGO
Concern and are very happy with the results of this
team-effort. At the moment we are supporting them
on three different projects that are presented in the
section "Social Responsibility" and regularly get
personally involved so we have a feeling for the
impact that our suppori makes to the people in
some of the poorest countries in the world,
Together with Concern we have established an
exchange programme where DEPFA employees
have the chance to work hands-cn for a Third World

project for some time. We know that these efforis
are very much appreciated internally and externally
and see them as a very important part of our active
corporate culure.”

What are your main objectives for 20077

GB: “Generally, there is more and more focus on the
public sector worldwide. DEPFA is the only pure
public sector bank operating globally and very wall
positioned in this growing market. We will continue
to put our clients” interests first, deepen our client
penetration where necessary and expand our
product range. By doing this well, we will be able to
deliver superior returns to our shareholders, and of
course, since we have provided superior returns in
the past, we remain committed to doing sc in the
future.”

What is the advantage of doing business with
DEPFA?

MM: "With a public sector portfolio of more than
€ 180 billion and global new commitments of more
than € 50 billion per annum we are one of the top
players in public sector financing globally. However,
unlike many others we are invested long-term in our
clients' assets. We are focused and specialised. Our
clients' rely on us and consider us quick to respond.
They particularly appreciate when we are able 1o
give them a range of solutions which are either
innovative or have already been successfully imple-
mented in other countries and regions.”
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Corporate Highlights 2006

JANUARY Social Responsibility: support for Concern project in Meozambique

FEBRUARY Financials: introduction of Segmental Reporting

Long-term funding: € 2 billion Irish Covered Bond (ACS) issue

Share: Annual General Meeting in Dublin

Share: Capital Markets Days for institutional investors in Dublin & New York

Long-term funding: USS 1 billion Irish Covered Bond {ACS) issue

Securitisation: € 900 million global infrastructure-loans (EPIC Il CLO)

AUGUST Financials: record quarterly result (net profit of € 140 million}

SEPTEMBER Product diversification: build-up of Pension Advisory team

OCTOBER Geographic expansion: opening of Amsterdam Representative Office

NOVEMBER Internal: DEPFA workforce grows by 20% in 2006

DECEMBER Geographic expansion: opening of Sdao Paulo Representative Office



Julia Hoggett, Globai Head of Capital Markets, Dublin

"The capital markets team had a strong year in 2006, our cost of funding improved and our
glokal name recognition has also heen enhanced. 2006 saw the beginnings of the genuine
globalisation of the Covered Bond market and DEPFA has been at the forefront of that trend."
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José Manuel Casares:

“Castilla-La Mancha is one of the Spanish Regions that has completely understood what it means to
be an international issuer. They have issued bonds in the European, U.S. and Canadian markets and it
has been a true pleasure for DEPFA BANK to participate in this success.”

Client:  Junta de Comunidades de Castilla-La Mancha, Spain

Need: Issue of € 200 million bullet Eurobond. The Region of Castilla-La Mancha is a regutar issuer in
the international markets and interested in promoting the Region overseas and in broadening
their investor base.

Solution: DEPFA BANK acted as Joint Bookrunner and arranged the offering circular and the roadshow in
record time of four weeks. The 4-day roadshow was very successful with aimost 20 accounts
attending: Budapest, Dublin, Frankfurt and Paris.

José Manuel Casares, Managing Director, CRM Spain & Portugal
David Bazaco, Director, CRM Spain & Portugal
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Trends in Public Sector Financing

“The role of the public sector is changing and
the private sector generally (and of course in
DEPFA’s particular case, the banking sector)
must anticipate, understand and work to help
facilitate this evolution.”

In the past, the public sector in many countries was
criticised as being inefficient and slow to adopt
necessary change. Even when the need for reform
was recognised, the ability to implement it was
sometimes limited. Consequently, the sector tended
to adhere to the status quo, with innovations only
being adopted after a significant lag and successful
experience elsewhere (e.g. in other public sector
peers or the private sector).

Intrinsically, although
not statistically, part of
the public sector

Private Providers
of Public Services

The Role of the Public Sector

“The public secter is moving from being a
praovider of public services itself to being a
regulator, specifying and overseeing the pro-
vision of same of these services by the private
sector.”

The pubfic sector’s traditional role was largely shaped
by social and political traditions, and influenced by
economic development and ideology. Today, the
socic-economic goals for many countries (both
developed and developing) are mostly driven by
free-market principles resulting in more economic
liberalisation, increased privatisation, and a changed

The Public Sector

Market Public
Corporations

General Government

-

Private Providers
of Public Services

However, the pace of reform has increased in recent
years as a number of challenges have made the need
to change more criticai. For example, it is now
generally recognised as being imperative for
government to respond to these challenges by
encouraging economic growth and managing public
sector budgets efficiently.

Of course, the scope and nature of these develop-
ments differ from country 1o country, but they present
similar challenges and opportunities for those many
parts of the private sector that service the public
sector’s requirements. In the public finance sector in
many countries, DEPFA is at the forefront of this
important development.

State/Local
Govarnment

Non-Market Public

Corporations Social Security

role for government, which recognises that the
government itself is not necessarily the most efficient
builder and owner of national infrastructure or
provider of public services.

Indeed some governments have deliberately
decreased the direct involvement of the public sector
in the national economy. However, this does not
necessarily result in a less important role for the
public sector: even in those countries where the
delivery of traditional public services has been
“outsourced” to the private sector, government still
plays a very significant role as a regulator and
facilitator — in fact perhaps having a greater
capability to effect the efficient delivery of essential
services now than it had before.



The Need for Change

“People, especially the taxpaying electorate,
have increasing expectations of what they
want from their national and local govern-
ments, especially in terms of improved public
services and infrastructure. Budgetary con-
straints are often the main drivers forcing
public ieaders to address the need for change
in order to satisfy these expectations, Political
realities mean that doing nothing is no longer
an option.”

While socio-economic trends and political drivers
have helped shape the face of the public sector, a
number of increasing pressures have furthered the
momentum of public sector reform. These include:

- People’s expectations: generally a better edu-
cated and empowered population expects better,
and more efficient, public services, especially in the
more developed economies. Conseguently public
sector operators have to respond by improving the
quality of service provision, and improving value for
(taxpayers’) money. People also expect increasing
openness and transparency in how government
Ccperates.

- Budgetary constraints: to have sustainable public
finances has always been a goa! of responsible
government. Following a long period in the latter half
of the 20th century during which new government
initiatives could be financed by a combination of
historically low debt levels, strong ecenomic growth
and favourable demographics, many countries have
now reached the limits of affordability. Given that the
median age of the world's population will increase by
10 years to 38 by 2050, the current budget con-
straints will be accentuated in the future, especially
due to the accompanying age related expenses,
most netably public pension costs and health care
expenses.

Figure 1 presents recent analysis from Standard &
Poor's where they present a “do-nothing scenario” in
which governments borrow to fund future budget
shortfalls rather than introduce the necessary
reforms. Based on the projected fiscal outcomes, a
"hypothetical sovereign rating” is derived. The
downward trend in rating quality illustrates the
magnitude of the increasing budgetary and ageing
population retated pressures. Of the 32 developed
{and investment grade} countries included in the
analysis, 29 would be sub-investment grade by 2040
under this scenario.

Figure 1: Hypothetical long-term sovereign ratings distribution {N. B. assuming no government action)
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Although the above analysis concentrates exclu-
sively on the developed countries, the effect of
demographic change can be expected to have an
even greater impact in developing countries. For
example, China's old-age dependency ratio is
forecast to grow four-fold during the first half of this
century, while the ratio will triple in Latin America.

Public Sector Response

“Increased involvement of the private sector
will help overcome the challenges facing the
public sector”

Although each country has its own social, economic
and technological characteristics, in general there are
a number of ways governments have attempted to
meet the challenges outlined above, In summary,
these are:

- Use of the market and market-type mechanisms:
not only are governments using market type
mechanisms to help fulfil their role, they are also
explicitly using "the market”, or its clearest mani-
festation, the private sector to provide more and
more of the services which had previously been
almost exclusively the domain of the public sector.

Despite the differences in the overall role of
government on a country-by-country basis, the
general trend has been to move away from direct
intervention towards the use of policy instruments
that involve the private sector in the implementation
of public functions and programmes. Two of the most
direct instruments used are the privatisation of hither-
to government-owned industries/companies and the
outsourcing of essential public services {through new
competitive procurement models such as Public Pri-
vate Partnerships (PPPs)).

- Enhancing public sector performanee: the introduction
of benchmarking exercises in an effort to make
public sector entities more efficient and flexible,
including modernising employment practices and

introducing centralised structures to deal with
financing. This is coupled with efforts to modernise
accountakility and control measures whilst becoming
more transparent, accessible and consultative.

Private Provision of Public Services and Utilities

“Historically, full privatisation has been the
most popular method for involving the private
sector, thereby increasing efficiencies, redu-
cing expenditure and raising revenues. Al-
though the potential for traditional privati-
sations still exists in some emerging market
countries, in the developed world it is likely to
move into the less typical areas of social infra-
structure. However, due to the nature of these
services, the government is unlikely to take a
complete step away from their provision.”

The private sector has always interacted with the
public sector, facilitating the government's ability to
carry out its function of providing core public services
by supplying commercial inputs and support ser-
vices. However, from the 1980s onwards many deve-
loped governments have sought to fully involve the
private sector in the provision of certain goods and
services it had itself typically provided before,
through full privatisation programmes. The aim of
such programmes is to harness private sector
efficiencies, reduce public budget expenditures and
produce significant revenues from the sale of assets.
Developing economies have been more likely 1o
instigate the privatisation of public services under the
influence of international financial institutions such as
the World Bank and the IMF. Moreover, transition
economies, such as those in Central and Eastern
Europe, have had a natural impetus to privatise in the
process of moving from centrally planned to market
based economies.

These privatisation programmes were introduced
into sectors with certain characteristics. Utilities such
as electricity, water and gas supply are the most
typical examples, because their products can be




measured and priced properly. In this way, only those
who avail of the particular service are charged. Other
examples include the telecommunications and
aviation industries.

A criticism of (full} privatisation is that it leads to a loss
of control for the public sector, which can be
potentially harmful when the industries and compa-
nies involved are effectively monopclies. As a result,
in many countries, public authorities have introduced
regulatory regimes (sometimes theoretically indepen-
dent of government) to ensure certain output or
service standards are achieved for the benefit of
consumers, and to seek {0 maintain fair and open
markets, including compliance with antitrust laws.

After close to three decades of privatisation experi-
ence, governmenits such as the U.K. with mature pri-
vatisation programmes are now left with assets that
are more problematic to sell, both in terms of their re-
gulatory and contracting requirements, and in terms
of public preference for the retention of state owner-
ship and accountability of certain “key” services such
as education and healthcare.

Although there is still scope in emerging market
economies for more traditional privatisations, it is
likely that, in the developed countries, the private
sector will get involved in the provision of a wider
range of public services which have, up until now,
been firmly in the public sector domain. In this regard,
governments are showing increased interest in
extending private sector involvement to include
social infrastructure services (g.g. housing, hospitals
and schools). However in some cases the provision
of such services wholly by private operators can be
politically and/or socially unacceptable. As a result
governments are very unlikely to take a complete
step away from their provision. Thus, PPPs have
emerged and continue to grow as an instrument for
financing and a tool for outsourcing the design,
building, financing and maintenance of public sector
infrastructure and services.

Public Private Partnerships (PPPs})

“Although differing widely across countries
in terms of secters and project charac-
teristics, PPPs can offer a viable alternative
to traditional procurement methods. Benefits
such as optimal risk transfer (from public
to private sectors), “whole-life” costing, per-
formance-related payment mechanisms and
public budget cash-flow management can be
achieved.”

PPPs involve some sharing of cost, risk and benefits
between public and private participants, with the
public sector seeking to optimise service provision in
terms of both quality and value for money. PPPs are
used in a wide range of social and economic
infrastructure projects, but to date they have mainty
been used fo build and operate hospitals, schoals,
prisons, roads, bridges, tunnels and fight-rail
networks. This of course differs on a country-
by-country basis, with some countries far more
advanced than others in their use of PPP for infra-
structure and service provision,

Furthermore, the organisation of the partnership
approach can differ significantly depending on the
sector and project characteristics. For example, in
the areas of education and health, the private sector
can be easily incorporated into the construction and
facilities management of various projects whilst the
public sector will usually retain control of the
day-to-day educational and clinical aspects.

Moreover, by the very nature of PPP projects,
ownership of existing infrastructure is only partially or
temporarily passed on to the private sector. After a
competitive tendering process, long-term conces-
sions are awarded to private sector operators to
maintain and operate public infrastructure assets,
such as toll-roads. However, ultimately ownership will
revert back to the public sector at the end of the
concession term.
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PPPs have proved to be attractive to both the
government and the private sector. For the
government, private financing is supporting in-
creased infrastructure investment without immedia-
tely adding to government borrowing and debt.
There are significant cash flow benefits to the public
sector by deferring the period over which payments
are made as the net present value of such payments
are often less than the upfront cost, meaning current
resources can be put to more productive use.

The PPP approach is alse changing the mindset of
the public sectar to some extent. Because the costs
are shared, the public sector can now abandon the
often inefficient approach of minimising capital costs
today and incurring higher maintenance costs in
the future, by adopting the "whole-life” costing
approach. The PPP approach to procurement ¢an
also discourage the practice of fully spending annual
capital budgets (rather than economising) in order
not to ‘lose’ funding from subsequent budget
allocations.

The allocation of risks between the contracting
parties is critical for a PPP. In the most developed
contracts, the optimum distribution of risks is
attained when each party assumes the responsibility
for those risks that it is best able to quantify, monitor
and control. For example, government may agree to
take on the cost oi risks associated with legislative or
ptanning changes, whilst private sector operators will
agree to bear the cost of delays or overruns in
construction which are deemed to be under its
control. Through closer management of these risks
all parties are better able to achieve lower costs over
the project's life-cycle, compared to the traditional
public sector procurement model, This results in
lower risk premiums, thus reducing the overall
financing costs.

Also, as each country devetops its PPP market, thera
is more scope for reducing project execution costs.
For example, in the UK, standardised PF| project
documents have been established for the different
PPP sectars which reduce the time and expense
taken to negotiate the transaction.

PPPs are not only being used as a means of moving

expenditure “off-budget”, however. Although it may
play a role, the need for efficiency gains is often the
more pertinent justification put forward by govern-
ments for this type of financing, especially as tax-
payers demand better value for money. Private
sector specialisation and incentives to perform (and
penalties for sub-standard performance} are the main
source of such efficiency gains. International econc-
mic comparisons show that in many sectars, private
enterprises operate at 15% - 30% better cost
efficiency than public companies in terms of total
project lifecycle costs, while providing a similar or
better service. One of the reasons for this is that the
services are no longer provided under traditional
monopolistic structures, but are geared toward
competitive market conditions. This releases
innovative potential from both the private and public
sectors. With long-term infrastructure projects,
competition among private suppliers results in
cost-optimised projects over their useful life and a
more efficient procurement approach.

Enhancing Public Sector Performance

“Due to the demand for efficiency gains and
value for money, the public sector is increas-
ingly required and able to deal with a greater
variety of products and ideas. These may
relate to the type of funding and the debt ma-
nagement tools employed.”

The changing role of the public sector has led to
increased sophistication in terms of organisational
structures, financial product/service requirements
and its understanding of new financing mechanisms.
Although this still has much further to go and varies
substantially across countries, regions and even
departments, it is clear that the public sector is
increasingly able to deal with a greater variety of pro-
ducts and ideas. With constant calts for efficiency
gains and value for money, the public sector has
generally moved towards the new technological and
knowledge frontiers. This has involved changing
management and rewards structures such that the




best people are put in place in the right jobs.
Increased recruitment of specialists from the private
sector has also enhanced the sector's innovative
capacity.

This requirement for improved performance has also
influenced the type of funding sought by the public
sector. As a result, public sector issuers have tried to
diversify their investor base as much as possible,
both through the syndication process and multi-
currency issuance. They have also tended to in-
crease the tenor of issues, thereby taking advantage
of the current low interest rate environment and the
increasing demand from institutional investors who
either want long-dated assets to match their long-
term liabilities or are required to do so by law e.qg.
under UK pension regulation.

The public sector is also increasingly adopting
prudent debt management tools in order to protect
against adverse interest rate cycles and inflation in
order to achieve an optimal debt profile. Therefore,
techniques such as derivatives, inflation-linked
issuance and debt restructuring have become more
popular.

There has also been an increasing trend towards
decentralisation of government in some countrigs (for
example in Spain and Haly), thereby providing more
autonomy at local level. This is based on the premise
that local authorities have a better understanding of
local needs. By giving local government greater
power over its expenditure {and potentially also
revenues), and thus making them more accouniable
for their financing arrangements, they should
become more efficient and adopt a more prudent
budgetary policy.

Conversely, we are also seeing the establishment of
funding agencies which, by providing funding for a
multitude of local authorities, counties and
municipalities, enables them 1o achieve more
competitive terms in the capital markets due to a
larger critical mass. One of the best examples of
such an agency is Kommuninvest in Sweden, which
the European Bank for Reconstruction and Develop-

ment are now using as a possible prototype for simi-
lar agencies in emerging Europe. Given the trend
towards de-centralisation in many countries, this
type of agency is likely to become more common.

Challenges and Opportunities

“Just as the public sector has been forced to
change its role, from service provider to re-
gulator, so too will the banking sector have to
change its rele from lender to partner, con-
tinuing to advise and provide solutions for the
public sector by leveraging-off past experi-
ence and current expertise. Therefore faced
with increasingly sophisticated demands, the
challenge for the banking sector is to anti-
cipate and meet these specialised needs.”

In the near term we expect that opportunities for the
banking sector will centre around continuing to
provide off-budget sclutions to an increasingly
sophisticated public sector as well as helping the
public sector in its transition by leveraging off past
experience.

Looking further ahead, this changing role of the
public sector will undoubtedly create challenges and
opportunities for the banking sector. As a major
driver for change has been both current and future
public sector budget constraints, much activity will
continue to focus on providing off-balance sheet
{debt management) solutions. Also, given that much
of the privatisation within the most common sectors
has already taken place in the developed world,
private provision of public utilities and services are
likely to spread to less traditional candidates for
private provision such as health and education.
These areas require more complex and hybrid
solutions than typically found at present.

Opportunities for banks like DEPFA to advise the
putlic sector {e.g. on the relative merits of the
various alternative structures to engage with the
private sector in delivering new public infrastructure}
arise from our ability to utilise our broad international
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experience of a wide-range of PPP and other limited-
recourse or off-budget financing structures, to
identify optimal strategies given a client’s particular
circumstances. In this way, experienced banks can
work in partnership with the public sector, offering
advice and potentially alsc arranging finance based
on this experience.

Because the public sector has improved its
capability to deal with more complex transactions,
the range of possible products and solutions has
increased significantly and can be expected to
continue to do so. The challenge for the private
sector is to anticipate and meet these specialised
demands. Private sector operators can therefore
benefit greatly by drawing up specific solutions for
public sector clients which meet their needs more
closely. This may occur as governments try to mone-
tise both current and future assets to raise revenue
and increase efficiency. Examples include sale and
leaseback arrangements as well as securitisations
and setting up special purpose companies which
raise debt against future revenues such as tolt-road
revenues.

Regulatory developments continue to cause both
challenges and opportunities for the banking sector.
Whilst pension fund requirements have influenced
the type, and mere specifically the tenor, of govern-

ment borrowing, the new Basle Il regulations are also
likely to influence the services which public sector
clients wilt demand in the future. As the credit rating
of potential borrowers will become more critical in
determining their risk weighting under Basle Il (and
hence influence the pricing levels they can achieve),
the need for credit enhancement is also likely to
increase as it could potentially make a significant
difference to the cost of funding.

In summary, just as the public sector has been forced
to change its role from service provider to regulator,
so the banking sector will have to change its role
from being a mere lender to more of a long-term
partner, continuing to advise and provide solutions
for a sector with increasingly sophisticated demands.
The challenge for the banking sector is to anticipate
and mest these specialised demands. DEPFA's
leading position in public sector finance means it is
ideally positioned to understand what the public
sector requires, and to play an integral role in delive-
ring the sophisticated products of whatever nature to
assist the public sector client base to meet the
challenges of the 21st century.

Written by:
Joe Cullen (DEPFA Economist) and
David Clancy {DEPFA Research)
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Conor Kelly:

“The loan is AAA rated as it is backed by a monoline insurer, and gives the client a more competitive
all-in ¢ost of debt than currently available with traditional bank financing but without having to sacrifice
any of the flexibility in structuring.”
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Client:
Need:

Solution:

People:

Awards:

Bilfinger Berger BOT GmbH
Reduce traffic congestion in the Greater Vancouver region, Canada

DEPFA BANK acted as Mandated Lead Arranger for a PPP (Public Private Partnership) to
construct and operate a six lane bridge over the Fraser River for CAD 1.1 bilion under a 32 year
(post construction) availability payment based concession contract granted by the Greater
Vancouver Transport Authority.

Conor Kelly, Managing Director, Head of Infrastructure Finance, The Americas
Ruth McMorrow, Managing Director, Infrastructure Finance, The Americas

- "North American PPP Deal of the Year" from Project Finance magazine, 2006
- "Gold Award for Project Financing” from the Canadian Council for PPP, 2006
- "North American Deal of the Year" from Project Finance International magazine, 2006
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In 2006 DEPFA BANK continued with the expansion
of its public finance operation to achieve critical mass
in areas that will ensure the company’s future profit
growth. Investments in new areas of advisory and
financial products have been driven by growing
demand among our core clients as well as the
general public sector market to provide more
complex solutions to current and looming budgetary
constraints. One of the key challenges facing the
public sector worldwide is how to finance increased
age-related spending due to ageing populations, and
at the same time continue providing quality public
senvices and infrastructure to satisfy the demands of
their electarates. DEPFA is an institution that
understood long ago that public finance was a client-
driven business in its own right, on a par with corpo-
rate or private client businesses, and therefore is
keenly aware of what needs to be done to maintain
its leading edge in this client market.

Product diversification can be traced back to the
late 1990s when the Bank branched ocut into
Infrastructure Financing. Investments in this area were
geared to achieving a good return in the fong term,
given the patience required to build up a market
presence that would lead to more lucrative lead
mandates in arranging financing. This commitment
was eventually rewarded with a breakthrough in the
resulis in this segment in 2008. Just as infrastructure
finance was a logical extension of public finance, the
Bank has stepped up investment activity since 2005
in areas that are likely to add value to the client
business. New business lines in advisory and
derivatives solutions complement the Bank’s strong
debt raising capability, and these are incorporated in
the Client Product Services (CPS) segment.

The introduction of segment reporting for the
2005 full year results also highlights the different
characteristics in DEPFA's client businesses between
more mature and younger, fast growth sectors.
Furthermore, the segment breakdown also ensures a
clearer demarcation between these client facing
areas and trading activities. When DEPFA became a
specialist bank for public sector finance after the
demerger of the property business in 2002 the case

for breaking the public sector business into smaller
parts was not obvious, especially given the fairly
limited product range and predominance of debt
financing. However the strong development of the
Infrastructure Finance and CPS segments has given
these areas a sufficient critical mass within the
segment framework to fully justify their separate
segment status. These segments combined with the
core Budget Finance segment demonstrate the
growing diversity of earnings that can be generated
from the public sector base.

Budget Finance

Introduction

This segment provides the core of the Bank's
earnings with income generated from DEPFA’s
micro-hedged public sector portfolio. Europe is still
very much DEPFA's main geographic market,
however commitments are increasingly distributed
more evenly across a swathe of European debt
markets, including the new EU member states as
well as the mature markets. Qutside Europe the
fastest growing market is the United States. The
focus on origination of very liquid, sovereign and sub-
sovereign assets is well suited to the proactive
management of the porifolic where new assets can
be added and gains realised from existing assets to
augment revenues and optimise our lending portfolio.
This therefore provides an additional source of in-
come to the interest income earned from keeping
assets on the books.

Main achievements

in 2006 the United States has for the first time ever
overtaken Germany as DEPFA BANK's top market in
terms of the overall budget financing volume. Over
half the US business is comprised of so-called credit
and liquidity support facilities ~ a product that is
unique to the US, which is tied to tax exempt munic-
ipal bond issues to give additional protection to in-
vestors. Overall, the gains from portfolio rebalancing
and optimisation remained strong since demand for
high quality assets has created oppertunities to sell
low margin assets. These were replaced with new
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business that generated higher net interest margins.
In 2006 DEPFA saw an improvement in the cost and
tenor of its long term funding.

Funding

DEPFA has a well diversified funding ptatform
comprising a broad range of long-term and medium-
to-short-term instruments. On average 75% of
DEPFA's balance sheet is funded by Covered Bonds,
medium-term senior unsecured debt and securities
repurchase financing (Repo}. The highly collateralised
nature of DEPFA’s funding means the institution is
firmly anchored on both sides of its balance sheet in
the public sector debt market, giving it a rock solid
credit profile among investors. In essence DEPFA is
able to achieve funding cast levels that are far lower
than would normally be expected from its own
AA- credit rating. Therefore DEPFA’s trading levels
for its Covered Bonds in the financial markets are
more akin to that of certain Agency issuers, which
have a similarly strong business remit in the public
sector sphere.

Capital Markets

The Capital Markets desk encompasses the Bank's
long-term funding activities in the fixed income
markets. The Capital Markets team manages these
requirements using available funding instruments
which include secured and unsecured bonds in the
public and private placement markets as well as loan
arrangements (e.g. Registered ACS, Offentliche
Namenspfandbriefe and Schuldscheindariehen}, The
coordination and execution of hybrid capital issuance
also falls under the remit of the Capital Markets team.

DEPFA enjoys a leading position in the Covered Bond
rarket through its AAA-rated Benchmark Covered
Bonds, Asset Covered Securities {ACS) and Pfand-
briefe, which are simultanecusly the Group's principal
sources of long-term funding. These highly liquid
instruments are collateralised by high quality, widely
diversified public sector assets and trade on a
variety of electronic platforms including EuroMTS,
EuroCredit MTS, Tradeweb and EurexBonds.
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As a regular issuer of Benchmarks, DEPFA enjoys
high visibility in the international capital markets. The
Group has a yearly updated commitment under its
funding programme to issue at least two Benchmark
transactions a year, one of which is to be US$
denominated.

In 2006 DEPFA executed three Benchmarks, a US$
1 billion 5-year issue in Juneg, to strengthen its
commitment to an existing US$ curve, and two
€ Benchmarks: a € 2 hillion 5-year issue in March
and a € 2 billion 10-year issue in November, to
support the liquidity of DEPFA's Benchmarks in the €
Covered Bond market. DEPFA’s US$ Benchmarks
are largely placed outside Eurcpe {on average 70%
non-European placement), reflecting the strength of
DEPFA's global name recogniticn. As the USA is one
of the fastest growing areas for our asset growth,
DEPFA is committed to further expanding its US$
funding base with other capital markets products
in 2007.

The attraction of the ACS Benchmark for investors is
the high quality and liquidity of the issues and the
positive spread to sovereign and agency debt.
Furthermore, the secondary market performance of
DEPFA's Covered Bonds has been very positive for
bendholders in 2008. The ACS and Piandbrief legis-
lations benefit from an increasingly global
recognition and a position at the forefront of the
Covered Bond market. In addition, ACS Benchmarks
profit from a strong scarcity value due in part to
DEPFA’s reduced funding needs and the fact that
issuance of public sector Covered Bonds in the
market is significantly less than previcus years. In this
environment the performance of the DEPFA ACS
curve and the ACS market in general, has been very
marked in 2008, bringing new issue costs for AGS
issuance even more in line with that of the Pfandbrief-
bank than previous years. ACS has further cemented
its position alongside Pfandbriefe at the forefront of
the Covered Bond market in terms of quality in a
market which increasingly differentiates between
classes of Covered Bond legislations and issuers.
Currently the total volume of DEPFA ACS Bench-
marks outstanding is in excess of € 27 billion,

DEPFA is also an active issuer of EMTNs, both
secured and unsecured in a wide variety of
structures, currencies and maturities either as private
placements or as a public transaction. 2006 also saw
the successful further development of funding
programmes in non-core currencies, thereby
enhancing the duration and liquidity position of the
Group, lowering the cost of funding and achieving
even broader investor diversification.

In 2006 DEPFA raised € 13.8 billion of long-term
funding at deeper sub-Euribor levels and longer
tenors than were achieved in 2005. All three entities,
DEPFA BANK plc, DEPFA ACS BANK and DEPFA
Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG contributed to this
target. For 2007 a similar funding target has been
set, with € 10 billion of ACS funding, € 2 billion of
unsecured funding via DEPFA BANK plc and
€ 2 billion of secured issuance out of DEPFA
Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG which ensures that
DEPFA maintains its important position in the Pfand-
brief market.

Money Markets

A single Money Market platform with desks located in
Publin, Frankfurt, New York and Tokyo performs a
pivotal role in the Group’s funding strategy. The
Money Market desk manages and sources all of the
Bank’s funding requirements out to two years. The
desk sources liquidity from a diverse range of
countaerparties and gecgraphies offering investors
a range of highly liquid liability products and
programs.

DEPFA continues to be a pre-eminent issuer in the
short-term paper market, due to our excellent short-
term ratings, consistent pricing levels and a
willingness to support our paper by providing
investors with competitive buy-back prices. In 2006
DEPFA continued to diversify its range of short-
term funding instruments by launching an SEK
commercial paper program. The Bank has continued
to place the emphasis on developing its domestic
funding bases in order to keep in step with the
Group’'s continued diversification of its balance sheet.




Another important source of short-term liquidity is
derived from our Repo operation which is closely tied
to our asset origination activities of liquid sovereign
and sub-sovereign debt. Within the DEPFA Group
worldwide, there is a current stock of securities
available for secured barrowing (in the Repe markets)
in excess of € 30 billion, Therefore this reflects the
importance thai DEPFA attaches to maintaining
strong liquidity reserves combined with a highly liquid
balance sheet.

Continued diversification of our short-term funding
base has resulted in a very cost effective funding. Qur
average 2006 funding spread remained stable at
Euribor -6bps.

Results

Net interest income, generated through DEPFA’s
stable, long-term asset and liability base, amounted
to € 356 milion, a 15% increase year-on-year.
Non-interest revenues, generated through fees from
US Liguidity Facilities, other activities and the
management of the Budget Finance asset portfolig,

more than doubled to € 283 million. New business in
the mature markets, most notably in the USA
and italy was particularly strong. The U.S. now
contributes 18% of the overall budget financing
volume whilst also enhancing the credit guality
of the Budget Finance portfolio. DEPFA's funding
activities remained strong, meeting and exceeding
the Bank's targets for its long- and short-term
funding mix and enhancing/reducing the overall cost
of funding in 2006. Profit before 1axes in this segment
totalled € 555 million in 2006.

Outlook

Following a successful vear in terms of asset
origination and funding in 2006 the Bank is locking to
buitd on this strong platform in 2007. The origination
activities have resulted in good cross-selling
opportunities, as reflected in the growth of the CPS
franchise and it is anticipated that this will continue
into 2007. There will be a continued focus on adding
further diversification into our asset base whilst
maintaining a high credit rating for the overall book.

Budget Finance 2006

€m
Net interest income 356
Non interest revenues 283
Total operating income 639
Operating expenses -84
Profit before taxation 555

Balance sheet:

Financing volume {on balance sheet) 167,438
Financing volume (off balance sheet} 21,885
Average equity 1,363
Ratios:

Cost/Income ratio 13%
RoE (pre tax) aM1%

2005 Variance Variance
€m €m Ya
309 47 15%
132 151 114%
a1 198 45%
-85 1 -1%
356 199 56%
165,575 1,863 1%
20,459 1,426 7%
1,129 234 21%
19%
32%

31




32

Management Discussion - Segments

Our powerful distribution capability is an important
factor in new business acquisition. DEPFA has an
investor franchise that includes excellent links to
central banks, which can be leveraged both on the
asset and liability side. Overall, the fundamental role
that Budget Finance plays in the DEPFA business
model will be maintained in 2007.

Infrastructure Finance

Introduction

DEPFA's role as a leading player in the international
infrastructure finance market was further enhanced
during the year. A substantial increase in revenues
and financing commitments reflected both success-
fut closing of a number of significant PPP (Public Pri-
vate Partnership) and PFl (Project Finance Initiative)
loan transactions (some of which had been in pro-
gress in previous years), and a new focus on
providing long-term funding to UK utility companies
providing essential services to the public such as
water, electricity and gas. In addition to the growth in
lean margin and commitment fee income from the
arranging and provision of direct funding, 2006 also
saw significant advisory fee and derivatives income
(bocked in the CPS segment).

Headcount in this specialist area was increased and
the Infrastructure Finance Unit (IFU) now numbers
53 {with 20 based in Bublin and 12 in New York —
reflecting the growing opportunities in the North
American infrastructure finance market in which
DEPFA is one of the market leaders). It is likely that
this trend will continue in 2007 with a measured
increase in numbers in most locations. In addition to
business development personnel, additional hires
have also been made in the loan portfolic manage-
ment and administration suppert functions in Dublin,
to ensure that the growth of the asset portfolio conti-
nues to be properly monitored and managed.

Main achievements

The IFU completed 63 infrastructure and PPP trans-
actions during the year (2005: 21} across a wide
range of sectors and countries, significant among
which were the following:

Golden Crossing Finance — in March cur New York
team jointly arranged and underwrote the
CAD 1.1 billion (approx. € 743 million) financing for
the construction and operation of the new “Golden
Ears” road bridge spanning the Fraser River in
Vancouver, Canada under a 32 year concession
awarded to Bilfinger Berger BOT (a major German
construction company) by the Greater Vancouver
Transportation Authority. One of several innovative
features is that this is the first AAA monoline-
wrapped bank toan compteted in North America.

Transurban 895 Inc ~ in June the New York team also
completed the US$ 408 million (approx. € 321
million} acquisition financing of the Pocahontas
Parkway (a toll road/bridge near Richmond, Virginia,
USA). DEPFA was instrumental in bringing the
transaction to fruition and acted as Financial Adviser
to Transurban {a major Australian toll-road operator
and developer) and Mandated Lead Arranger of the
debt finance. The Parkway is an operating toll-road
which was originally financed by revenue bonds
secured on toll income. However, due to lower than
expected traffic volumes, the lower revenues resulted
in the bonds being downgraded. By buying the road,
optimising the tolting and maintenance regime and
restructuring the financing on to a longer term basis,
the private sector demonstrated its ability to solve a
problem for the public sector {the Virginia Depart-
ment of Transportation).

Bradford Building Schools for the Future Programme
- in December the UK team (which is based in
Dublin} arranged Phase One of a £ 400 million PPP
investment programme. This scheme is a pathfinder
for the UK's Building Schools for the Future ("BSF™)
programme. The general BSF programme aims to
re-build or renew every secondary school in England
and Wales through a £ 2.2 billion per annum invest-
ment programme over the next 10 to 15 years.
Phase One of the Bradford pathfinder scheme covers
the rebuilding of 3 secondary schools as a PPP.
Phase Two will involve 3 more schools and the cre-
ation of six new special needs schools. This project is
essential to the success of the UK Government’s
BSF Programme. The solutions developed and time




spent to conclude negotiations on this project,
should introduce significant efficiencies for future
projects under the general BSF programme. DEPFA,
as Mandated Lead Arranger of this financing played
an important part in the successiul closing of this
high profile project.

Loan portfalio

A significant proportion of the asset volume increase
during the year {approx. 66%) was credit enhanced
by monoline insurers (generally rated AAA), and
although the returns on this type of business are
naturally below those for lower-rated PPP loans, the
allocated regulatory capital under Basel Il will be
lower, thereby generating a very attractive return on
risk-weighted assets (RoRA) from that time onwards.

Securitisation: EPIC Il CLO

An important component of our infrastructure finance
business model is a variation of the Group's
traditional use of “on-balance sheet securitisation”
based on the Group’s ability to intermediate between
the public sector's funding requirements on one
hand, and the institutional investor appetite for good
quality assets on the other {through Pfandbrief or
ACS issuance for pools of public sector assets).

In July we succassfully closed our second “EPIC”
CLO (Coliateralised Loan Obligation) of PPP loans
which applies these same basic principles to the in-
frastructure asset class. This € 900 million nominal
synthetic transaction was relatively complex and the
underlying pool comprised 28 loans from 11 coun-
tries in 7 currencies. The successful placement of
“EPIC 1I" at attractive pricing levels, demonstratad
both the growing investor appetite for the PPP asset
ctass, and investor confidence in the quality of the
underlying portfolic assets and DEPFA's credit
management skills. Through having established an
effective securitisation model, we are able to
efficiently manage the amount of regulatory capital
allocated to this segment, and thereby remain active
in mature PPP markets (such as UK PFl) where there
is continuing to be strong competitive downwards
pressure on loan marging.

Results

The segment shows a substantial increase in
revenues to € 55 million {2005: € 25 million) and
financing commitments to € 8.2 billion at the year-
end (2005: € 3 billion). Despite the substantial growth
in funding commitments during the year, the quality
of the portfolic remains good with no impairment
provisions in 2008. Profit before taxes in this segment
totalled € 36 million in 2006.

Infrastructure Finance 2006

€m
Net interest income 39
Non interest revenues 16
Total operating income 55
Operating expenses -19
Loan loss provisions -
Profit before taxation 36

Balance sheet:

Financing volume {on balance sheet) 5741
Financing volume (off balance sheet} 2,456
Average equity 242
Ratios:

Cost/Income ratio 35%

RoE {pre tax) 15%

2005 Variance Variance

€m €m %

20 19 95%

5 11 220%

25 30 120%

-14 -5 36%

-3 3 -100%

8 28 350%

1,879 3,862 205%

1,014 1,442 142%

115 127 110%
56%
7%
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Outlook

The global reguirement far infrastructure financing
and development continues to grow strongly. We
have positioned curselves in all the major markets
with strong, locally based teams (supported
by other teams such as Dublin and London as
necessary) who can originate and transact advisory
and lending opportunities for private sector clients
bidding for infrastructure/PPP concessions, and to
a growing extent, the acquisition of essential
infrastructure assets in the privatisation process
(wholly or partly). Privatisation allows public sector
owners to “monetise” the present values of future
revenue streams and thereby generate an important
alternative source of public funding.

In addition tc our existing capability to provide the
complete range of infrastructure project finance
products and services, we have recently established
a Structured Export Finance team which will assgist
public sector clients in developing countries to
access competitive long-term financing for the
procurement of capital plant and machinery (such as
railway rolling stock, gas and water pipelines and
power generation equipment} from international
suppliers. The financing of such assets is largely
secured by credit insurance from highly-rated
sovereign-backed Export Credit Agencies (ECA) to
mitigate the palitical and commercial risks inharent in
such markets.

We are also expanding our capability to not only
advise and arrange the senior debt financing
components for infrastructure projects, but also to
arrange, and to a measured extent, provide the
equity and mezzanine components as well, in
conjunction with other long-term institutional
investors.

In developing the infrastructure finance business over
the coming year, we will continue to monitor the port-
folio credit risk carefully, and increase the value
added from new business activity by realising syner-
gies with other products offered by the Bank (such as

derivatives), and of course continue to leverage off
the close relationships the Bank has established with
leading players in the infrastructure sector from both
public and private sectors throughout the world.

Client Product Services (GPS)

Introduction

The CPS segment encompasses products and
structured transactions that provide added value to
clients, 8.g. derivatives products, securitisation and
advisory services.

Main achievements

In its first full year this segment grew strongly
reflecting the Bank's investment drive into new
product areas. The main driver of growth has been
from the client derivatives business. Other product
areas that are at an earlier stage of development also
started to make a contribution to the segment
results: the scaling up of the securitisation unit, the
continued ramp up of GIC {Guaranteed Investment
Contractg) volume, and the launch of a Pension
Advisory unit will ensure momentum is maintained
from a broader cross section of activities.

Cilient Derivatives and Structuring

The client derivatives business has filled an ohvious
gap in the overall debt financing package provided by
DEPFA to clients; therefore the attainment of a
certain critical size has made it easier to capture a
meaningful slice of the internal deal flow from
DEPFA's powerful financing operation. In 2006
activity developed quickly from a start-up position as
specialist staff were added to swaps teams in differ-
ent regional locations. DEPFA provided interest rate
and inflation swap arrangements for 150 different
clients that were located in 23 different countries pro-
ducing flows exceeding € 10 billion. These clients
were mainly located in Western Europe, and also in
the US, Central Europe and Asia. The sales force has
significantly increased its complement of staff in the
European offices and this has corresponded to




increases in staff on our trading desks in London and
Dublin. We have developed numerous synergies with
the Infrastructure Finance Unit (IFU) group in the US
and Europe, structuring interest rate swaps for IFU
clients such as Indiana Toll Read, Pocahontas Park-
way and ICON Parking. The relationships with IFU
clients accounted for a third of our revenues.

In the first half of the year continued consistency in
the public sector derivative business provided a
steady flow of transactions. While the seasonality of
Budget Finance business resulted in muted client
flow in the third quarter, this was followed by a strong
fourth quarter which showed a good mix of revenues
from both Budget Finance and Infrastructure Finance
activities. Interestingly, the profit of transactions was
not dominated by one or two big trades but by
diverse flows from ltaly, France, Switzerland, the
Nordic region and the UK IFU.

Noteworthy is the contribution of the restructuring
business and stand-alone derivatives which provided
Euro equivalent notional of € 1.5 billion and € 4.2
billion respectively.

In the United States the CPS team is building its
reputation as a professional, commercial, and
trustworthy partner with Financial Advisors and
regional investment banks. The team executed
several negotiated derivatives transactions with
municipal issuers, as well as percentage of LIBOR,
BMA and CMS trades. One of the highlight trans-
actions was a US$ 300 million interest rate swap with
the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico.

Securitisation

DEPFA has continued to consclidate its presence in
the securitisation arena. The focus on this area now
allows DEPFA to offer this structuring expertise as a
core product in its offering to public sector clients as
well as generating stable fee income. The team
structured over € 4.3 billion in cash securitisations in
2006. Whilst the traditional focus has been in
Southern Europe, with ltaly representing the lion's

share of the business and the Iberian peninsula
complementing with smaller deals, it has made
strides in other jurisdictions.

The healthcare receivables sector in Italy remained
the driving force in deal volume throughout 2006.
DEPFA has played an important role in this market
segment both executing securitisations and
arranging asset monetisation deals for leading italian
regions. Of note is DEPFA's Lead Arranger role for the
€ 650 million Green Finance transaction and its
similar role in the monetisation of a € 715 million
healthcare receivables portfelio for the Piemonte
region. This asset class will play a less important role
in future years due to the negative consequences of
changes in ltalian legislation.

The team has also successfully diversified into
Northern Europe and new asset classes. Notable
deals in 2006 included the structuring of a
securitisation of state guaranteed mortgages in the
Netherlands and two innovative public sector
receivables securitisations in Portugal and Spain.

Guaranteed Investment Contracts (GIC)

2006 was the first full year for the Bank's GIC
activities. This product is unique to the US market
and is a way for municipal issuers to invest proceeds
from bond issues with a GIC provider like DEPFA and
much like a flexible deposit they can draw down
funds according to their needs. For DEPFA this is
an afttractive additional source of funding. The
contribution of this new stream of business was
impressive  with  the desk winning almost
US$ 3.5 billion in new funds, introducing over 50 new
municipal clients to the Bank and delivering
substantial savings to the Bank’s cost of funding. In
the closing quarter of 2008, our continued
commitment to servicing client requirements was
translated into a substantial increase in number of
hids won.
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Pension Advisory

In 2006 DEPFA established a Pension Advisory
Group in Amsterdam. The location was chosen to
tap the large pool of knowledge that exists in The
Netherlands as a consequence of the developed
pension market and the dedicated academic and
commercial research that accompanies such an
industry. This team can advise clients on the impact
of policy choices, on the funding costs and afford-
ability of pension and other social benefits. In
addition it can provides alternatives in the area of
structuring, financing and investing reserves for
clients. The planning and analysis are based on
robust state of the art quantitative models which are
used as a starting point for determining a tong-term
financial plan for the sustainability of social henefits.

Results

The main driver of non-interest revenues are interest
rate swaps for clients with the great majority of
transactions connected with the Bank’s financing
activities (in Infrastructure and Budget Finance). In
addition to a number of first time CPS clients for
DEPFA, there is already an important element of
repeat business with a rising proportion of
transactions arranged with the same public sector
clients. Revenue streams from newly started
businesses will help to sustain this segment's

earnings growth in the future. Profit before taxes in
this segment totalled € 37 million in 2006.

Outlook

In 2007 we expect continued growth in tailored
products and structured transactions that provide
value-added services for our public sector clients.
We will continue to broaden and diversify our product
range. During 2007, DEPFA will continue to build a
securitisation/asset monetisation franchise. Implicit
to this is the broadening of the asset class base,
where we anticipate focus on regulated sector assets
(e.g. electricity tariffs}, and a more diverse country
distribution with the Iberian peninsula and Eastern
Europe as likely areas of expansion. With the growth
in structured credit derivatives worldwide, the team
has set up a book to actively manage and off-lay in
cash and other synthetic positions. This desk was
established in 2006 and it expects significant income
to accrue from this business in 2007,

In Securitisation, we have a growing pipeling of
originated deals which will help a great deal to
increase the financial results during 2007. In the GIC
business we head into 2007 confident that adept
pricing, the heightened client awareness of our
capabilities, the reaffirmation of our Moody's rating,
and the roll cut of our AAA wrapped GIC programme

Client Product Services 2006

€m
Net interest income . 2
Non interest revenues ~ 59
Total operating income 61
Operating expenses N .24
Profit before taxation 37

Balance sheet:

Financing volume {on balance sheet) 2,372
Financing volume {off balance sheet} -
Average equity 46
Ratios:

Cost/Income ratio 39%
RoE {pre tax) 80%

2005 Variance Variance
€m €m %
1 1 100%
21 38 181%
22 39 177%
-16 -8 50%
6 3 _ 517%
5 . 2,367
25 2 84%
n/a )
nfa




will allow us to significantly grow our book and pro-
fits. In Pension Advisory we will focus on building
client relationships and winning new clients.

Global Markets

Introduction

Global Markets incorporates the Group’s trading
activities in the public sector debt markets. There
have traditionally been two facets to these activities:
on the one hand proprietary interest rate positioning
of our own public sector assets on the balance
sheet, and on the other, active trading of traditional
debt instruments. Due to the flattening yield curve
and rising short-term rates the emphasis in 2006
shifted away from large interest rate positions
towards more diversified trading activities (g.g. public
sector related credit trading both in emerging and
mature markets).

Main achievements

In 2006 the BMA (Bond Market Association) swap
desk, which only commenced operations in late
2005 was one of the top performing trading areas in
2006. BMA is the tax exempt equivalent of LIBOR in
the US Municipal swap market. A Tender Option

Bond Program (TOB) launched in late 2006 provides
an additional profitable route into the huge tax-
exempt Munibond market. Under this programme a
Municipal Trust is established to invest in U.S. tax-
exempt municipal debt, which is financed by the
issuance of short-term, highly-rated floating-rate tax-
exempt securities. DEPFA hedges the fixed-floating
interest rate risk in the swap market by paying fixed
and receiving either BMA or LIBOR. Income from the
trusts’ investments in these medium to long-term
fixed-rate tax-exempt securities will be used to first
pay a coupon 1o the investers in the short-term
floaters and residual income will be earned by DEPFA
as the equity investor in the trust.

Resulis

The contribution from the Global Markets segment
has as expected declined as a proportion of total
earnings due to the flattening yield curve and rising
short-term rates. Earnings have therefore shifted
away from large interest rate positions towards more
diversified trading activities. The favourable interest
rate environment in past years helped fuel the high
growth rates of the Bank and as a consequence
DEPFA is now in a much healthier equity position.
Going forward the contribution from this segment will
be derived from a more balanced set of trading
desks. This is expected to lead to a more stable

Global Markets 2006
€m
Net interest income 59
Non interest revenues a5
Total operating income 144
Operating expenses -22
Profit before taxation 122
Balance sheet:
Finanecing volume (on balance sheet) 14,445
Financing volume {off balance sheet) -
Average equity 688
Ratios: i
Cost/Income ratio 3 15%
RoE (pre tax) . 18%

2005 Variance Variance
€ m € m %
102 -43 -42%
244 -159 -65%
346 -202 -58%
-34 12 -35%
312 -1%0 -61%
11,116 3,329 30%
512 176 34%
10%
61% .
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earnings stream for the Bank. Profit before taxes in
this segment iotalled € 122 million in 2006.

Outlook

2007 will see a shift to more diversified trading
platforms and new products will ensure greater
consistency in the overall trading performance.

Corporate Centre

The Corpoerate Centre consists of various cost and
revenue items that due to their special character do
not fitintg any particular business segment or can be
seen as supporting the entire organisation as a whole
rather than individual segments. For example,
support-related costs cover Group functions like
Group Accounting and Reporting, Corporate
Communications, Internal Audit and Compliance
among others. ltems of special character include
charitable donations and sponsorships, such as

DEPFA's on-going relationship as corporate sponsor
te Concern. The segment includes residual property
assets which are plainly a non-core activity since
DEPFA decided to focus exclusively on public
finance in 2002. The higher negative net interest
income result partly reflects the fact that the Bank re-
duced the property assets on its bocks during 20086.
Otherwise this line has a clear bias towards
interest expenditure relating to subaordinated debt
(lower Tier I and profit participation certificates)
which is charged in its entirety to the Corporate
Centre. Non-interest revenues showed a positive
result, mainly due to valuation effects of derivatives
that do not qualify for hedge accounting according to
IAS39 and therefore must be treated as a trading
item in the consolidated profit and loss statement.
Though there was some volatility in the interim
quarterly results in 2006 due to these valuation
effects the overall net impact over the longer term
was negligible. The loss before taxes in this segment
totalled -€ 104 million in 2006.

Corporate Centre 2006
- = .. - . - €nm
Net interest income ) -31
Non interest revenues |. &
Total operating income ‘ -25
Operating expenses i ' 1 -79
Profit before taxation -104
Balance sheet: o o
Financing volume {on balance sheet) - 4,590
Financing volume {off balance sheet} -
Average equity . -l

2005 Variance Variance

€m € m °/p

-10 _ 21 210%

-9 15

-19 -6 32%

-66 ) -13 _20%

-85 -19 22%

© 5an 781 5%
309 -108 -35%




Europe

Benelux countries

In the Benelux countries, sustained marketing efforts
and a focus on key clients enabled us to further raise
the profile of the Bank and to both strengthen
existing relationships and gain new clients. In both
Belgium and the Netherlands we provide long-term
lending and interest rate hedging products. DEPFA is
a well recognised market player in Infrastructure
Finance also in this region and our team is supporting
consortia on many of the larger projects tendered.
Both markets have proven in the recent past to be
very competitive.

Czech and Slovak Republics

This year we were successful in assuring our role to
finance the capital needs in local and foreign
currencies of both republics and their related
entities. tn the future, we will also concentrate on
strengthening relationships at the regional and
municipal levels.

France

The French public finance market remains highly
competitive with many banks competing for a share
of public sector business. Additionat pressure on
margins is coming from new market entrants who are
attracted by the market sophistication and appetite
with regard to structured loans and swaps. However,
despite these negative trends DEPFA has been able

to maintain new business origination, both with
existing and new clients, at a high level. We continue
to strengthen our local expertise in structured
products and derivatives as well as in client
relationship management. The Bank is also
proposing Public Private Partnership solutions to
clients and the Bank was quick 1o identify
opportunities in this sector resulting from the
introduction of new PPP legislation and has thereby
achieved a leading position in this sector. An
advisary mandate for the Ministry of Transport was
successfully completed once the French State had
granted a concession for the A85 Pau/Langon
motorway with A'liénor in December 2006. DEPFA
was also mandated by Lille Métrepole Communauté
Urbaine, a client since the mid 1980s, to advise them
on the construction of a new 50,000 seater sports
stadium with preliminary studies and on-going
assistance during the tender process.

We have also advised several construction
companies and consortia regarding on-going
tenders in various sectors including health,
motorways and public buildings. The innovative
cooperation agreement signed in December 2005
with Challenger Investissement, an investment fund
of Bouygues Construction, in order to provide
competitive funding for smaller PPP transactions in
France has led to further successful bids for which
DEPFA will arrange the financing.
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Germany and Austria

Despite high competition in both countries and the
reduced funding needs of the public sector due to
high tax inflows, DEPFA was successful in generating
a decent volume of new business by its local crigi-
nation team in Frankfurt. We have continued to
strengthen our local expertise and tailor-made
finance in structured products and derivatives as well
as in client relationship management both with
existing and new clients.

Greece

Since early 2005 Greece has been subject to an
"excessive deficit procedure” of the EU, which
has restricted the country's ability to borrow.
Consequently, credit spreads have narrowed despite
negative news on statistical volatility. During 2006
DEPFA stepped up its coverage in particular of
government guaranteed State Agencies from our
Nicosia office. DEPFA secured two landmark
transactions: a € 713 million bond lean for the
Hellenic Railways (HRQ) and a € 340 million bond
loan for Athens Urban Transport Organisation, both
solely underwritten by DEPFA. Furthermare, we were
selected to submit a restructuring proposal for a
significant amount of the HRO cutstanding debt.
Pubtic Private Partnership activity also picked up in
2006 as a result of new legislation, and DEPFA
supported censortia bidding for major road projects.
The outlock for 2007 is promising due to broader
coverage of public sector clients such as
municipalities and the mare diversifiad product range
that we can now offer,

Hungary

In Hungary, we had a very successful year and can
show a number of remarkable transactions due to
our sustained marketing efforts and focus on key
clients. We have both strengthened existing
relationships and gained new clients. Highlights were
the long-term lending and interest rate hedging
preducts at the sovereign level in the notional of € 850
millicn. For 2007 DEPFA is strengthening the team
with three additional relationship managers who are
responsible for Hungary, Slovakia and the Czech
Republic.

ireland/ Northern [reland

New business lending volumes increased by 70% in
2006 and cross sales increased significantly.
DEPFA's product range utilised by its Irish customers
expanded to include lending, commercial paper,
interest rate restructuring and infrastructure
financing. The customer base was enlarged in 2006
with severat new customers including government
related entities and local government in Northern
Ireland. The Irish economy showed continued GDP
growth in 2008 of 5.25% and significant investment
will continue in 2007 in the infrastructure area.

ltaly

In 2008 DEPFA further strengthened its franchise
with ltalian public sector authorities, expanding its
client base and criginating several transactions with
new counterparties that yielded all-in above market
returns, despite the increasing competition in the
market.

Traditional origination and lending activities of the
[talian team were maintained at high levels, as DEPFA
played an active role in many large transactions
during the year.

DEPFA was Sole Arranger/Bookrunner and Lead
Manager of the inaugural domestic bond issue of the
Region of Valle d’'Aosta and Joint-Bookrunner/Joint
Arranger and Joint Lead Manager of the € 350
million inaugural Eurobond issue of the Region of
Veneto, which was the first 40 year Eurobond ever
issued by an ltalian Region. At the beginning of the
year DEPFA also arranged the domestic bond issues
of the Region of Veneto and of the Region of
Tuscany that reached for the first time the extra-long
maturity of 50 years. Furthermore, DEPFA acted as
Co-Lead Manager in the Region of Lazio's bond
issue, and as Arranger and main investor in the Re-
gion of Piemonte’s sale of healthcare receivables.
Lastly, DEPFA acted as Sole Investor of the first ever
50-year inflation-linked bond of € 1 hilion issued by
the ltalian Treasury.

in further developing its core business, DEPFA
succeeded in proposing tailor-made financial solu-




tions to its clients’ needs, developing exclusive pro-
ducts for the state authorities and theretore
remaining an innovative counterparty for its clients.

Domestic Partly Paid Bonds have been a key product
for the Bank in ltaly during the whole year, since
DEPFA is the only bank in the market able to arrange
this structure. DEPFA has also significantly increased
its derivatives business in italy, increasing the number
of deals closed and the diversity of the client base.

Nordic and Baltic Countries

In the Nordic countries central and local govern-
ments enjoy strong budget surpluses as strong eco-
nomies have boosted tax receipts from both the
private and corporate sectors. The healthy state of
the public finances has invariably reduced demand
for both refinancing and new borrowing. Never-
theless, there are stilt a variety of interesting business
opportunities, which do not necessarily involve debt
financing. In particular, DEPFA has focused its efforts
on advising clients on debt management, risk
management policy and future investment needs.
Most transactions are structured loans or derivatives
on a stand alone basis. DEPFA has developed a
strong understanding of clients’ financial positions
over time, which has made us a natural long-term
finan-cial partner. The region is covered from the
Copen-hagen Representative Office and staff capa-
city has been expanded to continue to grow these
client relationship efforts.

In 2006 DEPFA also began active coverage of the
Baltic States from the Copenhagen Representative
Office and quickly secured participations in public
procurement tenders. Over time the Bank
established strong relationships with the largest
municipal borrowers. Besides financing public
sector entities at the state and municipal level we
have also started to look at gaovernment related
institutions (GR1s). Furthermore, DEPFA is developing
ties with partner banks, which opens up
opportunities to collaborate on future transactions, if
the need arises. Some notable transactions that were
closed in the region in 2006 were for the financing of
three hospitals in Latvia guaranteed by the Republic

of Latvia (€ 56 million), an advisory mandate for City
of Riga on the restructuring of its loan portfolic and a
co-lead manager role in a € 600 million loan to the
Republic of Lithuania (DEPFA's allocation was € 150
millicn),

Poland

As 2006 was a start-up year for the new Warsaw
Representative Office the main emphasis was on
identifying the key players in the public sector and
developing meaningful relationships with their key
officials. We initiated discussions with some of the
largest cities in the country, government related
institutions and infrastructure projects {such as toll
motorways}, and the Ministry of Finance regarding
our more senior participation in upcoming Bench-
mark bond issues.

Portugal

In line with the generai trend in the Eurcpean public
sector market, we witnessed both spread com-
pression and stronger competition in this market.
Nevertheless, DEPFA was the most active entity at
regional level, obtaining the mandate role for the
Region of Madeira € 256 million bond issue, the
€ 100 million bilateral loan with infrastructure com-
panies Sociedades de Desenvolvimento de Madeira,
a € 50 million loan with the Regional Government of
Azores and a € 36 million loan with the Azores re-
gional infrastructure company (SPRHI). At municipal
level, we also closed the biggest deal in this market,
the € 144 million transaction involving Parque Expo
and the City of Lisbon.

Romania and Bulgaria

The accession of Romania and Bulgaria to the EU
has created the conditions for strong infrastructure
development over the next few years, as the
investments needed to align the development of
these two countries with the rest of the EU are huge.
Sizeable investments that have been earmarked by
the EU's various accession funds have to be
matched by funds made available by public sector
authorities. We believa that the need to finance those
matching funds, together with the increasing political
support for the. concept of Public Private
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Partnerships represents a significant opportunity for
speciafist public sector banks like DERPFA.

Russia

The rising influence of the state in the economy, led
by the strategic decision of the Russian Federation to
efficiently manage the extraction and distribution of
its huge energy resources, will lead to an increasing
need for financing of various government related
institutions, utility companies as well as state
controlled banks, at both the level of central faderal
authorities as well as republic authorities. An
important role can be played by specialist institutions
such as DEPFA, both in advising, as well as financing
of the public sector.

Slovenia

We can show strong results in our recent market
entry in Slovenia, where we have quickly established
close contacts at the sovereign level and with
sovereign-related entities. This success is reflected
by two major ioan facilities within a short time frame.

Spain

The Spanish public sector market was characterised
by further upgrades in the ratings of the Spanish
regions. The devolution trend is increasing the
political and economic weight of the regions,
particularly in the areas of health and education. The
combination of the new demand for social equipmant
at regional level and the strict debt and deficit control
imposed by the Central Government, foster a
number of PPP concessions (o develop social
infrastructure projects including hospitals, police
stations and court buildings. DEPFA has been the
Lead Arranger in some of the first court building and
police station PPPs in Catalonia. In addition, we were
mandated to arrange a shadow toll road financing in
Barbanza (Galicia).

Despite the tight spreads and smaller number of
bond issues, DEPFA managed to win Lead Manager
mandates in some of the most significant regional
bond issuas, such as the € 200 million Eurobond for
Castilla-La Mancha, successfully closed with a
substantial oversubscription after a four day road

show across Eurcpe, and the Region of Madrid
€ 300 million buy-back bond issue. DEPFA also was
heavily involved in the financing of the new Madrid
Barajas Airport Terminal, in which we had the biggest
financial participation with two bilateral loans with the
Spanish National Afrport Authority (AENA) for a total
amount of € 2 billion. We continued to be active in the
securitisation market, confirming our role as one of
the strongest investors in the securitisation of SME
loans guaranteed by the Kingdom of Spain and the
Region of Catalonia.

Switzerland

After four years of direct coverage of the Swiss
market, DEPFA now has a well established repu-
tation for long-term financing of local authorities and
the health sector and for tailor-made structured
financing as well as derivatives. We have been able to
strengthen a number of key client relationships in a
very competitive environment impacted by new
market entrants and regulatory changes. In Decem-
ber 2006, DEPFA was able to close a landmark
transaction for Hopital Neuchételois (CHF 250 million
for 20 years). Furthermore, we originated new trans-
actions of more than CHF 600 million in the German-
speaking part of Switzerland.

United Kingdom

Interestingly, it has only been relatively recently that
DEPFA has built up a sizeable volume of UK pubtic
sector assets. The existence of a state run provider
of cheap funds to local authorities, the Public Works
Loan Board (PWLB) means that the market was
effectively closed to cutside financial providers. Even
80, since the end of 2005 PEPFA has targeted direct
origination of local authorities business in the area of
so-called LOBOs (Lender's Option, Borrower's
Option) financing, which is really the only other area
of debt financing that local authorities contemplate
besides PWLB borrowing. These loans are very long
term in naturs, typically of a 60 year duration. DEPFA
originated a significant volume of new LOBO
business from local authorities seeking to
reschedule existing LOBCs at lower rates, which
were still very attractive for DEPFA,
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Americas

United States

DEPFA's US origination activity in 2006 was focused
on two main sectors, being a} student loan bonds
issued under the US government's federal family
education loan programme {'FFELP") and b) taxable
municipal bonds, We originated US$ 6.7 billion of
bonds, growing the overall US back book to
US$ 21.8 bilion by the year end. 2006 was another
strong year of issuance for student loan bonds, and
DEPFA continued to be a major participant, investing
in over US$ 4 billion of notes which represented a 6%
share of total issuance. These bonds carry the
highest credit rating, are very liquid and are eligible
collateral for the ACS pool.

We also increased our profile in the US by both
investing and acting as co-manager in three student
loan deals which totalled US$ 7.8 billion, two for
‘Sallie Mae' (SLMA 2006-2 & 20086-7) and one for
Nelnet (NSLT 2006-2}. These issuers are the two
largest servicers of US FFELP 1oans.

In the taxable municipal bond market, total issuance
was up slightly on 2005 by 3% to US$ 29 billion,
largely due to increased issuance in state housing
and mititary housing bonds. Although this market
represents an opportunity for DEPFA to diversify its
investments across a number of US states and cities,
demand for bonds far outstripped supply in the last
12 months, conseguently margins tightened
significantly. In 2007 DEPFA will continue to source
bonds but on an opportunistic basis. Apart from an
increase in so-called “other post employment
pension” {OPEB) bond issuance, a number of US
states also face significant under-funded pension
liabilities for civit servants. The bond market offers
one possible solution o this problem.

Other interesting areas for DEPFA included the
growing market for securitisation of stranded costs
by US utility companies; these siructures also benefit
from the general obligation backing of individual
US states. The state of Texas has underwritten
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two deals to date, while further transactions are
expected in Florida and Virginia. In 2006 DEPFA
invested in circa US$ 600 million of these bonds in
two Benchmark transactions, the mast recent being
'AEP Funding' a US$ 1.7 hillion deal. We expect
that this market will continue to develop in 2007,

DEPFA entered the North American infrastructure
market in 2004 by establishing its infrastructure
Finance Unit - Americas’ {IFU — Americas) with three
professionals. IFU-Americas inaugural financing
was as a Mandated Lead Arranger as part of the
US$ 400 million senior debt facilities for the SR125
toll read in California. This initial success continued
into 2005 with DEPFA again acting as a Mandated
Lead Arranger in the landmark US$ 1.2 billion finan-
cing of the Chicago Skyway acquisition. DEPFA's
leading position in North American infrastructure
financing has led to an increase in staff resources
irom three professicnals in 2005 to 16 at the start of
2007. This increased commitment is a result of the
considerabte growth in the North American infra-
structure sector and DEPFA’s leading position in this
market. In 2006 IFU-Americas underwrote in excess
of US$E 1 billion of senior bank debt notably including,
aciing as a Mandated Lead Arranger and underwriter
of the US$ 4.1 billion financing of the acquisition of
the Indiana Toll Road, the CAD 1.1 billion financing
for the development of the Golden Earg Bridge in
Canada and the US$ 603 million financing of the
acquisition of the Pocahontas Parkway in Virginia.
IFU-Americas is also a market leader in advising
private consortia on infrastructure project financing
and is currently mandated to act as the financial
advisor to private consortia on over US$ 8 billion of
infrastructure investments across North America.

Canada

Demand for Canadian public sector assets remained
buoyant in 2006 with resulting spread pressure.
DEPFA has developed strong client relationships in
the Canadian market and secured attractive private
placement business in 2006, Our product offering
increased to customers with several customers
purchasing our liability products. Infrastructure
financing has also developed across our client base.

South America

Shortly before vyear-end DEPFA opened a
representative office in Sao Paulo to cover South
America, focusing in particular on Brazit and Chile.
The office is initially staffed with three professionals
specialising in Infrastructure and Budget Finance
transactions, advisory business and the product
range covered by Client Product Services. DEPFAs
first role as a Mandated Lead Arranger (MLA) in
South America was obtained in Chile through the
Infrastructure Finance Unit. It involved the financing
of a concession from the Ministry of Public Works for
the operation of a customs building/facility on the
border between Chile and Argentina (Puerto Terrestre
Los Andes). The structure used enabled DEPFA to
provide local currency funding through the Spanish
Instituto de Credito Oficial. Part of the facility has
been subsequently syndicated. Obtaining MLA
positions and then partially placing the risk is the
model for our general approach to business in the
region. In 2007 we also plan to establish a local
presence in Mexico.




Asia (excluding Japan)

Market conditions in Asia continue to improve, which
has led to upgrades in the credit ratings and credit
spread tightening in many countries in the region.
DEPFA has made good progress in securing
business from the region's top public sector
horrowers; most notably the Bank acted as a Senior
Joint Lead Manager on glotal bond offerings by the
Republic of Korea and the Export-Import Bank of
Korea. DEPFA plans to strengthen its capacity
in Hong Kong, which will be converted into a branch
in mid-2007.

Japan

In Japan, greater de-regulation in the pricing mecha-
nisms and financing methods of public debt have
created new business opportunities. However, at the
same time there has also been fierce competition
amongst financial institutions, both domestic and
foreign, that has been one of the factors in the per-
sistently tight spreads for central and local govern-
ment debt. The Tokyo Branch has managed to gain
access to more client business opportunities by
securing membership -of additional underwriting
syndicates that are able to bid for local government
tender offers. The number of syndicates of which
DEPFA ts a member reached 19 in 2006, which is
exactly half the number of public bond issuers.
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Costantino Peiser:

“Qur strong underwriting capacity combined with a deep market knowledge and distribution strength
rmade DEPFA the transaction driver in a challenging market environment.”

Client:

Need:

Solution:

People:

Hungarian Develcpment Bank (MFB)

MFB had hitherto conducted its internaticnal funding via the private placement and syndicated
loan market. Due to increasing funding needs, the management of MFB decided to diversify its
funding scurces.

Issuance of € 500 million Benchmark Bonds in March and October 2008, achieved by intensive
marketing efforts throughout Europe.

Bettina Schérnig, Managing Cirector, CRM Frankfurt

Birgit Haase, Associate Director, CRM Frankfurt

Costantino Peiser, Managing Director, Debt and Asset Management Products, Frankfurt
Michael Cummins, Director, Balance Sheet Management, Dublin
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Business Development

DEPFA BANK has further strengthened its position
as the leading financial institution serving exclu-
sively the financial needs of public authorities world-
wide. DEPFA's strong market position has also
strengthened its earnings profile. On the one hand,
earnings are becoming more diversified without any
toss of focus on the public sector. On the other,
earnings stability is being enhanced by clustering
more products around DEPFA’s traditionally strang
client debt relationships. In summary, the client busi-
ness has established itself as the core of the Bank's
earnings. It is worth keeping in mind that the Bank’s
remarkable profit growth in the initial years following
the demerger in 2002 was not sustainable in the
long-term, precisely because it relied on too few
profit drivers like debt financing and trading activi-
ties. Therefore it was a logical step tc build the
product range beyond debt financing as there was a
growing market for more sophisticated products,
but it was also essential to counter the downturn in
trading revenue from the changing yield enviren-
ment. In particular, derivatives activity has rapidly
established itself as the integral part of the tradi-
tionally strong debt financing operation. Likewise,
investments in building up the Infrastructure Finance
capability that have been made over the last 7 years
have begun to yield substantial results.

Net income rose by 11% to € 526 million. This
corresponds to a Return on Equity of 21% after tax.
A review of the results by business segments
underlines a significant transformation in the Bank's
earnings mix for 2006: the combined pre-tax result
of the client facing segments Budget Finance,
Infrastructure Finance and Client Product Services
increased by 70% to € 628 million, which more than
offset lower income from Global Markets trading
activities. 2006 has been the most successiul year
in the long-term development of the Bank’s public
sector franchise.

Net interast income was virtually flat at € 425 million
{2005: € 422 million}. However, a deeper appraisal

reveals a healthy underlying development as interest
income from Budget Finance and Infrastructure
Finance, which make up the great majority of the
Bank's interest bearing assets rose by 20% to
€ 395 million. This offset the reduced contribution of
carry income in Global Markets due to a fiat yield
curve. In 2006 DEPFA ocriginated approximately
€ 59 hillion in new Budget Finance and Infra-
structure commitments. The Bank's priority has
been to conserve the profitability of its low risk/high
guality public finance portfolio, albeit with a lower
amount of new business volume, Rather than keep
leverage at historical levels, DEPFA has opted for a
more prudent strategy of reducing iis leverage
during the current cycle of compressed spreads.

Net fee and commission income rose by 60% to
€ 32 million. This reflects the heaithy development in
the Liquidity Support and Letter of Credit facilities
business in the US as well as increased advisory
fees from DEPFA's infrastructure financing activities.

Net trading incorme amounted to € 140 million. This
result is not comparable with the previous year's
-€ 114 million trading loss, which includes losses on
covered options related to asset sales but which
were required to be reported as part ¢of the trading
result. An increasingly important factor for the trad-
ing income is the client derivatives business, which
was the main driver behind the strong performance
of € 59 million in the first full year of the Client Pro-
duct Services segment, There was a good perform-
ance across the trading desks in the Global Markets
segment in mature and emerging markets bond and
derivatives.

Gains from sale of assets declined by 42% to
€ 277 million. Sales related almost entirely to credit
spread movements in the hedged Budget Finance
portfolio. The public finance portfolio is actively
managed to ensure an oplimal return from gains
from sales and interest income. Typically, the Bank
hoids assets for a certain number of years, selling a




part of them when they have gained in value. In
2006 this approach improved the interest margin of
the asset porticlio at the same time as higher
margin new business replaced the lower yielding
bonds that were sold.

Operating expenses rose by 6% to € 228 million.
Staff expenditure rose by 5% to € 138 million due to
the sizeable increase in staff over the past 2 years as
part of the Bank's strong organic growth. At the end
of 20086 the Bank employed 600 staff, compared
with 500 staff at the end of 2005 (+20%j). The new
hires are split equally between front office and
suppoert roles to ensure risk and work processes
remain well controlled in the larger organisation.

Profit and loss acount

Earnings
Net interest income
Net fee and commission income
Net trading income
Gains less losses from financial assets
Cther operating income
Total operating income
Operating expenses
of which personnel expenditure
of which other administrative expenditure
of which depreciation and amortisation
of which other expenditure
Net operating income before impairment losses
Impairment losses on loans and advances
Profit before taxation
Taxation
Profit for the year - continuing operations
Result from discontinued operations

Group net income

Other administrative expenditure rose by 8% to € 78
millien, due to upgrading of existing premises and [T
systems, as well as the setting up of some new
offices. The costfincome ratio stood virtualiy
unchanged at 26%. This is a very encouraging
development during such an expansion phase as it
demonstrates the speed at which investments in
increased resources can be translated into
revenues.

Profit before taxation amounted to € 646 million, up
8% on the previous year. The tax rate moved up
glightly to 21.5% due to higher contributions from
Germany and Japan. Net income after taxes
amounied to € 526 million.

2006 2005 Change
€m €m %
425 422 1%

32 20 60%
140 -114

277 480 -42%
7

874 B15 7%

-228 -215 6%

-138 -132 5%

-78 -72 8%
9 9

-3 -2 50%

646 600 8%
- -3

646 597 8%

-139 -122 14%
507 475 7%

19 -
526 475 1%




Business Development

Group net income after tax (€ m)

2001 137
2002 236
2003 370
2004 534
2005 475
2008 . 526

0 100 200 300 400 500 600

* Until 2003 according 1o US-GAAP

Balance sheet

The on-balance sheet commitments grew by 6%
to € 194.6 bilion. The great majority of these assets
are 0% risk-weighted, which reflects the Bank's
traditional bias towards the highest tier of the state
sector, including central governments, government
agencies and multilateral institutions in OECD
countries. Off-balance sheet financing has grown
very strongly by 13% to € 24.3 billion, driven by Let-
ter of Credit and liquidity support facilities in the
United States which have standby character and
provide support for Municipal Bond issuance. The
doubling of the Bank's 100% risk weighted locans
to € 7.2 billion is connected with the growth in Infra-

Asset quality of public sector portfolio

Al 1558% F
A2 75% L
A3 18% L
AA1 9.0% L
AA2 94% L
AA3 13.8% [
AAA 374% F
lowerthan A3 55% | . .

Group RoE after tax

2001 14.8%
2002 22.3%
2003 29.4%
2004 32.9%
2005 22.7%
2006 20.7%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40%

* Until 2003 according 10 US-GAAP

structure Finance commitments, either for AAA
wrapped infrastructure and utility bonds/loans for
PPPs, where borrowers are typically special purpose
private sector companies that have been set up to
build, renovate or manage public sector infra-
structure under concessions granted by the state.
The risk is mitigated by the involvement of public
sector autharities in the reimbursement of the loans
either by public sector payment obligations or other
forms of support.

The overall quality of the infrastructure asset portfolio
continues to be very high and corresponds to an
average credit rating of AA.




Financing Volume - Group 2006

€Em
Drawn Financing Volume Total 194,585
of which with 0% weighting 134,507
of which with 10% weighting 10
of which with 20% weighting 51,943
of which with 50% weighting 826
of which with 100% weighting 7,199
New Commitments - Group 2006

€m
New commitments - Total 67,413
of which with 0% weighting 30,767
of which with 10% weighting 3.782
of which with 20% weighting 21,338
of which with 50% weighting 4,864
of which with 100% weighting 6,662

The Bank’s asset side continues to be supported by
a strong base of long-term funding, which was
reinforced in 2006 by a further increase in Covered
Bond outstanding volumes by 6% to € 94 billion. In
2006 new long-term issuance amounted to
€ 14 billion, in line with the funding target for the
year. Covered Bonds combined with other long-
term funding make up 54% of the Bank's total

Change from previous

% 2005 year
€m €m %
100% 183,948 10,639 6%
659% 129,735 4,772 4%
0% 626 -516 -82%
27% 49,333 2,610 5%
0% 938 -112 -12%
4% 3314 3.885 117%

Change from previous

%o 2005 year
€m €m %
100% 91,846 -24,433 -27%
45% 61,339 -30,672 -50%
6% 7,140 -3,358 -47%
32% 17,441 3,897 22%
7% 2,778 2,085 75%
10% 3,147 3,615 112%

funding. The Group's short-term funding volume,
which encompasses Repo funding and unsecured
Money Market instruments, most notably Commer-
cial Paper, remained at the same level as the pre-
vious year at € 96 billion. In 2006 average overall
funding levels (including long-term and short-term
funding) were significantly below Euribor.

Group currency breakdown of non-benchmark long-term funding transactions

EUR 57.7% L
UsD 240 %

CHF 5.2 %

JPY 38% |
NOK 23% |
AUD 1.9 % L
DKK 1.6 % L
QOther 3.5% L

1 1 1 | 1

)
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Structure of Group primary sale of long-term funding instruments in € m

Secured MTNs 4,451
ACS Benchmarks 4,796
Unsecured 1,865
Loans (secured and unsecured) 2,690

| 1 1 | 1 1 1
Total € 13,802 million 0 : 2 3 4 s & !
Group breakdown according to structure type of non-benchmark long-term transactions
Plain 82.52 %
Structured notes' 17.48 %

| | [ 1 1 1 i 1 [ 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 ]
0 5 10 15 20 25 30 935 40 45 50 55 60 65 7f0 B0 90 100

'All structures can be provided with cap, floor and call features
» Floating and Fixed-rate Notes

» Fixed-rate Step-up Notes

+ Reverse Floaters

* Zeros

* Range Accruals

s CMS-Linkers

Target Redemption Notes {TARNS)
Power Reverse Dual Currency Notes
Reverse Dual Currency Notes

Index Linked Notes

FX Linked Notes

Equity Index Linked

Inflation Linked Notes

Accumulator

Snowballs/ratchets

* \olatility notes

¢ Floating zeros

* Shout/switch options

£Em




Regulatory Capital and Capital Adequacy Ratios

in accordance with BIS

Regulatory capital (€ million)
Core capital (Tier [)
Supplementary (Tier [}

Total regulatory capital

Capital adequacy ratios

BIS risk weighted assets (€ million)
Core capital ratio (Tier )

Total capital ratio (Tier | + I}

The regulatory capital and capital adequacy ratios
were produced in accordance with the Bank for
International Settlements’ (BIS), Basle Accord
regulations to facilitate international comparisons.

DEPFA BANK plc is regulated by the Irish Financial
Regulator. On a Group level, DEPFA BANK pic has
to conform to the regulations of the lrish Financial
Regulator, which applies a capital/risk assets frame-
work for measuring capital adeqguacy based on the
European Union Solvency Ratio Directive (SRD) and
the Capital Adequacy Directive (CAD). Both BIS and
the Irish Financial Regulator require banks to main-
tain a minimum core capital ratio of 4% and a total
capital ratio of 8%.

31/12/2006 31/12/2005
3.156 2,976
1,350 1,104
4,506 4,080

3/12/2006 31/12/2005

33,351 24,081
9.5% 12.4%
13.5% 16.9%

With a core capital ratio of 9.5% and a total
capital ratio of 13.5% the Group exceeds the
minimum required ratios.

The lIrish Financial Regulator uses the term
Alternative Capital Instruments {ACIs) to describe
non-standard forms of capital that are generally
referred to in the market as hybrid capital. The
following structures qualify as ACI’s under Notice
BSD S1/04, ‘'Alternative Capital Instruments:
Eligibility as Tier 1 Capital’, an amendment {0 the
implementation of EC Own Funds and Solvency
Ratio Directives BSD S 1/00 of the Irish Financial
Regulator:

Year of issue Nominal amount € million Issuer Instrument Coupon
2003/2004 400 DEPFA Funding Il LP Guaranteed Non-vating 6.5%
non-gumulative Perpetual
Preferred Securities
2005 300 DEPFA Funding lll LP Guaranteed Non-voting 7% (until 2008},
non-cumulative Perpetual 10y CMS +0.1%
Preferred Securities {from 2008)
Total 700

Under the terms and conditions of the ACI's issued
out of DEPFA Funding Il LP as listed above, DEPFA
BANK plc (as the General Partner) has certain call
rights. DEPFA BANK plc will not exercise any call

right if such exercise would breach any of the
eligibility criteria for Tier 1 capital set out in Notice
BSD $1/04 quoted above.
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Forward Looking Statement

The public finance market holds more than at any
time before considerable potential for DEPFA.
Governments are more open to new ways to manage
their public finances in light of the growing expend-
iture demands related to ageing populations. Due to
its specialisation on public sector clients DEPFA is
ideally placed to profit from significant additional
business opportunities that are arising from these
client demands. The scope of DERPFA's activities has
moved in step with the changing demands of the
public sector; whereas praviously DEPFA's client
activities were very centred on debt financing the
Bank has built up capabilities in added value areas
of advisory, derivative products and structured
solutions. The strong performance of Infrastructure
Finance activities and Client Product Services in 2006
shows that the Bank is well on track to deliver the
right products and advisory services for clients.

Client businesses are being developed across the
board to meet market demand. In its traditional
Budget Finance business there are still considerable
opportunities for increasing the Bank’s presence in
the mature markets, namely throughout Europe and
North America. In the space of only 4 years the
United Siates has become DEPFA's most important
market and there is still significant scope to expand
the public finance business throughout the major US
states. In Infrastructure Finance prospects are very
bright; DEPFA will continue to buitd on its leading po-
sition in the fast growing US market by securing more
Lead Arranger mandates. The Bank is also targeting
the growing potential of public infrastructure projects
worldwide, for example new offices in Mumbai and
S&o Pauto will target projects in certain emerging
markets. We expect DEPFA's traditionally strong
pipeline of debt transactions, both in Budget
Finance and Infrastructure Finance to create signifi-
cantly more cross selling opportunities for client deri-
vatives structures. As the client derivatives business
becomes more established we expect the share of
transactions with non-DEPFA clients to increase

considerably, even opening up doors for financing
and other products.

DEPFA has implemented an organisational frame-
work to ensure its broader product range is marketed
effectively to its client base and to prospective clients.
Therefore DEPFA has created a global sales structure
in which product specialists are incorporated into the
regional offices to work alongside the client relation-
ship managers that are traditionally responsible for
the direct origination of lending business. This in-
tegrated approach to client relationship management
will help the Bank achieve important earnings
synergies and help cement its strong client relation-
ships. In addition, this greater strength in depth at
local level will put DEPFA in a strong position to take
on the challenge of heightened competition from
commercial and investment banks that have become
drawn to the huge potential of the public finance
market.

Given that staff are the key resource for a specialist
banking institution, the Bank’s organic growth is
related to the big increase in the workforce, which
has grown by approx. 40% to 600 over the past
2 years. This influx of new hires has already led {0 a
perceptible improvement in the client revenues. Over
the medium to long-term the gains from such new
hires will be even more evident as younger busi-
nesses become more established and achieve critical
size. In addition, increases in capacity will give the
Bank greater flexibility to reallocate staff rapidly to
new growth areas. The Bank will continue to make
further investments in client businesses as well as in
the necessary risk management and support infra-
structure as befits the larger organisation.

The expansion of the Bank's client facing activities
has already transformed the composition and quality
of its earnings; going forward these will be the chief
drivers of profit growth. DEPFA aims to generate a
high net Return on Equity over the long term, built on
earnings of a durable quality.
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Joseph Hughes:

“This transaction was special for several reasons; particularly unique was the innovative structure and

the extensive legal work which allowed the trade to become 'public sector' cover pool eligible, never
achieved with this asset class before.”

Client:

Need:

Solution:

People:

ABN (a € 2.4 billicn securitisation of Dutch residential mortgages issued with a guarantee from
Stichting WEW, a government sponsored housing fund established to promote house ownership)

Structure and issue over € 2.5 billion of structured ABS securities in an 8 week timeling whilst
conforming to the client's existing issuance structure as much as possitle.

Set up a SPV structure which mimicked ABN's existing issuance structure but which allowed the
structuring team the flexibility needed to make the issued bonds 'cover pool’ eligible.

Joseph Hughes, Associate Director, Securitisation. Dublin
Ravi Gidoomal, Associate Director, Structured Finance, Dublin
John Andrade, Director, Legal, Dubiin
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The DEPFA share price showed a modest increase
for the year of 8%, which falls some way below
various major equity index benchmarks such as the
Dow Jones Euro Stoxx Banks index (+18%) and the
C-Dax Banks index {(+22%). However, the DEPFA
share price was shadowing quite closely the
performance of these indices for the best part of the
year and it was only in the final quarter of the year
that a gap started to open. Taking into account a
higher proposed dividend of € 0.40 per share
for 2006 (vs. € 0.25 for 2005) a DEPFA share
investment remains solid, yielding a total shareholder
return of approximately 11% for 20086.

DEPFA has been one of the world's most profitable
banks over the past years and has consistently
achieved an RoE after tax in excess of 20%. This high
level of profitability has, however, not been fully re-
flected in a commensurate share valuation, with
DEPFA's price/earnings of 9x in 2006 representing a

discount to the sector average for European banks.
The introduction of segment reparting last year will
help to bridge this gap by giving the markets more
information about the Bank’s profit drivers and some
pointers to future performance. The segment results
in 2006 were very instructive in providing
explanations on the overall growth profile of the
segments, showing the fall in contributions from
Global Markets and the strong performance of the
Bank's three client facing segments, which
underlined where the future growth potential of the
Bank ligs. For this reason the Bank has for the past
two vyears targeted investments at the waell
established Budget Finance segment where the
Bank has a strong market position but atso at the
Infrastructure  Finance and Client Product
Services segments which have all the attributes of
young, thriving businesses with very high growth
rates.

Share price performance in 2006 DAX
100: basis —-—
C-DAX Banks
160
Dow Jones
140 Euro Stoxx Banks
DEPFA
120 I\VAG:\ .y Mwa_sl;
100 W "%\?ﬁv] ~AA
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40
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The Bank has already fulfilled one of the key
prerequisites for achieving a re-rating in its share
price; it has already significantly improved its quality
of earnings, as reflected in the shift in pre-tax profit in
2006 away from market related activities towards
client areas. The next step is generating a substantial
increase in revenues over the next few years, which is
contingent on continued investments in core client
businesses. DEPFA's client driven strategy is in tune
with market demand as all levels of government seek
more sophisticated solutions to manage their public
finances. Public authorities worldwide are confronted
by mounting challenges to cover higher ‘age-related’
expenditure resulting from ageing populations while
at the same time assuring continued investments in
essential public infrastructure and services. The
transformation of DEPFA into a full service provider
will allow the Bank to cross-sell more products to its
client base and to pitch more effectively for new busi-
ness to a much wider group of public sector entities.
The business model will over the long term continue
to deliver a high net Return on Equity based on a

Share price data

Number of shares outstanding {(m}

EPS (€)

Dividend per share (€}

Payout ratio (9%}

Book value {equity incl. retained earnings) per share (€)

Share price year high (€}
Share price year low (€}

Price/earnings ratio high
Price/earnings ratio low

Price/book value high
Price/book value low

higher degree of earnings quality than achieved in the
period of high growth rates in 2002-2004.

In 2006 DEPFA BANK plc announced that it intended
to increase the dividend payout considerably from 25
cents per share to 40 cents per share {(+60%). After
years of a continuous build-up in its equity base this
will bring DEPFA's pay-out ratio and dividend vield
closer to its European banking peers. At the same
time the Bank is ensuring that there is ample scope
for a further strengthening of capital.

Major geographical breakdown in investor mix

2006

USA/Canada 34%
United Kingdom 30%
Germany 15%
Other European Countries 13%
Employees 5%
Rest of World 3%

2006 2005
353,019,720 353,019,720
1.53 1.39
0.40 0.25
26.1 18.0
7.87 6.53
15.60 14.25
12.01 11.34
10.20 10.25
7.85 8.15
1.98 2.18
1.63 1.74
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John Kirwan:

“DEPFA's desire to find innovative solutions within & new procurement structure was a key factor
in avercoming many new challenges on this pathfinder project. DEPFA's central involvement in this
transaction further underlines our position as a leading arranger of PPP debt.”

Client:

Need:

Solution:

Amey UK plc and Costain Group plc

Transform secondary education across the district of Bradford through the provision of
state-of-the-art schools.

A £ 400 million investment programme spread across traditional procurement methods and
Public Private Partnerships (*PPP"). This scheme is a pathfinder for the UK's Building Schools for
the Future (*BSF") programme. Phase One of the Bradford pathfinder scheme covers the
rabuilding of 3 secondary schools through a Public Private Partnership. Phase Two will involve

3 more scheols and the creation of six new special needs schools.

John Kirwan, Managing Director, Infrastructure Finance Unit UK and Ireland
Jason Murphy, Director, Infrastructure Finance Unit UK and Ireland




Bradford Building Schools tor the Future Programme, UR
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2006 entailed for us a year of investment, with a view
to achieving our three most important strategic goals
- controlled geographical expansion, growth in
number of clients and further expansion of the
product range. This was also clearly reflected in the
development of staff numbers at DEPFA, which rose
by 20% in the course of the year and now stands at
600 at year-end. This means that the number of
employees has more than doubled since DEPFA
began operating as a pure public finance bank in
2002. One of last year’s specific highlights was the
launch of four new offices - in Amsterdam, Milan,
Mumbai and S&o Paulo. We set up new teams of
specialists on the product side, for example for
Guaranteed Investiment Gontracts (GIC) in the USA
or Pension Advisory operations. The year 2007 will
also be defined by a further increase in staffing levels,
which is required to create capacity in order to be
able to promote further growth all over the globe.

In light of the growth experienced by the Bank,
our Human Resources management is faced with
the specific challenge of preserving DEPFA's
special corperate culture, which is defined by

Yannick Derant,
Treasury, Capital Markets, Frankfurt:

“My interest in joining DEPFA sprang from the
firm’s characteristics: the international nature,
the sharp focus on Capital Markets, its financial
expertise and the pride that DEPFA takes in doing
its work well all greatly appealed to me. Since
then, DEPFA's challenging and constructive work
environment with highly gualified and motivated
colleagues has made my learning curve steep. |
have been given support to take on responsibility.
The working environment is inteflectually stimu-
lating, the job is very dynamic and yet the one
constant is TEAMWORK.

Simply put, DEPFA offers the internatienal chal-
lenge | am looking for, having the opportunity to
work in a multicultural team on an international
basis within one of the most ambitious and
dynamic banks in the financial services industry.”

entrepreneurial spirit, flat hierarchies and teamwork.
One of the internal communication measures used to
achieve this objective is the annual Al Staff Meeting,
which alternates between Ireland and other DEPFA
locations on consecutive years, with just under 90%
of all staff worldwide participating regularly. It pro-
vides an excellent platform for becoming mutually
acquainted, exchanging information and holding
discussions on the corporate strategy and business
development.

For the 2006 All Staff Meeting, which was held in
Frankfurt, we conducted - for the first time - an
anonymous survey among all DEPFA employees
worldwide to allow them to comment on various
topics. The very good outcome for the Bank yielded
two results that were particularly striking: more than
80% answered that they enjoy a very high or high de-
gree of scope for development and personal room for
manoceuvre. We see this excellent result as a clear
signal that the level of responsibility carried by each
employee within their individual area is exceptionally
high. Furthermore, 74% of the employees at the
same time acknowledged that the Bank provides




Eckard Alt,
Global Head of Human Resourceas, Dublin:

“The Bank seeks to actively live its culture and
maintain a positive spirit within a highly com-
petitive environment. Knowing that culture is not
static and that every new employee brings other
cultural elements into the Bank, recruiting has
become an even more challenging task than it used
to be in a tight market. Attracting and retaining
the right people is the challenge for every line
manager. We as Human Resources Managers and
professionals are committed to providing the ne-
cessary tools and to guide managers accordingly.”

them with good or very good opportunities for
staff development. These results, coupled with an
attractive remuneration structure, highlight the fact
that we are well-positioned to promote loyalty
amongst our staff.

The attractiveness is also reflected in our employee
structure, which is relatively unusual for a bank: our
average staff age is 36 years, whereby all age groups
are well represented. Global turnover is low within the
Bank as a whole - 10% in 2006. It goes without
saying that women enjoy the same employment and
promaotional prospects as their male colleagues. At
43%, female representation within our staff base is
balanced. The creation of new offices and teams also
resulted in a further increase in the number of
different nationalities (38 at the end of 2006) working
at the Bank. As in previous years, DEPFA does not
have any one dominant naticnal majority in the
workforce. Instead, our employee base is made up of
national minorities, of which the Irish are the largest,
followed by the Germans and the Britigh.

We recognise our responsibility to act as a major
player in the educational environments of our local

offices. This is why we run an annual Graduate
Programme which attracts a wide range of global
applicants. The graduates are selected from
prestigious international universities with whom
DEPFA have forged close working relationships to
ensure that a pipeline of relevant and motivated
achievers join the Bank. This can be seen in DEPFA's
long-term relationship with Trinity College, Dubtin
where a number of scholarships are awarded each
year to assist Economic under-graduates studying in
Europe. Graduates {oining DEPFA undergc an
intensive training programme which enables them to
understand the core aspects of cur business and
position themselves to specialise in a particular
department and gecgraphical location of the Bank.
2006 has also seen an increase in the number of in-
ternships awarded by DEPFA to a range of students
from Dublin to Hong Kong.
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Feople and Frincipies of remuneration

The Compensation Scheme is designed to best serve the interests of the Bank's stakeholders. It is closely
linked to the achievements cf strategic targets and the quality of earnings. Mcreover it is especially tailored to
attract and retain the best talent and to ensure market competitiveness. The overall objective of the Bank’s
Compensation Scheme is to motivate management and staff to maximise shareholder value over the
long term.

The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors has the overall responsibility for the compensation
principles and thelr application. The Compensation Committee also approves the contracts and remuneration
packages for the individual Executive Cormmittee Members. The members of the Compensation Committee
are independent Non-Executive Directors. The members are set out on page 90 of the Annual Report.

The remuneration package for all staff is composed of;

» fixed compensation, including fringe benefits

¢ variabie annual cash compensation, and

¢ variable compensation in DEPFA BANK plc shares vesting over a three year period.

As a general rule the higher the total compensation package, the higher the weighting in variable cash
compensation.

The Bank established a Trust to acquire ordinary shares in the company by market purchase to be held for the
benefit of employees. Trustees allocate shares from the share pool on 15th February each year te eligible
employees according to their individual awards. The allecation is based cn a share award approved by the
Compensation Committee based on performance for the previous year ended 31 Decernber (e.g. the share
allocation made on 15 February 2007 was made based on the achievement of certain performance criteria
(see below) in 2006). The Compensation Committee consider this award as being part of the overali
compensation package for the prior year (2008). However, as the shares have vesting conditions which
require management and staff o remain in the Bank’s employment for a three year period past the award date,
the IFRS charge in the accounts is the market value of the share award on the award date spread over a three
year period commencing on that date.

The Value Added for each year is based upon 4 Value-Added models:

Model 1 Model 3

Total operating income Total operating income

- Administration expenses - Fixed costs excluding variable compensation

- 5% of average equity - 5% of average equity

Value Added +/- OCI (other comprehensive income)
Value Added

Model 2

Total operating income Model 4

- Fixed costs excluding variable compensation Income after tax

- 5% of average equity +/- OCI (other comprehensive income)

Value Added Value Added

The total variable compensation pool is determined on the Bank’s overall performance in the relevant year,
the realisation of strategic objectives, the quality of earnings and extraordinary events. Individual fixed
compensation is based on the assessed market worth of the individual staff member taking into account their
overall responsibility. Variable compensation is awarded to individuals from the pool based on a number of
specific determinants including the achievement of specific individual objectives, leadership behaviour and
involverment in special projects. The individual compensation reflects positive development of the individual




performance proportionally and penalises negative performance over proportionally. The individual
performance is measured against an annual objective setting process. The objectives are reassessed
regularly every 6 months depending on changing circumstances.

The total compensation for 2006 and 2005 breaks down as follows:

2006 Bank total %
€Em

Fixed"' 75 83%

Variable cash 30 21%

Variable stock? 36 26%

Total 141 100%

2005

Fixed'

Variabte cash

Variable stock?

Total

Of which
EC Members
€m

4

5
12
21

Bank total
€m

1

69
28
24
21

%

15%
24%
57%
100%

%

57%
23%
20%
100%

Bank total Of which EC Members

changes % changes %

200672005 2006/2005

9% -

7% -44%

50% 20%

Of which %
EC Members
€m

4 17%

9 39%

10 44%

23 100%

As detailed above, these numbers differ from the 2006 compensation charge in the income statement as stock
awards are not expensed in the year for which the Compensation Committee awarded the stock but are
expensed over the vesting period. In addition, certain directors included in key management in the accounts
disclosure are not members of the Executive Committee. A reconciliation of the above tabte and the income

statement charge is as follows:

Total per above

Less variable stock

Award made in Feb 07

Add prior vear stock

Awards charged to income statemant in 2006
Non EC members

Other

Charge per income statement

Impact of bonuses (cash/share
compensation programme)

€m 2002 2003
Share expense - awards 2002-2005 - 10
Share expense - award 2008

Total share expense - 10
Cash bonus expense 12 17

2004
27

27
23

Bank total

2005
32

az
N

€m

M

-36

31

2006
3

K1)
32

' Fixed compensation includes salary, benefit in kinds, pension and employers social security.

2 Valued based on a share price of € 13 per shars.

3 Disclosed in accounts as key management compensation.
9

EC Members and
key management
€m

21

28°

Total
recognition
for

share
scheme
114

38

152

2007
11
21
32

N/A

2008 2009
! .

12
15

N/A N/A
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William Marrone:

"DEPFA's ability to quickly underwrite the full transaction amount of € 713 million as well as
document and close the deal in a very short period of time dernonstrated cur total commitment to the
HRO. | believe that the performance in this transaction has made a lasting impression on this client.”

Client:  Hellenic Railways Organisation, Greece

Need: Hellenic Railways Organisation annually needs to finance the requirements arising from its public
service role and investment program and it resorts to funding in the international capital markets
with a government guarantee.

DEPFA provided a fully underwritten propesal in form of a bond loan that was fully compliant with
local laws and negotiated the transaction within the required period of time.

William Marrone, Managing Director, Head of CRM Europe
Erol Riza, Managing Director, Head of CRM Greece




Hellenic Rallways, Greece




Social Responsibitity

-

As a specialist in the provision of public sector
finance but also personally, we at DEPFA feel obliged
to make a commitment towards continuous social
development. As citizens of developed and emerging
countries it is our aim to support development
projects to help disadvantaged people get better life
chances. Accordingly we are making a contribution
that is commensurate to the size of the Bank, to a
variety of social projects. Much of the focus of these
activities is on the Third World, where we promote
various projects involved in education, social
development, and combating poverty. In order to
invest our funds as efficiently as possible, we acted
early to find a partner who was experienced in
development cooperation and with whom we
could work together in selecting, planning and
implementing these activities. We have been
cooperating with Concern (www.concern.net}, the
Irish non-governmental organisation (NGO}, since
2004. This cooperation has since become a fun-
damental part of the DEPFA corporate culture, and is
being extended continuously. At present, we are
supporting three Concern projects, a brief overview
of which is provided in the following:

Tom Arnold, CEQ of Concern:

“DEPFA's relationship with Concern has had a
significant impact on our work with the world's
poorest people. What makes this relationship
unusual, however, is that the Bank's support goes
beyond financial; DEPFA staff have used their own
skills to practically assist our organisation both
domestically and internationally. When we are
asked to positively comment on corporate social
responsibility, or asked to name a business which
has had a strong impact on gur work, we respond
"DEPFA": their involvement with Concern is
unique.”

Cambodia

Camboclia is amongst the poorest countries in the
world. Poverty is both pervasive and overwhelmingly
rural; 35% of the population lives below the national
poverty line and 91% of the Cambodian poor live in
rural areas. Across the country, agriculture employs
over 70% of the workforce, with rice being the
prirary crop. Despite this primacy of agriculture in
Cambodian life, it accounts for only 31% of Gross
Domestic Product - with the services sector
accounting for 34%, and industry for 29% of GDP.
Income inequalities both between urban and rural
areas and within urban areas continue to be much
higher than in most other Asian countries.
Cambodia’s financial sector is at a rudimentary state:
the number of commercial banks is limited and
effectively non-existent outside of the capital, Phnom
Penh. In this context, microfinance operators and
the informal financial sector have been de facio
providers of financial services in rural areas, albeit
concentrating mainly on rural credit. Currently there
are at least 100 registered and unregistered lending
bodies serving the rural population in Cambodia,
including 16 licensed Microfinance Institutions {MFIs).




Since 2004, we have supported AMK (www.
amkcambaodia.com}, a Concern subsidiary, which
today is one of the country's largest and most
successiul microfinance ingtitutions. AMK’s mission
is to help large numbers of poor people in rural
Cambodia to increase their livelihood options through
the sustainable delivery of appropriate and viable
microfinance services to the economically active
poor. Thus, AMK's priorities as a provider of rural
finance are centered around its operational and
financial sustainability, whilst maintaining its social
objectives. The long-term vision of AMK is of a
Cambodian society where citizens have equal and
sufficient economic and social oppeortunities to
improve their standards of living, and where they can
contribute  productively towards the overall
development of the country. As an acknowledge-
ment of its very successful work, AMK received the
2005 CGAP Financial Transparency Award on 7 June
2006. Microfinance also received an enormous boost
in 2006, when Muhammad Yunus, founder of the
Grameen Bank, was awarded the Nobel Peace Prize.

Mozambique

Mozambique's independence from Portugal in 1975
was followed by nearly two decades of civil war.
Between 1977 and 1992 up to a million Mozam-
bicans died from fighting and famine in a war that
ruined the gconomy and much of the countryside. A
political settlement in 1992 ushered in a new era of
stability and economic growth for one of the world's
poorest countries. However, it suffered serious set-
backs when in 2000 and 2001 it was hit hard by
floods which affected about a quarter of the popu-
lation and destroyed much of its already decaying
infrastructure.

Concern’s working areas are situated in different
provinces and have unique socio-cultural factors.
However, the underlying realities show similarity: the
developmant context is highly unfavourable. The
districts are characterised by geographical isolation,
high vulnerability to natural disasters and low political
importance. Development both by government and
non-government bodies has generally been limited to
emergency interventions and hand-outs. Existing
community institutions are not equipped t© promote
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Social Responsibility

inclusive local development. They are dominated by
local elites and traditional leaders, and tend
towards maintaining the status quo. This prevents
communities from engaging in collective action,
either to promote community-based livelihood
initiatives or to engage and negotiate with outside
bodies, such as district government and private
sector institutions. As a result househclds are not
being provided with the means, capacity and
enabling environment to expand their livelihood
options. This teaves them vulnerable to natural
disasters, exploitation and manipulation and sustains
a circle of enduring poverty and dependency.

Breaking this cycle requires a sensitive approach to
development that balances direct livelinood support
with interventions aimed at improving governance
process. With DEPFA’s support, Concern works
directly with communities to strengthen social
capital and to build resilience, confidence and
independence at grassroots levels. Concern’s
activities essentially focus on three areas. 1) Edu-
cation: Concern (and DEPFA)} give financial assist-
ance to enable schools to be built in remote parts
of the country in order to provide children with life

chances through education. Another key objective is
to expand education beyond the primary level to faci-
litate the creation of an educated elite over the me-
dium term. 2) HIV/AIDS: Concern supports local
groups that work to remove some of the stigma at-
tached to HIV/AIDS and to raise awareness of the
dangers of this pandemic, which threatens the deve-
lopment of the entire country. 3) Livelihood: Concern
helps to provide poor families with better long-term
access to natural rescurces, services and political
decision-making processes.

Tri-country project

In September 2006, at the annual All Staff Meeting
held in Frankfurt, DEPFA staff were asked to
select which Concern project the support should
be extended to in 2007. The staff voted,
overwhelmingly, to extend the cooperation to a
tri-country livelihood programme in Rwanda, Liberia
and Sierra Leone. This project aims to provide
sustainable livelihoods for the poorest people in three
of the world’s poorest countries. Activities include the
distribution of seeds and tools, providing agricultural




training and encouraging new, more effective seed
storage techniques. Training is given to allow the
project participants to earn additional, alternative
income. Small infrastructure projects — for instance,
improving access for farmers to markets — are also
undertaken,

Employee participation

Since the start of our cooperation with Concern, we
set great store by not limiting our venture to the
financial support of € 600,000 per year for each of
the projects alone, but also to giving our staff the
opportunity to become involved on a personal level.
This has been accomplished in numerocus ways.
DEPFA staff members participate in the corporate
bodies of AMK, where they offer their expertise 10
help further develop the institution. Various teams
within the Bank support the Congern projects from
their native countries — the Bank helped develop the
AMK website, and to date has organised two press
trips to Cambodia and Mozambique in order to draw
the attention of journalists to the situation on site and
to support Concern’s fundraising campaigns through
press coverage. The press trip to Mozambique in

November 2006 was, among others, largely covered
by the BBC and the lIrish Times. Finally, our
employees have the opportunity te apply for periods
of stay with Concern. The Bank grants them leave to
carry out their duties, whilst continuing to pay their
salaries. Another option available to our staff coutd
be to organise this exchange in the future on a
reciprocal basis, so that local Concern employees in
particutar could be given the chance to work together
in one of DEPFA BANK's teams and to enhance their
professional and personal skills.
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Iexas Municipal Gas, USA




David Smith:

“The Texas Municipal Gas GICs could be the largest muni GIC deal ever done in terms of total deposits,
and one great deal attracts another.”
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Client:  Texas Municipal Gas Acquisition and Supply Corporation 1, USA

Need: The client needed a safe investment for monthly payments it receives from municipal gas
buyers in order for the client to make semi-annual interest payments on the bonds it issued to
prepay a long-term natural gas supply contract.

Solution: The client will make monthly deposits over time to DEPFA, and DEPFA will make semi-annual
payments 1o the trustee on the bonds. DEPFA hedges investments with a swap and achieves
LIBOR less 30 funding on incoming deposits totaling US$ 3.5 hillion over 20 years.

David A. Burke, Managing Director, Client Product Services Americas
David Smith, Birector, Municipal Reinvestment, New York

Tim Hawkes, Director, Derivatives Trading, New York

David Atkins, Analyst, Client Product Services Americas
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1. Risk Management Structure

One of the main features of banking business is the
management of economic risk. The targeted
handling of risk is therefore vital to ensuring the
continued existence and profitability of any
banking company. In addition, external groups
(primary investors, legislators, banking supervisory
authorities, analysts and rating agencies)
increasingly demand appropriate risk management.
To meet the commercial and statutory requirements
as well as the demands of capital market
participants and whilst ensuring that DEPFA BANK
ple continues to maintain a comprehensive systemn
for identification, measurement, early recognition
and control of risk as an integral part of its business
process, DEPFA BANK plc has enhanced its Risk
Governance structure during 2006. In this respect,
the following enhancements have been made:

* DEPFA BANK plc has established a Risk
Committee of the Board of Directors. This
Committee is chaired by Dr. Thomas Kolbeck, the
Non-Executive Vice-Chairman of the Board and
former Deputy CEQ of the Bank. This Committee is
responsible for DEPFA's risk policy statement and
provides strategic directions in relation to the
nature and scale of risk that the Group may
assume.

* DEPFA BANK plc has introduced the function of a
Chief Risk Officer. Dr. Rolf Hengsteler, a member of
the Executive Committee, is responsible for the
assessment and monitoring of all risk categories of
the Group and oversees the work of the Credit
Committees and Asset & Liability Committee. He
reports to the Risk Committee and the Chief
Executive Officer,

¢ The entire Group is now managed according to
business segments.

The risk management struciure for DEPFA BANK plc as at 31 December 2006 is detailed in the following table:

Board of Directors

] l

| I

cEo Audit * Compensation Risk
Committee Committee Committee
Executive Credit  Asset & Liability IT Steering
Committee Committee Committee Committee
Transaction
Committee
Country Risk
Committee
New York Credit
Committee




In addition to the Risk Committee, the Board of
Directors has established an Audit Commitiee and a
Compensation Committee. These committees are
comprised of Non-Executive Directors. The Board of
Directors is responsible for the overall Group
strategy. In addition, the following executive
committees have been established:

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee is responsible for the cross
functional management of the Group.

Objectives: implement strategies and controls; cross
functional coordination.

Assets & Liability Committee

The Asset & Liability Committee implements the
market risk and liquidity strategies of the Bank and
allocates capital by setting related risk limits
Objective: manage interest rate and liquidity risk,
minimise funding costs.

Credit Committees

The Credit Committees are responsible for
counterparty credit risk. They focus on credit review
and approval of individual obligors and on portfolio
and country limits.

Objective: manage credit risk.

Transaction Committee

The Transaction Committee acts on its own
behalf under delegated authority from the Credit
Committee. It resides over a class of structured
transactions, where the credit risk is overlapped by
liquidity, volatility and market risk and the ability to sell
down in addition to the pure credit risk. Limits set by
the Transaction Committee provide the basis for
underwriting approvals for the Company, which are
not intended to be hetd to maturity and where special
consideration must be given to the economic value of
a trade to enable sell-down.

The organisational responsibility for the identification, measurement, early recognition and control of risk is set

out in the following table:

Risk Categories Management

Credit Risk Credit Committee

Country Risk Country Risk Committee

Market Risk Asset & Liahility Committee

Operational Risk Executive Committee

Liquidity Risk Asset & Liability Committee
2. Credit Risk

Credit Risk is defined as the risk of impairment
and partial or total loss of a receivable due to
deterioration of credit quality on the part of a
counterparty. The retevant receivable may be based

Control & Monitoring

Credit Risk Unit

Special Risk Unit, Credit Risk Unit
Market Risk Unit

Operational Risk Unit

Market Risk Unit

on traditional on-batance sheet lending business or
off-balance sheet business, e.g. counterparty risk
arising from derivative financial instruments.
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Public Sector Credit Risk

Public sector lending accounts for over 90% of
DEPFA BANK pic's total consolidaied on-balance
sheet exposures. The business is focused on
sovereign and sub-sovereign borrowers and public
sector supported financial and specialist entities.

This is reflected in the risk weightings of the Group’s
total non-trading public sector portfolio amounting
to € 187 billion of on balance sheet interest-earning

Public sector credit risk by country

RW 0,00% 69.0 %
RwW 10,00% 0.1 %
RW20,00% 29.0%

RW100,00% 1.9%
L 1 1 1 1

assets (amount excludes IFRS Fair Value adjust-
ments, regulatory trading book and fixed assets) at
31 December 2006. A BIS risk weighting of 0%
applies to 63% of these assets, reflecting the focus
on sovereign and the upper level of sub-sovereign
entities. The next largest category is counterparties
with a 20% risk weighting. These are mainly
municipalities and credit institutions without explicit
central government guarantees.

1 1 1 i I 1 | 1 ] %

0 5 10 15 20 25

The portfolio is broadly diversified with counterparties
in over 40 countries. In order to ensure the top rating
for the Pfandbriefe and Asset Covered Securities
{*ACS") cover pools and a high rating for the Bank,
business is focused on clients and counterparties

Public sector credit risk by country

Germany 25.0% [
laly 18.0% [
USA 9.3%
Spain 64% |-
France 51 % L
United Kingdom 51 % -
Greace 43% |
Austria 4.2% F
Japan 35% p
Supra-Natiorals 2.5% [
Canada 24%
Portugal 21% |-
Poland 21% B
Metherlands 20% |-
Cther 80% |- . \

30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70

with the highest credit standings. Total public sector
risk weighted on batance sheet interest-earning
assets for the Group amounts to € 14.4 billion at the
year-end.

15 20 25 30




Assessing credit risk — the internal rating system
in DEPFA BANK

Credit scoring of counterparties is critical to
DEPFA's business, almost 50% of DEPFAs
population of borrowers is unrated externally.
The scoring mode! of the Bank is reviewed
continuously. In recent years, DEPFA moved to a
unitary scoring system f{or its four main credit risk
pools {sovereign, sub-sovereign, financial institu-
tions and infrastructure finance).

Internal ratings introduce a more accurate risk
evaluation and specifically have been designed in
preparation for the implementation of the Basel
Accord. It is the intention of the DEPFA Group to
adopt the Internal Ratings Based Foundation
Approach and in this regard, the Bank has
astablished a Credit Ratings Analytics team, who
are responsible for developing scoring models,
individually tailored by country and exposure type,
to help estimate credit scores, and determine
probability of default, for all DEPFA Group credit
exposures.

DEPFA BANK has developed four core 22-grade
internal rating systems in line with each of its credit
risk pools. Whilst the scores are comparable to the
grading system used by the External Credit
Assessment Institutions ("ECAI"} and DEPFAs
models map with a high level of significance to the
ratings assigned by the ECAl's, the equivalent risk of
the rating assigned from each of the four models are
not comparable to each other, but translate into
their own unique default and recovery scales.

Such unique default and recovery statistics have
been validated through various default studies
provided by the ECAIl's.

All counterparties across all risk groups are graded
in accordance with this system. The steps to assign
and test the robustness of the internal rating involve:

¢ Grading individual counterparties through the
analysis of balance shest strength, the historic
and budgsied relationship of direct tax and central
allocation {grant) revenues with expenses, the
relationship of debt to operating surpluses,
indebtedness per capita, political stability and
guarantee structures.

e The analysis of the sub-sovereign legal framework
including the delegation of powers from the
sovereign and financial and reguiatory support of
its activities.

* Mapping internally derived ratings against the
ECAI ratings for externally rated borrowers.

The rated clients and counterparties account for a
very high proportion of DEPFA's public sector asset
volumes. Almost 33% of the portfolio of on-balance
sheet interest earning assets relates to
counterparties with triple-A ratings by ECAls while a
further 24% of assets relate to double-A ratings
by ECAls. 13.3% of the total portfolic is unrated
by ECAls. In this analysis, the rating is taken as the
lowest awarded by the three major ECAls.
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Financial Institutions Exposure:

Included in the on-balance sheet interest earning
assets portfolic descriptions above is an amount of
€ 14 billion relating to Group exposures to financial
institution counterparties. Within the Group,
on-balance sheet financial institution counterparty
risk arises from securities, money market
transactions, sale and repurchase agreements and
derivatives.

Any existing netting master agreements and
coliateral agreements with business partners are
taken into account to adequately map counterparty
risk. These agreements are used to reduce both
the capital cover required and the utilisation of
bank-internal counterparty limits. DEPFA has a
group-wide counterparty limit system that directly
accesses the front-office systerm used by Treasury,
providing real-time information on limits and limit
utilizations. Within the Group, financial institution
counterparty business is geared towards high
credit-quality counterparties.

Guarantees and Credit Derivatives Exposure:
Including Letters of Credit provided, DEPFA’s off-
balance sheet risks arising eguate to a total nominal
value of € 9.3 billion, excluding protection acquired
for discontinued property loan business on the
residual mortgage book, which is to be sold to
Aareal Bank AG. DEPFA applies the same
conservative approach to managing this risk as for
on-balance sheet exposure and credit limits must
be pre-approved pricr to transaction execution.
32% of all credit derivatives exposure is AAA rated
internally with an additicnal 31% in the AA cohort.

The Credit Approval Process

DEPFA Group operates an independent credit
approval process, which includes assessments by,
and formal limit recommendations from, those not
involved in the business areas. The chart below sets
out the initiation and approval process for DEPFA
BANK for all four risk pools.




The Credit Process

Sovereign/
Country Risks

Sub-Sovereign Risks

Financial Institution Infrastructure Finance
Risks Risks

Cbuntry Risk Committee, Credit Risk Unit, Special Risk Unit: Assess, assign rating and
make recommendation for pre-approval limit, taking risk mitigation into account

Group Credit Committee and regional credit committees

Credit limit and Duration decision

Decision advised to various Group
entities and business units

Group Subsidiary Credit Committee decision

Minimum annua! review of limit decision
{more frequent reviews as required)

Limits monitored for utilisation

The allocation of an internal rating determines both
the pricing and the potential exposure amount. The
Credit Committee operates on authority devolved to
it by the Board of Directors and is empowered to set
limits up to prudent levels taking into account large
exposure parameters. DEPFA subsidiaries and
branches operate their own credit committees,
which act on individual counterparty limits for
transactions which will be booked locally.

The credit process centres on an independent
Credit Committee that resides over the four
counterparty risk pools, and who is provided with
both rating and limit recommendations from the
dedicated independent risk teams. The heads of
risk units report directly to their respective Executive
Committee member as well as the Credit
Committee.

DEPFA’s Counterparty Risk Pools

1. Sovereign/Country Risk:

Sovereign/Country risks are managed by the
Country Risk Committee. Reviews of sovereign risks
are carried out at least annually, with detailed
reports on the social, political and economic
situation of all countries presented to the Group
Credit Committee for approval. All sovereign/
countries are rated in accordance with the Group
internal rating grades. DEPFA currently maintains 90
country limits for international business, of which
total limit available to these countries amounts to
98.5% fall into A-rated cohorts. The Bank's country
exposure for countries rated below single-A stood
at 1.3% of the Bank's total cross border exposure
as at 31 December 2006, with maximum limits
available of 1.5% of total Group country fimits.
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2. Sub-Sovereign Risk:

The Credit Risk Unit, a specialised team of
professionals based in Dublin, carries out
sub-sovereign  risk analysis. This team s
independent from business origination/relationship
management. This unit is responsible for assessing
and rating {in accordance with the DEPFA internal
grading system} the credit risk for all sub-sovergign
entities.

The unit assesses the distinct characteristics of the
country in which the sub-sovereign is located,
especfally those characteristics related to
intergovernmental arrangements. The unit also
agsesses political, demographic, economic, fiscal
and financial factors.

3. Financial Institution Risk:

The Credit Risk Unit also carries out assessment of
DEPFA's exposure to financial institutions.
Specialised professionals work with the front office
personnel {o evaluate the credit risks involved in
these counterparties. The approval process applied
is the same as for sub-sovereign counterparties. In
addition, alt financial institutions are rated internally.
All counterparties must have pre-approval limits in
place as a prerequisite to conducting transactions
with DEPFA.

4. Infrastructure Finance Credit Risk:

The Infrastructure Finance Unit (IFU), a team of 53
specialists and support staff, carries out transaction
execution and portfolio management of all
infrastructure loan assets. Most transactions are
carried out in conjunction with other similarly
experienced lenders {often as a member of a
syndicate of banks), thus limiting DEPFA's exposure
on any one particular transaction.

A fundamental pre-condition for IFU participation in
an infrastructure financing transaction is the
ongoing involverment of the public sector, most

typically as the grantor of a long-term concession to
a privataly financed special purpase company, and
often as the payer of revenues (paid in return for the
successful provision of the required service),
typically the main source of the loan repayment.

In addition, the purpese of the financing must be the
provision of an essential public asset or service,
which must continue to be provided even in times of
budgetary cutbacks, such as schools, hospitals,
prisons, roads and water supply and treatment
facilities.

Credit proposals put forward by the IFU are subject
to an independent review by the Special Risks Unit
(SRU). This unit makes an independent recommen-
dation to the Credit Committee.

When financing infrastructure projects, DEPFA
generally requires the involvement of International
Financial Institutions ("IFI"}, such as the European
investment Bank (EIB) or the European Bank for
Reconstruction and Development (EBRD} and
leading local banks. While these institutions do not
necessarily provide DEPFA with formal guarantees
of commercial or political risk, they do provide an
implicit comfort that purely politically motivated
discriminatory action by the host government is
unlikely due to the consequential damage to that
government’s ability to access future funding
support from the IFls.

There are standard internal procedures for the
monitoring of, and reporting on, current loan
transactions: for projects during the construction
phase, a report on progress is submitied to the
Credit Committee every 6 months; operational
projects are subject to an annual review. The
respective account managers in IFU liaise closely
with an independent engineer who is usually
appointed by the lenders to monitor the project.
This allows the Group to follow progress closely and




take remedial action, if necessary, to ensure that the
project is completed on time and to budget. IFU’s
menitoring reviews are independently checked by
the SRU to ensure that objectivity is maintained.

Limit Monitoring:

The monitoring of country limits or cross border
exposures is carried out on a daily basis by a
dedicated team of professionals based in Dublin.
Limit monitoring is performed on both a Group-wide
basis as well as on a local entity basis. These
exposure reports are made available to
management and all business sectors of the Group.

3. Property Risk in the Pfandbriefbank

Following the Group’s reorganisation, property risks
were almost totally transferred to Aareal Bank AG
or third parties. Aareal Bank AG and the
Pfandbriefbank have agreed in writing that Aareal
Bank AG will take over the entire property-financing
portfolic held by the Pfandbriefbank. At the year-end
2006, DEPFA Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG has a
remaining property financing portfolio in the amount
of € 1.9 billion of which the risk cn € 1.0 billion was
transferred to third parties via securitisation agree-
ments. In addition, Aareal Bank AG has extended
guarantees in the amount of € 0.2 billicn to DEPFA
in respect of individual exposures. In addition, the
Pfandbriefbank and Aareal Bank AG have entered
into an Agency Agreement {in compliance with the
respective KWG, i.e. German Banking Act rules)
whereby Aareal Bank AG administers, on behalf of
the Pfandbriefbank, the loans that have not yet been
transferred and provides for protection with regard
to the proper administration of the loan portfolio.

Aareal Bank AG and Pfandbriefbank have agreed to
strengthen the efforts for transferring the portfolio
over the next 2 years.

4. Market Risk

Market risk refers to the risk of potential loss arising
from changes in market data such as interest rates,
credit spreads, foreign currency exchange rates,
equity prices, price or rate volatilities. DEPFA BANK
defines its market risk as changes in fair value of
financial instruments as a result of market related
movements.

The Bank's market risk policies and procedures
follow three core principles:

* Policy framework for all key market risk activities
approved by the Board,

e Market risk management is centralized in the
Asset & Liability Committee and the Treasury and
product units, managed by specialised personnel
and monitored using appropriate systems and
controls,

s Market risk control function measures and
monitors the risks independently of the risk-taking
units.

The market risk control function has subcatego-
rised market risk into risk factors. The relevant risk
factors for DEPFA BANK are interest rate, credit
spread and foreign exchange risk. As a bank
focusing on public sector finance, DEPFA is not
generally exposed to equity or commodity rigk. With
regard to foreign exchange risk, DEPFA has a policy
that Treasury must match all foreign currency assets
with liabilities in the same currency or swap out the
foreign exchange exposure. Only a limited foreign
currency exposure is accepted in the emerging
markets portiolio. Hence, the primary risk factors for
the Bank are interest rate and credit spread risk.
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For the guantification and control of these risks,
DEPFA determines daily Value at Risk {vaR) figures
in tine with industry wide practice using the
variance/covariance methodology for both trading
and banking books. The VaR monitoring is based on
a comprehensive risk factor set, consclidated
across DEPFA Group, as well as broken down to
legal entity, portfolio and desk level. A ten-day
hoiding period with a 99% confidence interval is
used to derive the calculation. Correlations and
volatilities are calculated based on a history of 250
trading days. The ten-day holding period was
chosen to give a conservative VaR measure in
relation to hedging the risk of the portfolio's
positions. DEPFA recognizes that variance/
covariance VaR has certain inherent timitations. The
past may not always provide a reliable indicator of
future market movements and moreover the
statistical assumptions employed may understate
the probability of very large market moves. For this
reagson, additional management tools such as

Trading Beok Risk

sensitivity measures and stress testing are used to
supplement VaR. Moreover, historical simulation
VaR has been introduced in 2006 for trading
portfolios to supplement variance/covariance vVaR.

DEPFA has introduced segmental reperting in 2006,
grouping its business activities into Budget Finance,
Infrastructure Finance, Client Product Services and
Global Markets. DEPFA's trading portfolios belong
to the Client Product Services and the Global
Markets segments. The table below shows VaR
statistics for the year 2006 and the VaR exposure on
29 December 2008 relaiing to the consolidated
trading books of DEPFA Group. The average
exposure in the consolidated trading books of
DEPFA Group amounted to € 11.7 million and the
total consolidated trading exposure never exceeded
€ 22.1 million throughout the year 2006. The table
also compares the trading related VaR exposure of
the Group at the end of 20086 to the respective VaR
exposure at the end of 2005.

10 Day 99% VaR (€ m)

Average 1i.7
High 22.1
Laow 8.8
29 December 2006 10.3
30 December 2005 9.4

Trading Book Risk

10 Day 99% VaR {€ m)
Global Markets

10 Day 99% VaR (€ m}
Client Product Services

Average 11.4 2.0
High 22.3 5.0
Low 5.9 1.0
29 December 2006 10.9 1.3




The following graph shows the consolidated trading VaR profile of DEPFA Group's trading books.

Trading book average monthly VaR 2006 (10 day, 99 % VaR) (€ m)
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15
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The graph shows the average monthly VaR varying
around an overall average of € 11.7 million. Reports
detailing the local and Group VaR as well as the
limit utilisation are distributed daily to senior
management. The setting of risk limits is the
responsibility of the Asset & Liability Committee.

Validity of the VaR Model - backtesting for the
trading books in DEPFA Group.

The accuracy of the Group’s VaR model is
calibrated by means of back testing to ensure the
quality of the statistical process. This process entails
the comparison of changes in portfolio value
incurred against the most likely range of such

JuC G 5EF oot NOV DEC

changes forecasted by the VaR model. Back testing
is based on the 1 day 99 % VaR figures. In this case,
actual losses would not be expected to exceed the
forecast by the VaR model on more than four
occasions in any one year {250 trading days}. The
graphical representation below shows the con-
solidated back-testing results for DEPFA Group's
trading books in 2006.

As can be seen from the graph below there were
onily 3 backtesting exceptions for the trading books
in 2006. Therefore, the number of observed excep-
tions did not exceed the number of 4 permissible
exceptions in a 1 year time range.

Trading book backtesting graph 2006 (based on 1 day 99% CI) {€m}

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

Change in Value

vaR Upper Confidence Level

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Deac

VaR Lower Confidence Level
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5. Liquidity Risk

Liquidity Risk is defined as the risk of being unable
to fulfil current or future payment obligations in full
and/or at the due date. The risk drivers determining
liquidity risk are:

» Liguidity of the Bank's assets
 Diversity of the sources of funds
* Increased demand for collateral

Liquidity of assets: DEPFA BANK has highly liquid
assets on its balance sheet. Liquid assets can be
defined as assets that can be realised at short
notice without incurring significant loss. 32.8%
of the public sector assets of DEPFA as at
31 December 2006 are AAA rated by external
Credit Assessment Institutions (with a further 31.7%
of the unrated portion AAA rated internally) while a
further 23.5% are AA rated externally reflecting the
concentration on public sector lending to the top tier
of sovereigns and sub-sovereigns.

Diversity of the sources of funds: DEPFA BANK is a
large issuer of Pfandbriefe and Asset Covered
Securities, which provide significant medium to
long-term financing to the Bank. In addition to the
Asset Covered Securities, the Bank is also active in
unsecured bearer bonds, promissory notes and
commercial paper (CPs), repurchase agreements
(Repos) as well as participating in money market
transactions. DEPFA BANK receives deposits from
other banks and directly from institutional investors
worldwide. Investor categories are central banks,
state agencies, supranationals, fund managers,
insurance companies and corporates.

Increased demand for collateral: As noted above,
DEPFA BANK has a comprehensive holding of
highly rated securities, which are available for Repo.

A surplus buffer of these assets is also available to
cover additional collateral calls that might be made
on QTC derivative contracts.

6. Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from
inadeqguate or failed internal processes, people and
systems or from external events whether deliberate,
accidental or natural. The Group's primary aim is the
early identification, recording, assessment,
monitoring, prevention and mitigation of operational
risks, as well as timely and meaningful management
reporting. Our approach to operational risk is not
designed to completely eliminate risk per se but,
rather, to try and minimise unexpected losses. Our
approach ensures that we have sufficient
information to make informed decisions about
additional controls, adjustments to controls, or
other risk responses. The Group CRO and the
Group Head of Operational Risk, who reports to
him, are responsible for the independence,
objectivity and effectiveness of our operational risk
framework.

Operational risk is inherent in most aspects of the
Group's activities and comprises a large number of
disparate risks. While market and credit risk are
often chosen for the prospect of gain, operational
risk is normally accepted as a necessary
consequence of doing business. In comparison to
market or credit risk, the sources of operational risk
are difficult to identify comprehensively and the
amount of risk is also intrinsically difficult to
measure. The Group therefore manages operational
risk differently from market and credit risk. The
Group bhelieves that effective management of
operational risks requires ownership by the
management responsible for the relevant business
process. Qperational risk is thus controlled through
a network of controls, procedures, reports and




responsibilities. Within the Group, each individual
business area and management level takes
responsibility for its own operational risks and
provides adequate resources and procedures for
the management of those risks.

In addition, the Group has established a central
team that focuses on the coordination of consistent
policy, tocls and practices throughout DEPFA for the
management, measurement, monitoring and
reporting of relevant operational risks. This team is
also responsible for the overall operational risk
measurement methodology, and knowledge and
experience are shared throughout the Group
to maintain a coordinated approach. We use
a risk-based apprcach to the design and
implementation of our internal control framework,
and this prioritises our focus on risks that are
potentially high impact and lower probability.

The DEPFA Group utilises a number of firm-wide
risk processes and tools for the management,
measurement, monitoring and reporting of
operational risk. These include: operational risk
self-assessments; the collection, reporting and
analysis of internal and external loss data; and key
risk indicator reporting to provide potential early
warning of increased risk associated with
non-attainment of control objectives.

The totality of this information is reviewed to assess
the operational risk profile of the organisation and
the actions needed to address specific issues.
Regular reports are made to the Group CRO, the
Executive Committee, and the Risk Committee to
allow senior management and the Board to assess
the overall operational risk profile.

7. Internal Audit

The Group internal audit function (DEPFA Group
Audit) is an independent organisational function
whose purpose is to promote a cultture of efficient
and effective management and controls within all
entities and functions of the Group.

It helps the Group accomplish its objectives by
bringing a systematic and disciplined approach to
evaluating and improving the effectiveness of risk
management procedures, internal contral systems,
information systems, and governance processes.
DEPFA Group Audit support the members of the
Audit Committee and Senior Management in their
control and management obligations by providing
independent and objective advice and recommen-
dations.

To ensure independence and objectivity DEPFA
Group Audit reports directly to the Audit
Committee of DEPFA BANK plc. in Dublin and the
auditors are not involved in any day-to-day business
or control processes.

The Audit Committee has defined the purpose,
authority, and responsibility of DEPFA Group Audit in
a specific Audit Charter, that

+ establishes DEPFA Group Audit’s position in the
Group to guarantee independence and objectivity;

*» authorises access to any documents and records,
personnel, and other properties relevant to the
performance of audits;

* obliges all members of staff and all management
levels to supply information as required within a
reascnable period of time;

= defines the scope of the activities and

» specifies the reporting lines for audit reports.
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Risk

In this sense DEPFA Group Audit is responsible for
carrying out audits worldwide in line with the Audit
Charter and the annual audit plan as approved by
the Audit Committee.

DEFFA Group Audit is a team of professionals
located in Dublin and Eschbern, alt of whom are
obliged to follow the Code of Ethics of the Institute
of Internal Auditors.

8. Compliance

Compliance Officers located in each of DEPFA's
legal entities report directly to the Group
Compliance Officer located in Dublin, The
Compliance function oversees the adherance to the
principles set cut by the Irish Financial Regulator
and regulators in other jurisdictions in relation to the

Code of Practice of Credit Institutions. Compliance
also ensures that DEPFA complies with the various
rules, guidance and legislation pertaining to our
status as an frish regulated bank. The Compliance
function supports the implementation of certain
internal governance rules and pclicies set by the
Board of Directors and reports directly to the Board
of Directors.

The Compliance function is also responsible for
compliance with the Anti-Money Laundering and
Counter Terrorist Financing policy of the Group. The
policy aims to reduce the risk of regulatory sanction
and reputational risk inherent in the discovery of
money laundering within a bank.

Compliance is alsc responsible for monitoring the
regulatory agenda of the Financial Regulator and
any impending regulatory changes.
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Corporate Governance

Corporate governance is concerned with how companies are managed and controlled. The Board of Directors
is committed to ensuring that the Company is managed and controlled to the highest standards. The Board of
Directors is accountable to the Company's shareholders for corporate governance, and this Statement of
Corporate Governance describes how the provisions and principles are applied in the Company.

The Board of Directors

The role

The Board is responsible for the leadership, direction and control of the Company and the Group and is
accountable to shareholders for financial performance. There is a comprehensive range of matters
specifically reserved for decision by the Board which includes:

» The issuance of shares from capital authorised by the General Meeting;

* Issues with regard to the fundamental strategic realignment of the Group;

* Acquisitions of shareholdings by the Company for any individual amount exceeding € 50 million;

* Approval for the implementation, by individual Directors, of resolutions adopted by the Genera! Meeting;

* Appointment and authorisation of the Chief Executive Officer;

¢ Appointment of the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Board; and

* Appointment of the members of the Compensation Committee, the Audit Committee and Risk Committee
and determination of their terms of reference.

Compaosition and independence

It is a requirement set out in the Company’s Articles of Association that the majority of the Board are
Non-Executive Directors. The Articles also provide that each Director must retire by rotation at least once every
three years. At the date of this report there are 7 Non-Executive Directors and 3 Executive Directors.
Non-Executive Directors are appointed so as to maintain an appropriate balance on the Board, and to ensure
a sufficiently wide and relevant mix of backgrounds, skills and experience to provide strong and effective
leadership and control of the Group. All Directors are required to act in the best interests of the Company, and
to bring independent judgement to bear on issues of strategy, key appointments, performance, resources and
standards. The Non-Executive Directors are independent of management (although Dr. Thomas Kolbeck was
an employee of the Company up until March 2008} and are considered free from any business or other
relationship that could influence their independent judgement. The Non-Executive Directors meet in the
absence of the Executive Directors at least annually.

Meetings and attendance

The Chairman sets the agenda for each Board meeting and the Directors are provided in advance with
relevant papers to enable them to consider the agenda items. The Directors are encouraged to participate fully
in the Board's deliberations. At least one Board meeting every year is dedicated to the discussion of strategic
issues and, from time to time, Executive Management are invited to attend Board meetings to make
presentations and update the Non-Executive Board members of business developments.




The Board met on 7 occasions in 2008, two of which were ad-hoc meetings. Attendance at those meetings is
reported below:

Gerhard Bruckermann 77
Dr. Richard Brantner 7
Dr. Reinhard Grzesik 6/7
Prof. Dr. Alexander Hemmelrath 5/7
Dr. Thomas M. Kolbeck 5/7
Hans W. Reich 77
Prof. Dr. Hans Tietmeyer 4/7
Jacques Poos 517
Dermot Cahillane 5/7
Maurice O'Connell 5/7
Prof. Frances Ruane 5/7 {resigned 30th November 2006)
Chief Executive Officer

The Board has entrusted the Chief Executive Officer with the day-to-day management of the Group. His role
includes the drawing up of responsibilities for Executive Directors and for deciding on appointments to
Executive Committees. He informs the Board of the terms of his authorisation of individual Executive Directors,
and of his establishment and determination of terms of reference for Executive Committees.

The Company Secretary

The Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary, who is responsible
for ensuring that Board procedures are followed and that the Board complies with applicable rules and
regulations.

Board Committees

The Board has established three committees that aperate within specific terms of reference. These
committees are the Audit Committee, the Compensation Committee and the Risk Committes, all of which are
committees of the Board. The Audit Committee and the Compensation Committee are comprised of
Non-Executive Directors all of whom are considered to be independent. The composition and the terms of
reference of each committee are reviewed annually.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee provides a link between the Board and internal and external auditors, is independent of
the Company's management and is responsible for:

Approving the appointment of the external auditors;

¢ Reviewing the report of the audit by the external auditors;

The cost-effectiveness and the independence of the external auditors;

* Review and recommend for Board approval the Group's Interim and Annual Financial Statements;
* Assessing the effectiveness of the Group's internal control processes, and

* Reviewing the Group's accounting policies.
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The Chief Executive Officer and/or the Chief Auditor is invited from time to time to attend Audit Cormmittee
meetings or parts thereof, The external auditars and Chief Financial Officer are invited to attend at least two
Audit Commitiee meetings each year and the Audit Committee may also meet with the external auditors in
confidential session without management present. The external auditors and internal audit have unrestricted
access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The membership of the Audit Committee is set out as follows.

The Audit Committee met on 6 occasions in 2006. Attendance at those meetings is reported on below:

Maurice O’Connell (Chairman) 6/8
Dr. Richard Brantner 5/6
Prof, Frances Ruang 6/6 (resigned 30th November 2006 and replaced by Prof. Dr. Hans Tietmeyer)

Compensation Committee

The Compensation Committee decides on the Executive Directors' and Company Secretary's remuneration.
The Committee also takes responsibility, together with the Chief Executive Officer, for general remuneraticn
schemaeas and in particular for incentive schemes. The Compensation Committee is also entrusted with
consideration of a succession policy. The membership of the Compensation Commitiee is set out as follows.,

The Compensation Committee met on 4 occasions in 2008. Attendance at those meetings is reported on
below:

Prof. Dr. Alexander Hemmelrath (Chairman) 4/4
Dr. Richard Brantner 4/4
Hans W. Reich 4/4

Risk Committee

The Risk Committee is responsible for providing strategic direction in relation to the nature and scale of risk
that the Group is permitted to assume to achieve its corporate objectives. The primary responsibilities of the
Committee include:

* The review of methodologies used to evaluate the risk activities across the Group and related issues;

* The review of new sactor activities;

+ The review of aggregated risk concentrations throughout the DEPFA Group; and

* Risk benchmarking enabling DEPFA Group to accurately measure its risk profile in defined portfolio
segments/n aggregate relative to industry peers.

The newly established Risk Committee met on 4 occasions in 2008. The first meeting took place in April 2006.
Atftendance at those meetings is reported below:

Dr. Thomas M. Kolbeck (Chairman):  4/4
Dermot Cahillane:; 4/4
Johan van der Ende {as of 1st January 2007)




Johan van der Ende has broad experience in Risk Management. He has spent over 15 years in senior risk
management roles with Dutch and international banks. Over his career, Johan van der Ende was responsible
for global trading risk management, credit risk management, operational risk management, performance & risk
analysis and information management.

The Chief Risk Officer and the Head of Credit Risk are required to attend the meetings of the Risk Committee
to illuminate changes in the portfolio or risks and to facilitate the Risk Committee's further analysis.
Recommendations of the Risk Committee will be made to the Chief Executive Officer. If the Risk Committee
and the Chief Executive Officer could not agree on recommendations the Chairman of the Risk Committee
shall present the issue to the Board of Directors who shall decide on it. The membership of the Risk
Committee is set out above and the Risk Management Structure is described in the Risk Report on page 74,

Directors’ Remuneration
The Report on Directors’ remuneration and interests appears on page 64.

Executive Committees

The Chief Exacutive Officer has powers delegated to him by the Board to establish Executive Committees, and
is responsible for drawing up the schedule of responsibilities of these committees.

The following committees have been established:

+ Executive Committee

* Asset & Liability Committee
* Credit Committee

* |T Steering Committee

Details of the Executive Commitiee members is set out on pages 8 and 9 and further information is available in
the Risk Report on page 74. Further information on the Asset & Liability and Credit Committees is also available
in the Risk Report which also discloses the risk management structure.

Relations with Shareholders

To strengthen communication with shareholders, the Company circulates each year the statutory Annual
Report & Accounts together with a summary review featuring matters such as the Company's highlights for the
previous year and a management discussion of the various business segments. Tha shareholders also have the
option of accessing the Annual Report and Accounts on the Company's website at http://www.depfa.com
which also contains other useful information including all the latest press releases and Interim Accounts. All
shareholders are invited to attend the Annual General Meeting (AGM) and to participate in the proceedings. It
is usual for all Directors to attend the AGM and to be available to meet shareholders before and after the
Meeting. The Company's 2007 AGM is scheduled for 20 April. Notice of the Meeting is given to shareholders a
manth in advance.
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institutional Shareholders

The Company held approximately 230 meetings with institutional shareholders and with financial analysts
during 2006. The CEOQ, the Deputy CEQ, the Chief Financial Officer, and members of the Investor Relations
team participated in those meetings, at which care is taken to ensure that price-sensitive information is not
divulged. Company representatives also toak the oppartunity to present at eight investor conferences. Further-
more, the Company held its regular yearly Capital Markets Day for institutional investors on 12 May 2006 in
Dublin. Investor materials including presentations and financial reports relating to earnings releases and
investor conferences are posted in a timely fashion on the Company website in the Investor Relations section.
The DEPFA website is regarded by the Company as a very important channel for investors to access up to date
information on the Company and contains a comprehensive archive of past presentations, press and
investor releases as well as telephone conference calls held by management.

Accountability and Audit

Accounts and Directors’ Responsibilities

The Accounts and other information presented in this Report and Accounts are consistent with the
presentation of a balanced and understandable assessment of the Company's position and prospects. The
statement concerning the responsibilities of the Directors in retation to the Accounts appears on page 96 and
the Directors statement regarding the Accounts being prepared on a going concern basis appears on page 97.

Internal Controls

The Directors have overall responsibility for the Company's systems of internal control and for reviewing its
effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
mis-statement or loss.

The Company's overall control systems include:
* A clearly-defined structure with defined authority limits and reporting mechanisms to higher levels of

management and to the Board;

* Appropriate terms of reference for Board Committees and Sub-Committees with responsibility for
core areas;

+ Comprehensive policies and procedures relating to financial controls, asset and liability management,
market risk, operational risk and credit risk management;

* An annual budgst and monthly reporting system which enables active monitoring of progress against
objectives and early rectification where required;

¢ A Compliance function, controlled centrally by the Group Compliance Officer, with Compliance officers
located in Nicosia, Rome, London, New York, Tokyo, Frankfurt and Paris;

¢ An Internal Audit function, which is centrally controlled, monitors compliance with the Company's policies
and standards and the effectiveness of internal control systems across the Company;

* The Audit Committee reviews the Internal Audit and Compliance functions. The Chief Internal Auditor and the
Group Gompliance Officer report regularly to the Audit Committee.
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Toshiya Kambayashi:

“We have successfully demonstrated our high capability to deal with a complex transaction structure
based on the combination of the underlying combined cash flow of the three projects, and the external
risk mitigation from NEX|.”

Client:
Need:

Solution:

Gulf Cogeneration Co., Ltd., Thailand

Refinancing of the existing bank debts of the three operating independant power plants owned
by Guif Electric Public Company Lid.

DEPFA acted as the Sole Guarantor for a 10 year amortizing THB 5.8 billion (€ 122 million}
bond issue {rated AAA by Fitch) in three tranches having three, five and ten year maturities.
Our political and commercial risk exposure was credit enhanced by Nippon Export and
Investment Insurance (NEXI) — the export cradit agency owned by the Japanese Government.

Toshiya Kambayashi, Director, Infrastructure Finance Unit Tokyo
Junichiro Kawamaru, Director, Infrastructure Finance Unit Tokyo
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Directors and other information

Board of Directors

Mr. G. Bruckermann [Chairman)

Br. R. Brantner

Dr. T. M. Kolbeck (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. D. M. Cahillane

Dr. R. Grzesik

Prof. Dr. A. Hemmelrath

Mr. M. O'Connell

Mr. J. Poos

Mr. H. W, Beich {Deputy Chairman)
Prof. Dr. F. Ruane (resigned 30th November 2006}
Prof. Dr, Dr. h.c. mult, H. Tietmeyer

Audit Committee

Mr. M. O'Connell {Chairman}

Dr. R. Brantner

Prof. Dr. F. Ruane (resigned 30th November 2006)

Prof. Dr. Dr. h.¢. mutt. H. Tietmeyer {appointed 30th November 2006)

Compensation Committee

Prof. Dr. A. Hemmelrath (Chairman)
Dr. R. Brantner

Mr. H. W. Reich

Risk Committee

Dr. T. M. Kolbeck (Chairman)

Mr. D. M. Cahillane

Dr. J. van der Ende (appointed 1st January 2007)

Secretary & Registered Office
Ms. E. Tiernan

1 Commons Street

Dubitin 1

Ireland

Solicitors

McCann Fitzgerald
Riverside One

Sir John Rogerson's Quay
Dublin 2

Ireland

Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
George's Quay

Dublin 2

Ireland

Registered Number
348819




Directors’ Report

The Directors of DEPFA BANK plc present their report and the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 20086.

Principal activities
The Bank and its subsidiary undertakings, operating in Ireland and in other parts of the world, provide a
comprehensive range of banking, financial and related services.

Business review
The information that satisfies the requirerments of the business review ¢can be found in the Management
Discussion and Business Development on pages 28 to 52.

Dividends
A dividend of € 86 million was paid in 2006 in respect of the year ended 31 December 2005, The directors
propose a final dividend of € 141 million in respect of the year ended 31 December 2006.

Directors
The names of the directors in office at 22 March 2007 are set out on page 96.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, Dr. Thomas Kolbeck, Jacques Poos and Hans Reich retire by
rotation at the 2007 Annual General Megting and, being eligible and recommended by the Directors, offer
themselves for re-election. Dr. Reinhard Grzesik, who retires from the Board in accordance with the Articles
of Association, does not wish to offer himself for re-election as a Director of the Company.

Substantial interests in share capital
The following substantial interests in the Ordinary Share Capital had been notified to the Bank as at
22 March 2007.

» The Capital Group Companies Inc. 11.89%
» UBS Group 9.85%

Own Shares
Details of own shares held are disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements.

Going concern

After making enquiries, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Bank has adequate resources
to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly they continue 1o adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Political donations

The Electorat Act, 1997 requires companies to disclose all political donations over € 5,079 in aggregate made
during the financial year. The Directors, on enquiry, have satisfied themselves that no such donations have
been made by the Bank during the financial year.
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Directors’ and Secretary’s interest in the share capital
The interests of the Directors and company secretary, in office at 31 December 2006 and of their spouses
and minar children in the shares of the Company or Group undertakings are set out below:

Shares in DEPFA BANK plc

Interest Interest

in shares in shares

3 December 2006 31 December 2005

Mr. G. Bruckermann 8,038,610 7,632,960

Dr. R, Grzesik 404,910 360,570

Mr. D.M. Cahillane 45,008 58,241

Dr. T. Kolbeck 2,708,580 2,668,138

Dr R. Brantner 62,800 62,800
Company Secretary

Ms. E. Tiernan 1,624 1,430

Directors’ interests in shares includes shares held and shares still to vest under the Compensation
Programme.

No directors held any options on DEPFA shares at 31 December 2006 (2005: € nil).

Accounting records

The Directors have taken appropriate measures to secure compliance with the Bank's obligation to keep
proper books of account through the use of appropriate systems and procedures and employment of
competent persons. The books of account are kept at 1 Commons Street, IFSC, Dublin 1, Ireland.

Subsidiary undertakings
Details of subsidiary undertakings are shown in note 25 to the financial statements.

Measurement and management of the various types of risk

The Group has established a comprehensive system for the identification, measurement, early recognition
and control of risk as an integral part of its business process. The Group applies policies and procedures to
the management of credit risk, market risk, operational risk and liguidity risk. The following is an overview of
these policies and procedures:

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of impairment and partial or total loss of a receivable due to deterioration of credit quality
on the part of a counterparty. The relevant receivable may be based on traditional on-balance sheet lending
business or derivative business. Whereas in traditional lending business, risk arises from the creditworthiness
of the borrower and the value of the collateral, for derivative transactions counterparty risk is a function of the
counterparty’s ability to perform in accordance with its contractual obligations as well as the market value of
the future cash flows, which — only if positive for DEPFA - would lead to a loss when executing a substitute
transaction in the market at less favourable terms.




The Group's business is focused on savereign and sub-sovereign borrowers and public sector supported
specialist entities.

Credit scoring of counterparties is critical to the Group's business. The scering model of the Group is
reviewed continuously. In recent years, the Group moved to a unitary scoring system for its four main credit
risk pools (sovereign, sub-sovereign, financial institutions and infrastructure finance). The unitary scoring has
22 grades. The Group’s 22-grade internal rating system is similar to the grading system used by the External
Credit Assessment Institutions {“ECAI"). All counterparties across all risk groups are graded in accordance
with this system.

Within the Group, exposure to financial institutions from the Treasury business arises from securities transactions,
money market transactions and OTC {over-the-counter) derivatives entered into with bank counterparties.
The Group operates an independent credit approval process, which includes assessments by, and formal
limit recommendations from, those not involved in the business areas.

The allocation of an internal rating defines both a desirable minimum return and a corridor for the maximum
acceptable exposure limit. The Group Credit Committee operates on authority devolved to it by the CEO and
ultimately the Board of Directors and is empowered to set limits up to prudent levels taking into account
Regulatery lending limits. DEPFA subsidiaries operate their own credit committees, which act on individual
counterparty limits once Group approval is in place.

The credit process centres on an independent Credit Committee which presides over the four borrower and
counterparty risk pools, and which is provided with both rating and limit recommendations from the
dedicated independent risk teams.

The heads of risk units report directly to their respective Executive Committee Member as well as the Credit
Committee.

The monitoring of sub-sovereign and country limits, tenor limits, large exposures and default events is carried
out on a Group-wide basis by monitoring staff dedicated to this function.

To monitor the counterparty risk arising from Treasury business, the Group has a Group-wide counterparty
limit system that directly accesses the front-office system used by the Group Treasury division, providing
real-time information on limits and limit utilisation. The credit exposure resulting from these transactions is
calcutated on a mark-to-market basis, taking into consideration the regulatory add-ons.

Market Risk

Market risk refers to the risk of potential loss arising from changes in market data such as interest rates,
credit spreads, foreign currency exchange rates, equity prices, price or rate volatilities. The Group defines its
market risk as changes in fair value of financial instruments as a result of market data movements.
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The Group's market risk policies and procedures follow three core principles:

* Policy framework for all key market risk activities approved by the Board
* Market risk management is centralised in the Asset & Liability Committee and the treasury and product
units, managed by specialised personnel and monitored using appropriate systems and controls,

* Market risk control function measures and monitors the risks independently of the risk-taking units.

The market risk control function has sub-categorised market risk into risk factors. The relevant risk factors for
the Group are interest rate, credit spread, foreign exchange and inflation risk. As a bank focusing on

public sector finance, the Group is not generally exposed ta equity or commadity risk. With regard to foreign
exchange risk, the Group has a policy that Treasury must match all foreign currency assets with liabilities in
the same currency or swap out the foreign exchange exposure. Only a limited foreign currency exposure is
accepted in the emerging markets portfolio. Hence, the primary risk factors for the Group are interest rate
and credit spread risk.

For the quantification and control of these risks, the Group determines daily Value at Risk {VaR) figures in line
with industry-wide practice using the variance/covariance methodology for both trading and banking books.
The VaR monitoring is based on a comprehensive risk factor set, consolidated across the Group, as well as
broken down 1o legal entity, portfolic and desk level. A ten day holding period with a 99% confidence
interval is used to derive the calculation. Correlations and volatilities are calculated based on a history of 250
trading days. The choice of a ten day holding period was selected to give a conservative VaR measure in
relation to hedging the risk of the portfolio’s positions.

The Group recognises that variance/covariance VaR has certain inherent imitations. The past may not always
provide a reliable indicator of future market movements and moreover the statistical assumptions employed
may understate the probability of very large market moves. For this reason, additional management tools
such as sensitivity measures and stress testing are used to supplement VaR, Moreover, historical simulation
VaR has been introduced in 20086 for trading portfolios to supplement variance/covariance VaR.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is defined as the risk of being unable to fulfil current or future payment obligations in full on or at
the due date.

The objective of the Group's liquidity management is to ensure that sufficient funds are available to meet the
Group’s commitments to its customers and counterparties, both in terms of demand for loans and repayment
of liabilities and in terms of satisfying the operational liquidity needs of the Group. The Group is assisted in
this task by the fact that a substantial portion of both its assets and liabilities are long-term and that it
maintains a continuing presence in the European money markets.




The undertying aim is to minimise the liquidity risks for the Group as a whole. It is the task of liquidity
management to control the cash flow of the business in such a manner as to ensure that efficient use of
cash flows is maintained. To this extent, the Group primarily funds its assets through the issuance of asset
covered securities and through money market transactions. Liquidity balance sheets and cash flow
forecasts are used to manage the liquidity of the Group and to control future liquidity risks.

Hedging

The Group's policy is to hedge the following banking book exposures:

* interest rate risk — uging interest rate swaps

* currency exposures - using cross-currency swaps and forward foreign exchange swaps

The following table provides examples of certain activities undertaken by the Group, the related risks
associated with such activities and the types of derivatives used in managing such risks. Such risks may also
be managed by using on-balance sheet instruments as part of an integrated approach to risk management.

Activity Risk Type of Hedge

Fixed rate lending/borrowing Sensitivity to increases/decreases Pay/receive fixed interest
in interast rates rate swaps

Investment in foreign currency Sensitivity to Cross-currency swaps

assets/liabilities strengthening/weakening of Eurc Foreign exchange swaps
against other currencies Foreign currency funging

Derivatives which meet the hedging criteria of IAS 39 are accounted for as fair value hedges or cash flow
hedges.

Branches outside the State

The Group has established branches within the meaning of Regulation 25 of the European Communities
{Accounts) Regulations, 1993, in Germany, Italy, France, United Kingdom, United States of America and
Japan.

Auditors
In accordance with Section 160(2) of the Companies Act 1963, the auditors PricewaterhouseCoopers,

will continue in office.

On behalf of the Board

Gerhard Bruckermann Dr. Reinhard Grzesik Maurice O'Connell Elaine Tiernan
Director Director Director Company Secretary

22 March 2007

101




102

Statement of directors’ responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements of DEPFA BANK
plc in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and IFRIC interpretations
endorsed by the European Union, and with those parts of the Companies Acts, 1863 to 2006 applicable to
companies reporting under IFRS, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation and the European Communities (Credit
Institutions : Accounts) Regulations, 1992.

Irish company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that
law the directors have prepared the Group and Parent company financial statements in accordance with
IFRSs as adopted by the European Union. The financial statements are required by law to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group and of the profit or loss of the Group for that
pericd. In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

» salect suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

* make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

» state that the financial statements comply with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union,

* prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Group will continue in business, in which case there should be supporting assumptions or qualifications as
necessary.

The directors confirm that they have complied with the above requirements in preparing the financial
statements.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper books of account that disclose with reasonable accuracy at
any time the financial position of the Company and the Group and enable them to ensure that the financial
statemenits are prepared in accordance with IFRS and IFRIC interpretations endorsed by the European Union,
the Companies Acts, 1963 to 2006 and, as regards the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the 1AS
Regulation and the European Communities (Credit Institutions : Accounts) Regulations, 1992, They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and Parent Company and hence for taking

reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Gerhard Bruckermann Dr. Reinhard Grzesik Maurice O’Connell Elaine Tiernan
Director Director Director Company Secretary

22 March 2007




Independent Auditors' Report to the Members of DEPFA BANK plc

We have audited the Group and Parent company financial statements (the “financial statements”) of DEPFA
BANK plc for the year ended 31 December 2006 which comprise the Consolidated Income Statement, the
Group and Parent Company Balance Sheets, the Group and Parent Company Cash Flow Statements, the
Group and Parent Company Statement of Changes in Shareholders' Equity and the related notes. These
financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Annuat Report and the financial statements, in accordance
with applicable Irish law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European
Union, are set out in the Statement of Directors' Responsibilities.

Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with relevant lega!l and regulatory
requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Irefand). This report, including the opinion,

has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in accordance with Section 183 of the
Companies Act, 1990 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands
it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

We report to you our opinion as to whether the Group financial statements give a trug and fair view, In
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union. We report {0 you our opinion as to whether the
Parent financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European
tUnion as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Acts 1963 to 2006. We also report to
you whether the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with lrish statute comprising
the Companies Acts, 1963 to 2006, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation and Europegan Communities {Credit
Institutions : Accounts) Regulations, 1992, We state whether we have obtained all the information and
explanations we consider necessary for the purposes of our audit, and whether the financial statements are
in agreement with the books of account,

We alsc report to you our opinion as to;

» whather the Company has kept proper books of account;

= whether the directors’ report is consistent with the financial statements; and

» whether at the balance sheset date there existed a financial situation which may require the company to
convene an extraordinary general meeting of the Company; such a financial situation may exist if the net
assets of the Company, as stated in the Company balance shest, are not more than half of its called-up
share capital.

We also report to you if, in our opinion, any information specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration
and directors’ transactions is not disclosed and, where practicable, include such information in our report.

103



We read the other information contained in the Annual Report and consider whether it is consistent with the
audited financial statements. The other information comprises only: the Company Profile, Business Principles,
Management, Interview, Corporate Highlights 2006, Trends in Public Sector Financing, Management
Discussion, Business Development, Share, People and Principles of Remuneration, Social Responsibility,
Risk, Corporate Governance and the Directors’ report. We consider the implications for our report if we
become aware of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the financial statements.

Our responsibilities do not extend to any other information.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by
the Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant
estimates and judgments made by the directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether
the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group's and company’s circumstances, consistently applied
and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we
considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or
error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in
the financial statements,

Opinion
In our opinion:

* the Group financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
Eurcpean Union, of the state of the Group's affairs as at 31 December 2006 and of its profit and cash flows
for the year then ended;

* the Parent company financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by
the European Union as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Acts 1963 to 2008, of
the state of the parent company’s affairs as at 31 December 2006 and of its cash flows for the year then
ended;

* the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Acts, 1963 to
2006 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation and the European Communities (Credit Institutions ; Accounts)
Regulations, 1992

We have obtained all the information and explanations which we consider necessary for the purposes of our
audit. In our opinion praper books of account have been kept by the company and proper returns adequate
for our audit have been received from branches of the Company not visited by us. The Company balance
sheet is in agreement with the books of account.




In our opinicn, the information given in the directors’ repaort is consistent with the financial statements.

The net assets of the Company, as stated in the Company balance sheet, are more than half of the amount
of its called-up share capital and, in our opinion, on that basis there did not exist at 31 December 2006 a
financial situation which, under Section 40 (1) of the Companies (Amendment) Act, 1983, would require
the convening of an extraordinary general meeting of the Company.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Dublin, Ireland

22 March 2007
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Consolidated income statement

Note Year ended 31 December
2006 2005
€m €m
Interest and similar income 6 8,508 7,645
Interest expense and similar charges B -8,083 -7,123
Net interest income 425 422
Fee and commission income 7 40 29
Fee and commission expense 7 -8 -9
Net fee and commission income 32 20
Nat trading income 8 140 -114
Gains less losses from financial assets 9 277 480
Other operating incorme 10 - 7
Total operating income 874 815
Operating expenses 11 -228 -215
Net operating profit before impairment losses 646 600
Impalrment losses on loans and advances 13 - -3
Operating profit / Profit before taxation 646 597
Taxation 14 -139 -122
Profit for the year- continuing operations 507 475
Result from discontinued operations 15 19 -
Profit for the year 526 475
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent 526 475
Earnings per share attributable to the equity holders of the
Parent (expressed in € per sharg): 16
- Basic earnings per share
- Continuing operations 1.48 1.39
- Discontinued operaticns 0.05 -
- Total basic earnings per share 1.53 1.39
- Diluted earnings per share
- Continuing operations 1.48 1.39
- Discontinued cperations 0.05 -
- Total diluted earnings per share 1.53 1.39

The notes on pages 113 to 185 are an integral part of these consclidated financial statements.

Gerhard Bruckermann Dr. Reinhard Grzesik Maurice O’Connell Elaine Tiernan

Director Director Director Company Secretary

22 March 2007
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Consolidated balance sheet

Note As at 31 December
2006 2005
€m €m
ASSETS
Cash and balances with central banks 17 1,743 1,457
Treasury bills and other eligible bilts 18 - 1
Loans and advances to banks 19 34,708 42,870
Trading securities 20 1,311 210
Derivative financial instruments 21 6,880 8,147
Cther financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 22 2,075 586
Loans and advances to customers 23 125,247 116,437
Investment securities - available-for-sale 24 50,833 58,776
Intangible assets 26 53 55
Property, plant and equipment 27 26 24
Deferred income tax assets 35 39 52
Other assets 28 30 15
Total assets 222945 228,630
LIABILITIES
Deposits from banks 29 63,199 67,023
Cther deposits 30 31,118 29,779
Derivative financial instruments and other trading liabilities 21 12,583 17,541
Due to customers 3 7,904 7672
Debt securities in issue 32 102,857 101,612
Other borrowed funds 33 2,133 2,378
Other liabilities 34 100 97
Current income tax liabilities 89 51
Deferred income tax liabilities 35 141 110
Retirement benefit obligations 36 B4 63
Total liabilities 220,168 226,326
EQUITY
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Parent
Shara capital 40 106 106
Share premium 40 1,142 1,142
Retained earnings 42 1,402 940
Other reserves 43 127 116
Total equity 2,777 2,304
Total equity and liabilities 222,945 228,630

The notes on pages 113 to 185 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Gerhard Bruckermann Dr. Reinhard Grzesik Maurice O'Connell Elaine Tiernan
Director Director Director Company Secretary
22 March 2007
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Company balance sheet

Note As at 31 December
2006 2005
€m €m
ASSETS
Cash and balances with central banks 17 1,689 1,408
Loans and advances to banks 19 45,020 39,868
Trading securities 20 747 79
Derivative financial instruments 21 6,223 6,006
Cther financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 22 1,848 561
Loans and advances to customers 23 39,026 35,050
Investment securities — available-for-sale 24 32,475 34,718
Shares in Group undertakings 25 2,278 2,305
Intangible assets 26 9 10
Property, plant and equipment 27 16 18
Deferred income tax assets 35 21 12
Other assets 28 60 48
Total assets 129,420 120,082
L1ABILITIES
Deposits from banks 29 71,037 60,846
Other deposits ) 30 31,118 29,739
Derivative financial instruments and other trading liabilities 21 9,264 11,560
Due to customers 31 7,327 7,297
Debt securities in issue 32 6,976 7,238
Other borraowed funds 33 971 1,085
Cther liabilities 34 51 52
Current income tax liabilities 12 2
Deferred income tax liabilities 35 19 4
Retiroment bengfit obligations 36 3 5
Total liabilities 126,778 117,808
EQUITY
Capital and reserves attributable to equity holders of the Company
Share capital 40 106 1086
Share premium 40 1,142 1,142
Capital reserve 41 903 903
Retained earrings 42 433 97
Other reserves 43 58 26
Total equity 2,642 2,274
Total equity and liabilities 129,420 120,082

The notes on pages 113 to 185 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Gerhard Bruckermann Reinhard Grzesik Maurice O’Connell Elaine Tiernan
Director Director Director Company Secretary
22 March 2007

108



Consolidated statement of changes in equity - Group

Unrealised
Unrealised gains/
gains/ losses
losses on Total
on available share-

Share Share Retained cashflow forsale holders  Minority Total
€m capital premium  earnings hedges securities equity interest equity
Balance at 1 January 2005 106 1,142 538 3 86 1,875 9 1,884
Prafit for the year - 475 - - 475 475
Net change in available
for sale investments, net of tax - - - 28 28 28
Net changes in cash flow - - -1 - -1 -1
hedges, net of 1ax.

Total recognised profit - - 475 -1 28 502 - 502
Dividends - -58 - - -58 -58
Purchase of own shares - -47 - - -47 -47
Share based payments 32 - - 32 . 32
Acquisition of minority interest - - - - - - -9 -9
Balance at 31 December 2005 106 1,142 940 2 114 2,304 - 2,304
Profit for the year - 526 - - 526 526
Net change in avaiable for

sale investments, net of 1ax - 11 1 "
Net changes in cash flow

hedges, net of tax - - - - - -
Total recognised profit - - 526 - 1 537 - 537
Dividends - -86 - - -86 -86
Purchase of own shares - -9 - - -9 -9
Share based payments - - K - 31 - 31
Balance at 31 December 2006 106 1,142 1,402 2 125 2,777 - 2,777

The notes on pages 113 to 185 are an integral part of these consaolidated financial statements.
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Statement of changes in equity - Company

Unrealised

gains/

losses
on Total
available share-
Share Share Capital retained for sale holders
€m capital premium reserve  earnings securities  equity
Balance at 1 January 2005 106 1,142 903 26 19 2,196
Profit for year - - - 144 . 144
Net change in available for sale investments, net of tax - - - 7 7
Total recognised Profit - - - 144 7 151
Dividends - - - -58 - -68
Purchase of own shares - - - -47 - -47
Share based payments - - - 32 - 32
Balance at 31 December 2005 106 1,142 903 97 26 2,274
Profit for the year - - - 400 - 400
Net change in available for sale investments, net of tax - - - 32 32
Total recognised profit - - - 400 32 432
Dividends - - -86 - -86
Purchase of own shares - - -9 -9
Share based payments - - 31 31
Balance at 31 December 2006 106 1,142 903 433 58 2,642

The notes on pages 113 to 185 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




Cash flow statement

Group Company

Note 2006 2005 2006 2005
€m €m €m €m

Cash flows from operating activities
Net profit before taxation 646 597 474 171

Adjustments for non-cash movements:
Depreciation and amortisation of tangible and intangible assets 9 9 5 6
Foreign exchange gainloss 4 -2 7 1
Net (increase}/decrease in accrued interest income -884 -1,280 -753 -779
Net increase/(decrease) in accrued interest expenditure 1,046 1,056 724 679
Provisions for losses on loans - 3 - 3
Net gains on sale of investment securities and loans -277 -480 -147 -231
Other non cash items -41 -34 -38 71
Net (increase)/decrease in loans and advances to banks -1,904 -5,444 -10,488 -11,355
Net (increase)/decrease in icans and advances to customers -16,027 -12,543 -7,323 -3,041
Purchase of investment securilies -13,7687 -32,495 -12,098 -22,798
Sale/maturity of investment securities 18,989 22,857 14,445 16,200
Net (increase)/decrease in other assets -6 1 -12 -189
Net increase/{decrease) in deposits from other banks 2410 5,668 11,613 8175
Net increase/{decrease} in other deposits 3,182 6,771 3,223 6,730
Net increase/{decrease) in amounts due to customers 585 1,627 360 1,875
Net increase/(decrease) in debt securities issued 6,017 15,154 174 2,320
Net increase/(decrease) in other liabilities -502 1,118 -484 1,056
Net {increase)/decrease in trading securities and other receivables -1,257 243 -1,920 -5
Net (increase)/decrease in derivatives -347 -5 -391 259
Net cash from operating activities -6,644 2,621 -2,629 -673
Tax paid -61 -161 -55 -50

Cash flows from investing activities

Agquisition of subsidiaries - -29 - -144
Disposal of subsidiaries - - - 176
Purchase of property and equipment -13 -8 -4 -6
Sale of property and equipment 3 - 2 -
Purchase of intangible assets -1 -4 - -
Net cash from investing activities -1 -41 -2 26
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Cash flow statement {continued)

Group Company

Note 2006 2005 2006 2005
€m €m €m €m

Cash flows from financing activities
Purchase of own shares -9 -47 9 -47
New issues of other borrowed funds - 800 689
Repayments of other bomowed funds -220 -85 -
Issue of ordinary shares - -
Dividends paid -86 -68 -86 -58
Net cash from financing activities -315 695 -190 594
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents -7,031 3,114 -2,876 -103
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 45 12,049 8,797 6,843 6,812
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalenis -70 138 -63 134
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 45 4,948 12,049 3,904 6,843

Included in the cash fiows for the year are the following amounts:

Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
€m €m €m €m
Interest income received 7,624 8,265 3,306 2,485
Interest expense paid -7,037 -6,067 -3,160 -2,400
Dividend income received - - 162 59

The notes on pages 113 to 185 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




Notes to the consolidated financial statements
1. General information

DEPFA BANK plc is a provider of financial services to public sector clients worldwide. The Group serves
public sector authorities by providing for their financial needs with a broad range of products and services.
It is a Dublin-based public limited company, incorporated under Irish law, with a network of subsidiaries and
branch offices across Europe, as well as in the Americas and Asia. Its shares are listed on the Frankfurt
Stock Exchange. The Group is regulated by the Irish Financial Regulator.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with European Union (EU)
endorsed International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS"), IFRIC interpretations and the Companies
Acts, 1963 to 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS and the European Communities (Credit
Institutions: Accounts) Regulations, 1992. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the histarical cost convention as modified by the revaluation of available for sale investments, financial assets
and liabilities at fair value through the profit or toss and derivatives.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

Consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries comprise all entities (including special purpose entities) over which the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies. The existence and effect of potentiai voting rights that are
currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group controls an entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group and cease to
be consolidated from the date that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries. The cost of an
acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred
or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs diractly attributable to the acquisition. |dentifiable assets
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acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at
their fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any minority interest. The excess of the
cost of acquisition cver the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded
as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities, and
contingent liabiiities of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised directly in the income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of impairment of
the asset transferred.

The financial statements of all subsidiaries are drawn up to the year ended 31 December, and the accounting
policies applied in the preparation of all subsidiary IFRS financial statements included in the consolidated
financial statements are consistent with the Group accounting policies.

Minority interests comprise minority shareholders’ proportionate share in shareholders’ equity and net
income. The Group applies the parent company mathod of consolidation. Therefore, goodwill can arise on the
acquisition of minority interests and the sale of such interests can give rise to a profit or loss in the income
statement.

Common Control Transactions

Common control transactions are business combinations involving businesses or entities under common
control. These transactions are accounted for at book value. Consequently, any differences between
consideration paid/received and the bocok value are transferred directly to shareholders’ equity and no
goodwill arises.

In 2002, the DEPFA Group was recrganised, the purpose of which was to de-merge the Property Finance
and IT Services activities from the Public Finance business and which resulted in the formation of the current
parent company, DEPFA BANK plc. This de-merger was treated as a discontinued operation.

DEPFA BANK plc was created by a share for share exchange with the previous parent company, DEPFA
Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG. This share for share exchange and other transfers of assets and property as
part of the reorganisation were treated as a transaction under commen control and accounted for at book
value.

Under Irish company law, a share premium was created on the above share for share exchange. A merger
adjustrment arose being the difference between the fair value of the shares issued and the book value of the
net assets acquired. The merger adjustment was transferred to retained earnings.

The Group availed of the exemption in IFRS 1 to apply IFRS to business combinations, including common
control transactions, from 15 March 2002, the date of the Group restructuring.

Segment reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in providing products or services that are
subject to risks and returns that are different from those of other business segments. A geographical segment
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is engaged in providing products or services within a particular economic environment that are subject to
risks and returns that are different from those of segments operating in other economic environments.

The Group's primary segments are based on the nature of the products provided ("business segment”)
whereas the secondary segments are based on the gecgraphical location of the booking entity (“geographical
segment”).

Expenses incurred centrally, including expenses incurred by support, administrative and back-office functions
are charged to the business segments as far as they are reasonably attributable to the business segments’
activities in accordance with their estimated proportionate share of overall activities.

Segment assets and liabilities are those assets and liabilities that are directly attributable to the operating
activities of the segment. A calculated share of equity is allocated to each segment.

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

lterns included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘'the functional currency”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Euro, which is the functional and presentation
currency of the parent.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Euro using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement, except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow
hedges.

Transiation differences on equities held at fair value through the profit and loss account are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss in the income statement. Transtation differences on equities classified as available
for sale are included in the fair value reserve in equity.

(c) Group companies
The results and financial position of all the Group entities that have a functional currency other than Euro are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
balance sheet;

{ii) income and expensas for each income statement are translated at average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions);
and

(iii} all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate compoenent of eguity.
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Interest income and expense
Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement for all interest bearing financial
instruments using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial
liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense aver the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of
the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter peried to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows
considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) but does not
consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to
the contract that are an integral part of the eifective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or
discounts.

The interest element of all derivative and fair valued financial instruments is included in net interest income.

Fee and commission income

Fees and commissions which are not part of the effective interest rate calculation are generally recognised con
an accruals basis when the service has been provided. Loan syndication fees are recognised as income
when the syndication has been completed and the Group has retained no part of the loan package for itself
or retained a part at the same effective interest rate as the other participants.

Commitment fees, together with related direct costs, for loan facilities where draw down is probable are
deferred and recognised as an adjustment to the effective interest on the loan once drawn, Commitment fees
in relation to facilities where draw down is not probable are recognised over the term of the commitment in
fee and commission income.

Other adviscry and service fees are recognised when the service has been provided.

Financial assets and liabilities

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss; loans and receivables; held-to-maturity investments; and available-for-sale financial assets. Financial
liabilities are held at fair value through profit and loss or at amortised cost. Management determines the
classification of its financial instruments at initial recognition aor in accordance with the transition rutes set out
in IFRS 1, as appropriate.

{a) Financial assets and financial liabilities af fair value through profit or foss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for trading, and those designated at fair value
through profit or loss prior to 1 September 2005 or, if later, at inception. A financial asset is classified as fair
value through profit or Joss if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term (held for trading)
or if so designated by management in accordance with the fair value rules as set out in 1AS 39 “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”, namely:




» The designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that woutd
otherwise arise from measuring assets and liabilities or the gains and losses arising on them on different
bases; or

+ A group of financial assets or liabilities is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair valug basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about the group
is provided internally on that basis to management.

Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges. Interest on financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and interest on trading derivatives is included
in net interest income. Other gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are included directly in the
income statement within the trading result.

(b} Loans and receivables
LLoans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market.

On initial recognition, each financial asset is assessed, based on observable market data and judgement
where appropriate, as to whether it is quoted in an active market.

(c) Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturities that the Group's management has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. Were
the Group to sell other than an insignificant amount of held-to-maturity assets, the entire category would be
tainted and reclassified as available for sale.

() Available-for-safe
Available-for-sale investments are those intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, which may be
sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in interest rates or exchange rates.

Regular-way purchases and sales of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity and
available-for-sale are recognised on trade-date - the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset.

Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value with transaction
costs being taken to the income statement. Other financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or where the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership.

Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method.
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Available-{or-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently
carried at fair value.

Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or foss
are included in the income statement in the period in which they arise. Gains and losses arising from changes
in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets are recognised directly in equity, until the financial asset is
derecognised or impaired at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is
recognised in the income statement. However, interest calculated using the effective interest method and
foreign currency gains and losses on monetary assets classified as available-for-sale are recognised in the
income statement. Dividends on avaitable-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in the income statement
when the Group’s right to receive payment is established.

The fair values of financial instruments in active markets are based on current bid prices for assets and offer
prices for liabilities. If the market for a financial instrument is not active {and for unlisted securities), the Group
establishes fair value by using valuation technigues. These include the use of recent arm's length
transactions, discounted cash flow analysis or other valuation technigues commonly used by market
participants.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when they are extinguished — that is when the obligation is discharged,
cancelled, or expires.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due, in accordance
with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guaraniees are initially recognised in the financial statements at fair value on the date the guarantee
was given. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s liabilities under such guarantees are measured at the
higher of the initial measurement, less amortization calculated to recognize in the income statement the fee
income earned on a straight line basis over the life of the guarantee and the best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle any financial obligation arising at the balance sheet date. These estimates are determined
based on experience of simitar transactions and history of past losses, supplemented by the judgment of
Management.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives

Derivatives are used for trading and hedging purposes. They include, in particular, interest rate swaps,
Ccross-currency swaps, interest rate options, foreign exchange forwards, interest rate futures, and credit
derivatives.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently remeasured at their fair value. Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices in active




markets, including recent market transactions, and valuation techniques, including discounted cash flow
models and options pricing madels, as appropriate.

All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative.

The best evidence of the fair value of a derivative at initial recognition is the transaction price {i.e. the fair value
of the consideration given or received) unless the fair value of that instrument is evidenced by

comparison with other observable current market transactions in the same instrument (i.e. without
modification or repackaging) or based on a valuation technique whose variables include only data from
observable markets. Where such evidence exists, the Group recognises profits on day one being the
difference between the transaction and fair value at initial recognition. Where such evidence does not exist,
day one profit is deferred and recognised in the income statement to the extent that it arises from a change in
a factor (including time) that market participants would consider in setting a price. Straight line amortigation is
used where it approximates the above. Subsequent changes in fair value are recognised immediately in the
income statement without reversal of deferred day one profits or logses.

Embedded Derivatives

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments are treated as separate derivatives when their
economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contract and the host contract
is not carried at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in the income statement.

Hedging derivatives

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is
designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Group designates
certain derivatives as either:

{a) hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities or firm commitments (fair value hedge); or,

{b} hedges of highly probable future cash fiows attributable to a recognised asset or liability, or a forecasted
transaction (cash flow hedge).

Hedge accounting is used for derivatives designated in this way provided certain criteria are met.

The Group documents, at the inception of the transaction, the relationship between hedging instruments and
hedged items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge
transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis,
of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in
fair values or cash flows of hedged items.

(a) Fair vaiue hedge
Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in
the income statement, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are
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attributable to the hedged risk. The ineffective portion is included in the trading result with the remainder of
the fair value movement on the underlying and the derivative being included in interest,

I the hedge no longer mests the criteria for hedge accounting, the adjustment to the carrying amount of a
hedged item for which the effective interest method is used is amortised to the income statement over the
period to maturity.

(b) Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow
hedges are recognised in equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediatety
in the income statement in the trading result.

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled to the income statement in the periods in which the hedged item
will affect profit or loss (for example, when the forecast sale that is hedged takes place). The transfer is to the
income statement account which includes the hedged itemn.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised
when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in the income statement. When a forecast transaction
is no longer expected to oceur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity is immediatety
transferred to the income statement,

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting

The Group maintains trading positions in a varisty of financial instruments including derivatives. Trading
transactions arise both as a result of activity generated by customers and from proprietary trading with a view
to generating incremental income.

Some derivatives, while being econamic hedges, do not meet detailed hedge accounting criteria under IFRS.
Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are accounted for as part of the trading portfolio.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance shest when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Sale and repurchase agreements

Securities sold subject to repurchase agreements ('repos’) are carried as assets in the financial statements
when the transferee has the right by contract or custom to sell or repledge the collateral; the counterparty
liabitity is included in deposits from banks or deposits due to customers, as appropriate. Securities purchased
under agreements to resell {'reverse repos’) are recorded as loans and advances to banks or loans and
advances to customers, as appropriate. The difference between sale and repurchase price is treated as
interest and accrued over the life of the agreements using the effective interest method.




Impairment of financial assets

(a} Assets carried at amortised cost
The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event {or
events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated. Objective evidence that a financial asset or group of assets is impaired
includes observable data that comes to the attention of the Group about the following loss events:

() significant financial difficulty of the issuer or abligor;
(i) a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;

{iii) the Group granting to the borrower, for economic or legal reasons relating to the borrower's financial
difficulty, a concession that the Group would not otherwise consider;

{iv} it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
(v) the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties; or

{vi} observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a
group of financial assets since the initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease cannct yet be
identified with the individual financial assets in the group, including:

- adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the group; or

- national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets in the group.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments
carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred} discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss
is recognised in the income statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment has a variable interest rate,

the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate determined under the
contract.

When a loan is uncollectable, it is written off against the related provision for loan impairment. Such loans
are written off after all the necessary procedures have been completed and the amount of the loss has been
determined. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off decrease the amount of the provision
for loan impairment in the income statement.

The property lending portfolio in DEPFA Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG is secured by a charge over the
properties and by guarantees from third party banks, including Aareal Bank AG. The requirement for specific
property loan loss provisicns is determined by considering the fair value of the 1otal collateral.
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(b) Assets carried as available for sale

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered in determining
whether the assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for available for sale financial assets, the
cumulative loss — measured as the differance between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment foss on that financial asset previcusly recognised in the income statement - is removed from
equity and recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses recognised in the income statement on
equity instruments are not reversed through the income statement, If, in a subsequent period, the fair value
of a debt instrument as avaifable for sale increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in the income statement, the impairment loss is reversed
through the income statement.

Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings comprise mainly branches and offices. All property, plant and equipment is stated at
historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or are recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All repairs and maintenance are charged to the

income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight-line method to
write-down their cost to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Estimated useful life, in years
Buildings 50

IT-equipment 3
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 5
Machinery and equipment 5

Vehicle fleet 5
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The assets' residual valuss and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet
date.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and valug in use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
recognised in the income statement.

Intangible assets

(a) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the net
identifiable assets of the acquired entity at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is
included in 'intangible assets’. Separately recognised goodwill is tested annually for impairment and carried at
cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed. Gains and losses
on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

b} Computer software

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring
to use the specific software. These costs are amortised on a straight line basis based on their expected
useful lives (three years).

Leases
The leases entered into by the Group are operating leases. The total payments made under operating leases
are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any payment required to be made
to the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as an expense in the period in which termination takes place.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with less than
three months' maturity from the date of acquisition, including: cash and non restricted balances with central
banks, treasury bills and other gligible bills, and loans and advances to banks, excluding loans and advances
to other Group entities.

Employee benefits

(a) Pension obligations

The Group operates two types of pension schemes — defined benefit schemes and defined contribution
schemes.
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A defined contribution scheme is a pension plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions into a
separate fund. In these plans the Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions

if the fund does not hold sufficient assets tc pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods. A defined benefit scheme is a pension plan that is not a defined contribution
scheme. Typically, defined benefit plans define an amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive

on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and compensation.

The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit pensicon plans is the present value
of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date, together with adjustments for past service costs.
The defined benefit abligation, which is unfunded, is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the
projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting
the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated
in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms
of the related pension liability.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial agssumptions are
charged or credited to the income statement as they are identified. Past-service costs are recognised
immediately in income, unless the changes to the pension plan are conditional on the employees remaining
in service for a specified period of time {the vesting period). In this case, the past-service costs are amortised
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions to privately administered pension insurance
plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has ne further payment aobligations once the
contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are
due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.

{b) Share compensation scheme

The Group operates an incentive compensation programme under which share awards are made to
employees and directors of the Group for no consideration. The fair value of employee services received is
measured by reference to the fair value of the share award at the award date and is recognised as an
expense in the income statement over the vesting period with a corresponding credit to equity. At each
balance sheet date, the entity revises its estimate of the number of shares that are expected to vest,

It recognises the impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, in the income statement, and a
corresponding adjustment to equity over the remaining vesting peried.

Income Tax

Current income tax payable on profits, based on the applicable tax law in each jurisdiction, is recognised as
an expense in the period in which profits arise. The tax effects of income tax l0sses available for carry forward
are recognised as an asset when it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which these
losses can be utilised.
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Deferred income tax is provided in full on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the refated deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax ligbility is settled.

Deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting,
nor taxabte profit or loss.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences ¢an be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries, except
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax related to the fair value re-measurement of available-for-sate investments and cagh flow
hedges, which are charged or credited directly to equity, is also credited or charged directly to equity and is
subsequently recognised in the income statement together with the deferred gain or loss.

Issued debt and borrowings

The clagsification of instruments as a financial liabifity or an equity instrument is dependent upon the
substance of the contractual arrangement. Instruments which carry a contractual obhgation to deliver cash
or ancther financial asset to another entity are classified as financial liabilities and are presented under
deposits from banks, and due to customers, debt securities in issue, or other borrowed funds as appropriate.
The dividends on these instruments are recognised in the income statement as interest expense.

i the Group purchases its own debt, it is removed from the balance shest and the difference between the
carrying amount of the liability and the consideration paid is included in other operating income or operating
expenses.

Share capital

{a} Share issue costs

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.

{b} Dividends on ordinary shares

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the period in which they are approved by the
Company's shareholders or paid (if declared by the directors). Dividends for the year that are declared after
the balance sheet date are dealt with in Note 44.

125




126

{c) Own shares

Where the Company or other members of the consolidated Group purchases the Company's equity share
capital, the consideration paid is deducted from tota! equity as own shares until they are cancelled. Where
such shares are subsequently sold or reissued, any consideration received is included in equity.

Comparatives
Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with changes in presentation in the
current year.

Prospective Accounting Standards

The Group has chosen not to early adopt the following standard and interpretations that were issued but not
yet effective for accounting periods beginning on 1 January 2006:

+ |[FRS 7, Financial Instruments: disclosure

» IFRS 8, Operating segments {effective 1 January 2008)

* IFRIC 7, Applying the restatement approach under IAS 29 (effective 1 March 2006)

= |IFRIC 9, Reassessment of embedded derivative (effective 1 June 2006)

* [FRIC 10, Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment (effective 1 November 2006}

» |FRIC 12, Service Concession Arrangements (effective 1 January 2009)

The Group is currently considering the impact of these accounting standards on its financial statements.
Once adopted, it does not expect that they will have a materiad impact on the Group's financial position.

However IFRS 7 will impact the disclosures the Group will make for financial instruments in 2007 and
onwards.

In August 2005 the IASB published IFRS 7 *"Financial instruments: Disclosures”. This new standard revises
and enhances the disclosure requirements of IAS 32, 'Financial insiruments: disclosure and presentation’,
and 1AS 30, 'Disclosures in the financial statements of banks and similar financial institutions’, and combines
them in one document. On the same date, the IASB published an amendment to IAS 1, 'Presentation of
financial staterents’, relating to capital disclosures. The amendment requires an entity to disclose certain
qualitative and quantitative data about its capital {equity resources). IFRS 7 and the amendment to 1AS 1 are
effective for the year ended 31 December 2007.

There were no new accounting standards or amendments effective in 2006 which had a material effect on
the Group.




3. Financial risk management

Strategy in using financial instruments

The Group is party to various types of financial instruments in the normal course of business to generate
incremental incoma, to reduce its own exposure to fluctuations in interest and exchange rates and to meet
the financing need of its customers. These financial instruments involve to varying degrees, exposure to loss
in the event of a default by a counterparty (“credit risk”) and exposure to future changes in interest and
exchange rates ("market risk”). In addition, the Group is exposed to liquidity risk to the extent that it is
exposed to regular calls on its available cash resources.

In the course of the Group’s banking activities, it makes significant use of financial instruments, including
derivatives. The Group purchases assets at both fixed and floating rates and for varying maturities. Where
deemed appropriate, the Group then manages the interest rate risk on these fixed rate positions, by
swapping them into a floating rate exposure, using interest rate derivatives.

The Group also raises finance at both floating and fixed rates and for varying maturities. In a similar manner
to the asset side, the Group will manage the interest rate risk on fixed rate positions, where deemed
appropriate, by converting them into a floating rate exposure, using interest rate derivatives.

The Group also trades in financial instruments, where it takes proprietary positions in both exchange traded
and over the counter (OTC) financial instruments. These positions are taken with a view to taking advantage
of short term market movements in for example, interest rates, foreign exchange rates and credit spreads.

Fair value hedges:

The Group hedges substantially all of the fixed interest rate risk in its long term financial assets and financial
liabilities, through fair value hedges using a variety of interest rate derivatives. The Group also hedges foreign
exchange risk using a variety of foreign exchange derivatives. The net fair value of these derivatives at

31 December 2006 was -€ 4,662 million (2005: -€ 7,886 million).
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Cash flow hedges:

The Group also hedges a portion of the cash flow interest rate and foreign currency risk, arising on future
payments and receipts on variable rate assets and liabilities. The Group manages this risk through the use
of cross currency interest rate swaps. The net fair value of these derivatives at 31 December 2006 was

-€ 429 million (2005; -€ 234 million).

The Group’s policies and objectives in managing the risks that arise in connection with the use of financial
instruments are set out in the directors report on pages 98 to 101.

Credit Risk

The Group takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay
amounts owed in full when due. Impairment provisions are provided for losses that have been incurred at the
balance sheet date. Significant changes in the econamy, ar in the health of a particular segment that
represents a concentration in the Group’s portfolio, could result in losses that are different from those
provided for at the balance sheet date. Management therefore carefully manages its exposure to credit risk.

The Group restricts its exposure to credit losses by entering into collateral support agreements and master
netting arrangements with counterparties with which it undertakes a significant volume of transactions.

Under the terms of the Collateral Support Agreement, in the event that the value of a counterparty’s derivative
exposure to the Group exceeds a defined limit, the counterparty must post collateral to the amount of the
excess with the Group. In the event of a default by the counterparty, the Group then has recourse to the
collateral, up to the amount of the loss suffered.

Master netting arrangements do not generally result in an offset of balance sheet assets and liabilities,

as transactions are usually settled on a gross basis. However, the credit risk associated with favourable
contracts is reduced by a master netting arrangement to the extent that if an event of default occurs, all
amounts with the counterparty are terminated and settled on a net basis. The Group’s overall exposure to
credit risk on derivative instruments subject to master netting arrangements can change substantially within
a short period, as it is affected by each transaction subject to the arrangement.




Assets are allocated geographically based on the location of the credit risk. Liabilities are allocated on the
basis of the location of the counterparty where this can be identified, Credit commitments are allocated
based on the location of the credit risk.

Included in unaltocated liabilities are all debt securities in issue where the counterparty cannot be
specifically identified as the securities are transferable.

Geographical concentrations of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items

Group Company

Total Total Credit Total Total Credit
assets liabilities commitments assets liabilities commitments

31 December 2006 € m
Germany 53,261 19,485 238 10,401 6,729 217
ltaly 36,769 592 1,893 22,27 587 1,776
France 12,212 7,268 463 3,642 6,752 159
United Kingdom 16,278 40,222 1,258 11,854 35,267 1,258
Spain 12,818 384 535 4,460 384 157
Austria 8,235 152 - 1,074 98 -
Greece 9,235 95 - 3,939 95 -
Ireland 767 15,221 90 26,523 30,309 5
Other European countries 30,950 15,795 046 13,890 15,631 580
USA 26177 21,250 18,501 17,244 20,286 18,501
Canada 5,387 2,281 313 3,333 2,281 313
Japan 6.726 4,712 19 5913 4,712 19
Other Asian countries 2,545 1,143 - 1,839 1,010 -
Other countries 2,585 2,175 85 759 1.974 85
Shares in Group undertakings - - - 2,278 - -
Unallocated assets / abilities - 89,393 - - 663 -
Total 222,945 220,168 24,31 129,420 126,778 23,070

129



130

Geographical concentrations of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items

Group Company
Total Total Credit Total Total Credit
assets liabilities commitments assets liabilities commitments
31 Decamber 2005 €m
Germany 65,541 29,395 76 19,689 8.617 67
Itaty 37,061 1,269 1,277 20,097 1,257 1,158
France 17,766 8,854 113 7,639 8,207 9N
United Kingdom 16,448 45,927 1,299 10,533 40,579 1,292
Spain 13,930 365 930 3.918 364 88
Austria 10,030 772 - 1,436 731 -
Greece B,248 99 - 3312 99
Ireland 2,848 7,081 48 21,987 16,334 24
Other European countries 23,741 13,183 3,595 9,311 12,715 3,258
Usa 17,618 14,206 14,014 10,289 12,657 13,866
Canada 5,154 2,386 - 3,503 1,872 -
Japan 5,687 4,033 80 4,623 4,031 80
Other Asian counties 1,017 600 36 749 310 -
Other countries 3,541 2,134 5 681 2,839 -
Shares in Group undertakings - - - 2,305 - -
Unaflocated assets / liabilities - 85,022 - - 7.196
Total 228,630 226,326 21,473 120,082 117,808 19,924




The concentration of credit risk by counterparty type for loans and advances to banks and customers,
securities and derivatives is summarised below:

Group Company
31/12/2006 31/12/2006
€m Loans Securities Derivatives Total Loans Securities Derivatives Total
Public authorities 144,906 50,441 71 195418 47,490 32,895 71 80,456
Companies and private 5,856 274 64 6,194 2,306 - 64 2,370
indviduals
Banks and financial 11,039 1,658 6,745 10,442 36,096 327 6,088 42,51
institutions .
161,801 52,373 6,880 221,054 85,892 33,222 6,223 125,337
Group Company
31/12/2005 3112/2005
€m Loans Securities Derivatives Total Loans Securities Derivatives Total
Public authorities 136,320 58,549 26 194,895 40,335 34,411 5 74751
Companies and private 2,844 462 59 3,365 610 387 15 1,012
individuals
Banks and financial 20,704 1 8,062 28,767 34,633 - 5986 40,519
institutions
159,868 59,012 8,147 227,027 75,478 34,798 6,006 116,282
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Geographic risk concentrations within the Group’s on balance sheet portfolio are as follows:

Group {Nominals)

€m 31/12/06 3112/05
Germany 47,663 52,564
ftaly 33,164 32,316
USA 19,113 13,249
Spain 12,454 13,152
United Kingdom 11,436 7,503
France 10,006 12,028
Austria 8.009 9,195
Greece 7.917 7.600
Japan 6.412 5,209
Netherlands 4,742 1,331
Supranational 4,655 5,366
Canada 4,643 4,501
Portugal 3,810 3,827
Potand 3,899 3.221
Switzerland 2,501 1,850
Betgium 2,144 2432
Hungary 2,137 1,223
Sweden 1,733 1,756
Denrnark 1,336 949
Finland 1,323 1,364
South Korea 1,046 468
Cther 4,442 2,842

194,585 183,946
Market risk:

Market risks arise from open positions in interest rate, currency and equity products, all of which are
exposed to general and specific market movements. The Group applies a ‘value at risk’ methodology to
estimate the market risk of positions held and the maximum iosses expected, based upon a number of
assumptions for various changes in market conditions. The Board sets limits on the value at risk that may

be accepted, which is monitored on a daily basis.

Two of the principle components of market risk for the Group are currency risk and fair value interest rate

risk,




Currency risk

The Group takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on its
financial position and cash flows. The Board sets limits on the level of exposure by currency and in total for
both overnight and intra-day positions, which are monitored daily. The table below summarises the Group’s
exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk at 31 December. Included in the table are the Group's assets
and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by currency.

Concentrations of assets, liabilities and off balance sheet items

EUR usD JPY GBP QOther Total
As at 31 December 2006 - Group € m
Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 1,742 - 1 1,743
Loans and advances to banks 24,937 3.887 1,320 1,607 2,957 34,708
Trading securities 837 178 - 17 279 1,311
Derivative financial instrurments 8,527 2,623 -3,720 253 1,197 6,880
Other financial instruments at fair value through P&L 5 1,470 - 551 49 2,075
Loans and advances to customers 84,165 21,068 2,298 10,756 6,960 125,247
Investment securities - available for sale 35,360 5,275 6,521 2,412 1,265 50,833
Intangible assets 59 - -7 1 53
Property, plant and equipment 24 2 - 26
Deferred income tax assets 21 1 17 - - 39
Other assets 19 1 - 1 9 30
Total assets 153,696 34,505 6,430 15,598 12,116 222,945
Liabilities
Deposits from banks 44,148 6,950 4,054 6,542 1,505 63,199
Cther deposits 6,737 16,649 986 2,998 3,748 31,118
Derivative financial instruments
and other trading liabifities 15,885 -5,080 -2,304 3,361 611 12,583
Dua to customers 1,539 3.741 792 1,437 395 7,904
Debt securities in issue 80,020 12,227 2,851 1,200 6,519 102,857
Other borrowed funds 2,133 - - - - 2,133
Other liabifities 886 5 2 4 3 100
Current income tax liabilities 82 - 1 6 - 69
Deferred income tax liabilities 143 - -2 - - 141
Retirement benefit obligations 64 - - - - 64
Total liabilities 150,927 34,492 6,420 15,548 12,781 220,168
Net on-balance sheet position 2,769 13 10 50 -65 2,777
Credit commitments 3,71 17,886 19 1,306 1,339 2434
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EUR usp JPY GBP Other Total
As at 31 December 2005 - Group € m
Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 1.358 1 98 - 1,457
Treasury bills and other eligible bills - - - 1 1
Loans and advances to banks 34,139 4210 1,401 1,387 1,733 42,870
Trading securities 162 20 - 18 10 210
Derivative financial instruments 7.010 -400 -999 -387 2,923 8,147
(Other financial instruments at fair value through P&L - - 561 25 586
Loans and advances to customers 81,984 18,660 1,840 7,193 6,760 116,437
Investment securities - available for sale 44,384 5,124 5,630 2,072 1,566 58,776
intangible assets 55 - - - 55
Property, plant and equipment 22 1 - 1 24
Deferred income tax assels 42 . 10 - 52
Other assets - 6 2 5 2 15
Total assets 169,156 27,622 7,982 10,850 13,020 228,630
Liabilities
Deposits from banks 50,081 7,492 2,857 4,748 1,845 67,023
Other deposits 10,689 11,491 1,934 2,755 2,910 29,779
Derivative financial instruments
and other trading liabilities 19,216 -4,237 -177 1,125 1,614 17,541
Due to customers 4,370 1,961 196 22 223 7,672
Debt securities in issug 79,800 10,830 3,185 1,306 6,391 101,612
Other borrowed funds 2,378 - - - 2,378
Oiher liabilities 1 48 4 42 2 97
Current income tax liabilities 51 2 - -2 51
Deferred income tax liabilities 111 - - -1 110
Retirement benefit obligations 63 - - - 63
Total liabilities 166,860 27,587 7,999 10,895 12,985 226,326
Net on-balance sheet position 2,296 35 -17 -45 35 2,304
Credit commitments 4,820 13,970 80 1,300 1,303 21,473




EUR Uusb JPY GBP Other Total
As at 31 December 2006 - Company € m
Assets
Cash and halances with central banks 1,698 1 - - 1,699
Loans and advances 1o banks 27,992 9,588 1,581 2,508 3,341 45,020
Trading securities 730 - 17 - 747
Derivative financial instruments 5,923 2,967 -3,387 213 507 6,223
Other financial instruments at fair value through P&L 5 1,290 - 551 - 1,848
Loans and advances to customers 15,404 9,751 1,955 7,989 3,927 39,026
Investment securities - available for sale 22,049 3,267 5,494 1,326 339 32,475
Shares in Group undertakings 2,078 - - - 2278
Intangible assets 9 - - - 9
Property, plant and equipment 14 2 - - - 16
Deferred income tax asset 3 1 17 - - 21
Other assets 46 3 1 1 9 B0
Total assets 76,151 26,879 5,662 12,605 8,123 129,420
Liabilities
Deposits from other banks 50,314 9,063 4,458 5,791 1411 71,037
Other deposits 8,737 16,649 986 2,998 3,748 31,118
Derivative financial instruments
and other trading liabilities 12,749 -5,241 -1,041 2,154 843 9,264
Due to customers 1,010 3,693 792 1,437 395 7,327
Debt securities in issue 1,689 2,696 467 205 1,919 6,976
Other bomowed funds 971 - - - a71
Other liabiities 42 1 1 4 3 51
Current income tax liabilities 4 1 1 6 - 12
Deferred income tax liabilities 19 - - - 18
Retirernent benefit obligations 3 - - - - 3
Total liabilities 73,538 26,862 5,664 12,595 8,119 126,778
Net on-balance sheet position 2,613 17 -2 10 4 2,642
Credit commitments 2,627 17,864 19 1,306 1,254 23,070
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EUR usb JPY GBP Other Total
As at 31 December 2005 - Company € m
Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 1,310 98 1,408
Loans and advances to banks 29,685 4,804 938 2,340 2,10 39,868
Trading securities 61 - - 18 - 79
Derivative financial instruments 4,355 -10 -887 402 2,148 6,006
COther financial instruments at fair value through P&L - - 561 - 561
Loans and advances o customers 17,073 7,946 1,416 4,262 4,353 35,050
Investment securities - available for sale 25,648 3115 4,671 946 338 34,738
Shares in Group undertakings 2,305 - - - - 2,305
Intangible assets 10 - - - 10
Property, ptant and equipment 16 1 - 1 - 18
Deferred income tax asset 1 - 10 - 11
Other assets 7 3 2 34 2 48
Total assets 80,471 15,859 6,248 8,564 8,940 120,082
Liabilities
Deposits from other banks 46,731 5,562 2,840 3,909 1,804 60,846
Qther deposits 10,689 11,491 1,934 2,715 2,810 29,739
Derivative finangial instruments
and other trading liabilities 14,144 -5,6561 674 877 1,716 11,560
Due 1o customers 4,058 1,905 189 922 223 7,297
Debt securities in issue 1,469 2,540 619 327 2,283 7,238
Cther borrowed funds 1,085 - - - - 1.065
Other liabilities 7 -2 3 42 2 52
Current income tax liabilities 2 2 - -2 - 2
Deferred income tax liabilities 4 - - 4
Retirement benefit obligations 5 - - 5
Total liabilities 78,174 15,847 6,259 8,590 8,938 117,808
Net on-balance sheet position 2,297 12 -1 -26 2 2,274
Credit commitments 3,411 13,904 80 1,293 1,236 19,924

The classification of derivative financial instruments as an asset or liability above is based on the overall fair
value of the instrument at year end. To better reflect the manner in which the Group manages its foreign
exchange, the notional amounts on both the pay and receive legs of the swap {in Euro equivalents) have

been categorised according to their underlying currency.




Fair value interest rate risk
Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. The Group takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of
market interest rates. Interest margins may increase as a result of such changes but may reduce or create
losses in the event that unexpected movements arise.

The table below summarises the Group's exposure to interest rate risks. Included in the table are the Group’s
assets and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing or maturity dates.
Expected repricing and maturity dates do not differ significantly from the contract dates.

Non

Upto3 3-6 612 Over 5 interest

months months months  1-5 years years bearing Total
As at 31 December 2006 - Group € m
Assets
Cash end batances with central banks 1,743 - 1,743
Loans and advances to banks 17,106 2,390 2,149 5,217 7,846 34,708
Trading securities 72 347 136 465 291 1,311
Derivative financial instruments -44,341% 10,271 5,205 29,923 5,822 6,880
Other financial instruments at fair value 576 204 1,285 - - 2,075
through P&L
Loans and advances to customers 43,866 12,445 5,337 16,185 47,404 - 125,247
Invesiment securities - avaiiable for sale 5.831 5,314 3.862 §,762 30,064 - 50,833
Intangible assets - - - - 53 53
Property, plant and equipment - - - 26 26
Deferred income tax assets - - - - 39 39
Other assets - - - 30 30
Total assets 24 853 30,971 16,689 58,857 91,427 148 222,945
Liabilities
Deposits from banks 55,886 5,557 1,432 -67 391 - 63,109
Other deposits 27,126 3,081 807 - 4 - 31,118
Derivative financial instruments
and other trading liabilities -62,707 2,894 6,548 15866 45982 - 12,583
Due to customers 5.933 1,276 343 211 141 - 7,904
Deabt securities in issue 18,660 3,894 6,951 38,479 34873 - 102,857
Other borrowed funds 501 - 312 851 469 - 2,133
Other liabilities - - - - - 100 100
Current income tax liabilities - - - - - 68 69
Daferred income tax liabilities - - - - - 11 141
Retirement benefit obligations - - - - - 64 B4
Total liabilities 45,399 16,702 16,493 55,340 85,860 374 220,168
Net interest repricing gap -20,546 14,269 196 3,517 5,567 -226 2,777
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non

Upto3 3-6 6-12 Over 5 interest

maonths months months  1-5 years years bearing Total
As at 31 December 2005 - Group € m
Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 1,455 - 2 - - - 1,457
Treasury bills and other gligible bils 1 - - - - 1
Loans and advances o banks 20,782 5,705 1,013 5,805 9,565 - 42870
Trading securities 13 96 23 10 68 - 210
Derivative financial instruments -59,720 -2,389 4,664 32,235 33,367 - 8,147
Other financial instruments at fair value
through P&L 586 - - - - o586
Loans and advances to customers 31,479 10,222 3,329 22,482 48,925 116,437
Investment securities - avaitable for sale 3,725 3,206 4,921 5,789 41,045 - BB77B
Intangible assets - - - - 55 55
Property, plant and equipment - - - - 24 24
Deferred income tax assets - - - - 52 52
Other assets - - - - 15 15
Total assets -1,679 16,920 13,952 66,321 132,970 146 228,630
Liabilities
Depaosits from banks 51,926 12,318 1,931 192 6855 67,023
QOther deposits 24,292 2,919 2568 - - 29,779
Derivative financial instruments and
other trading liabilities -84,965 -16,863 8,259 22,906 88,204 17,541
Due to customers 4616 2,259 179 415 203 - 7,672
Debt securities in issue 13,481 6,904 2,188 43,318 35,721 - 101,612
Other borrowed funds 777 - - 756 845 - 2,378
Cther Eabilities - - - - 97 a7
Current income tax liabilities - - - - 51 51
Deterred income tax liabilities - - - - 110 110
Retirement benefit obligations - - - - 63 63
Total iiabilities 10,127 7,538 15,125 67,587 125,628 321 226,326
Net interest repricing gap -11,806 9,382 -1,173 -1,266 7,342 -175 2,304




non

Upto3 3-6 6-12 Over§ interest

months months months  1-5 years years bearing Total
As at 31 December 2006 - Company € m
Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 1,699 - - 1,699
Loans anc¢ advances 1o banks 35,705 2,676 1,215 1,143 4,281 45,020
Trading securities - - 461 286 - 747
Derivative financial instruments -11,828 9,151 2,408 5,437 1,055 - 6,223
Cther financial instruments at fair
value through P&L 347 204 - - 1,295 - 1,846
Leoans and Advances to Customers 17,777 4,040 1,290 2,931 12,988 - 39,026
Investrment securities - available for sale 4,821 3,463 1,573 2,043 20,575 - 32475
Shares in Group undertakings - - - 2,278 2,278
Intangible assets - - 9 9
Property, plant and equipment - - 16 16
Deferred income tax asset - . 21 21
Other assets - - . 60 60
Total assets 48,51 19,534 6,486 12,015 40,480 2,384 129,420
Liabllities
Deposits from other banks 62,508 6,779 1,222 52 476 - 71,037
Other deposits 27,125 3.081 807 - 5 - 31,118
Derivative financial instruments
and other trading liabilities -37,440 2,112 3,496 6,687 34,409 - 9,264
Oue to customers 5,697 1,125 284 167 54 7.327
Debt securities in issua 3,689 525 575 1,495 602 6,976
Other borrowed funds 700 - 271 971
Other fabilities - - - 51 51
Current income tax liabilities - - - - 12 12
Deferred income tax liabilities - - . - 19 19
Retirement benefit obligations - - - - 3 3
Total liahilities 62,279 13,622 6,484 B,401 35,907 B85 126,778
Net interest repricing gap -13,758 5912 2 3,614 4,573 2,299 2,642
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Non

Upto3 3-6 6-12 Over 5 Interest

months months months  1-5 years years Bearing Totai
As at 31 December 2005 — Company € m
Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 1,408 - - - - - 1,408
Treasury bills and other efigible bills 28,170 5,622 186 774 4,116 - 39,868
Loans and advances 1o banks - - - 10 69 - 79
Trading securities -34,190 -1,581 4,132 12,193 25,462 - 6,006
Derivative financial instruments 561 - - - - - 561
Other financial instruments at fair value
through P&L 11,635 3,238 478 2,441 17,258 - 35,050
Investment securities — avaitable-for-sale 2,875 1,490 2,253 1,307 26,793 - 34,718
Shares in Group undertakings - - - - - 2,305 2,305
Intangible assets - - - - - 10 10
Property, plant and equipment - - - - - 18 18
Deferred income tax asset - - - - - 11 11
Other assets - - - - - 48 48
Total assets 11,459 8,759 7,049 16,725 73,698 2,392 120,082
Liabilities
Deposits from other banks 48,545 10,686 1,446 20 149 - 60,848
Other deposits 24,266 2,905 2,568 - - - 29,739
Derivative financial instruments and
other trading liabilities -63,350 -9,720 3,573 16,068 64,999 - 11,560
Due to customers 4,613 2,212 168 210 94 - 7,297
Debt securities in issue 3,726 962 406 1,419 725 - 7,238
Other borrowed funds 795 - - - 270 - 1,065
Other liabilities - - - - - 52 52
Current income tax fiabilities - - - - - 2
Deferred income tax liabilities - - - - - 4
Retirement benefit obligations - - - - - 5
Total liabilities 18,585 7,045 8,161 17,717 66,237 63 117,808
Net interest repricing gap -7,126 1,714 -1,112 -992 7,461 2,329 2,274




The table below summarises the effective interest rate by major currencies for monetary financial instruments
not carried at fair value through profit or loss:

As at 31 December 2006 - Group EUR uso JPY GBP
% % % %

Assets

Cash and balances with central banks 3.6

Loans and advances to banks 4.1 52 2.1 4.6

Loans and advances to customers 42 56 22 4.7

Invastment securities 4.1 8.5 23 4.4

Liabilities

Deposits from banks 35 5.3 0.5 51

Other deposits 3.5 53 0.4 5.1

Due to customers 3.7 5.2 0.5 5.1

Debt securities in issug 4.1 38 1.9 49

Other borrowed funds 7.7

As at 31 December 2005 - Group EUR usD JPY GBP
% % %o %

Assets

Cash and balances with central banks 2.3

Loans and advances to banks 3.1 42 1.2 48

Loans and advances to customers 4.2 5.4 26 4.5

Investment securities 4.1 5.2 20 a2

Liabilities

Deposits from banks 23 42 0.1 46

Other deposits 23 4.2 46

Due 1o cusiomers 23 4.3 0.4 4.6

Debt securities in issue 41 39 2.3 a7

Other borrowed funds 5.0
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As at 31 December 2006 - Company EUR UsD JPY GBP

% %o % %
Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 3.6
Loans and advances to banks 3.8 47 2.2 43
Loans and advances to customers 3.4 52 20 4.7
Investment securities 3.9 55 1.4 4.4
Liabilities
Deposits from banks 35 52 05 5.1
Other deposits 35 5.3 04 51
Duse 1o customers 3.5 5.2 05 5.1
Debt securities in issue 2.6 4.4 2.4 5.2
Other borrowed funds 3.7
As at 31 December 2005 - Company EUR usp JPY GBP
% % % %
Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 23
Loans and advances {0 banks 26 43 0.7 4.5
Loans and advances to customers 35 4.8 1.8 42
Investment securities 4.1 5.6 2.0 3.7
Liabilities
Deposits from banks 22 4.2 0.1 4.6
Other deposits 23 4.2 0.0 4.6
Due to customers 22 4.2 0.4 4.6
Debn securities in issug 2.3 4.2 21 4.7
Cther borrowed funds 39

The majority of the Group's interest earning assets are entered into at a fixed rate of interest. The fair value
interest rate risk on these positions, is mitigated, where desirable from a treasury perspective, using interest
rate derivatives.

A large propartion of the Group's interest earning liabilities, are entered into at a fixed rate, for periods of up
to one year. Where longer dated fixed rate liabilities are issued, the fair value risk on these positions is also
mitigated through the use of interest rate derivatives.

The above repricing tables indicates the exposure of the Group to fair value interest rate risk, on both its
asset and liahility positions with fixed interest rates, showing the period of time until when they next reprice.
To better reflect how the Group manages interast rate risk, the fair values on both the pay and receive legs of
the derivative have been included in the derivative assets and derivative liabilities lines as appropriate, and
have been categoerised by the next repricing date. This disclosure gives a more accurate indicator of the net
repricing exposure in each time pericd, and reflects to a greater degree how the Group manages its interest
rate risk.




Liquidity Risk

The Group is exposed to daily calls on its available cash resources from overnight deposits, current

accounts, maturing deposits, loan draw-downs and guarantees, and from margin and other calls on
cash-settled derivatives. The Group does not maintain cash resources to meet all of these needs, as

experience shows that a minimum level of reinvestment of maturing funds can be predicted with a high level
of certainty. The Board sets limits on the minfmum proportion of maturing funds available to meet such calls

and on the minimum level of inter-bank and other borrowing facilities that should be in place to cover

withdrawals at unexpected levels of demand.

The table below analyses the Group's assets and liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date.

As at 31 December 2006 - Group € m Upto3 3-12 1-5 Qver 5 Non-financial

months months years years instruments Total
Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 1,712 31 - - 1,743
Loans and advances to banks 8,286 4,300 7477 14,645 34,708
Trading securities g 76 869 358 1,311
Derivative financial instruments 572 230 1,702 4,376 6,880
Other financial instruments at fair valug
through P&L 456 153 1,205 171 2,075
Loans and advances to customers 3,934 7.347 21,894 92,072 - 125,247
Investment securities - available for sale 840 2,112 6,531 41,350 - 50,833
Intangible assets - - - - 53 53
Property, plant and equipment - - - - 26 26
Deferred income tax assets - - - - 39 39
Other assets - - - - 30 30
Total assets 15,808 14,249 39,768 152,972 148 222,945
Liabilities
Deposits from banks 53,354 7,175 1,225 1,445 - 83,199
Other deposits 27,125 3,989 - 4 - 31,118
Derivative financial instruments
and other trading kabilities 690 430 2,085 9,378 - 12,583
Ous to customers 4,786 1,186 1,379 553 - 7,904
Oebt securities in issue 6,089 9,432 43,7 43,545 - 102,857
Other borrowed funds 1 -1,972 851 3,253 - 2.133
Qther liabilities - - 100 100
Current income tax liabilities - - 69 69
Deferred income tax liabilities - - 144 141
Retirement benefit obligations - - 64 64
Total liabilities 92,045 20,240 49,33 58,178 374 220,168
Net liquidity gap -76,237 -5,991 -9,563 94,794 -226 2,777
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As at 31 December 2005 - Group € m Upto3 3-12 1-5 Over5 Non-financial

months months years years instruments Total
Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 1,446 11 - - - 1,457
Treasury and cther eligible bills 1 - - - - 1
Loans and advances to banks 13,293 9,553 7.810 12,214 - 42870
Trading securities - 107 103 - 210
Derivative financial instruments 111 223 1,909 5,904 - 8,147
Other financial instruments at fair value
through P&L - - 586 - 586
Loans and advances to customers 3,616 4878 28,215 79,728 - 116,437
nvestment securities available for sale 338 1,048 6,399 50,891 - 58776
Intangible assets - - - 55 55
Property, plant and equipment - - - 24 24
Deferred income tax assets - - - 52 52
Other assets - - - 15 15
Totat assets 18,805 15,713 44,440 149,526 146 228,630
Liabilities
Deposits from banks 50,498 14,357 B32 1,336 - 87,023
Other deposits 23,752 6,027 - - - 29,779
Derivative financial instruments
and other trading liabilities 1,217 188 2,705 13,431 - 17541
Due to customers 4,606 2,425 421 220 - 7,672
Debt securities in issue 2,413 5644 49,332 44,223 - 101,612
Cther borrowed funds 47 - 417 1,914 - 2,378
Other liabilities - - - 97 97
Current income tax liabilities - - - 51 51
Deferred income tax liabilities - - 110 i10
Retirement benefit obligations - - B3 63
Total liabilities 82,533 28,641 53,707 61,124 321 226,326
Net liquidity gap -63,728 -12,928  -9,267 88,402 175 2,304




As at 31 December 2006 - Company € m Upto3 3-12 1-5 Over 5 Non-financial

months months years years instruments Total
Assels
Cash and balances with central banks 1,673 26 - 1,699
Loans and advances to banks 28,974 3,132 2,605 10,309 45,020
Trading securities - - 461 286 747
Derivative financial instruments 335 132 514 5,242 6,223
Other financial instruments at fair value 227 153 . 1,466 1,846
through P&L
Loans and advances 1o customers 1,029 1,231 6,254 30,512 39,026
Investment securities — available-for-sale 636 1,522 2,043 28,274 - 32,475
Shares in Group undertakings - - 2,278 2,278
Intangible assets - - - 9 9
Property, plant and equipment - - - 16 16
Deferred income 1ax assets - - - 2 21
Cther assets - - - 60 60
Total assets 32,874 6,196 11,877 76,089 2,384 129,420
Liabilities
Deposits from banks 59,937 7,257 1,285 2,558 - 71,037
Other deposits 27125 3,989 - 4 - 31,118
Derivative financial instruments 415 149 B39 7.861 - 9,264
and other trading liabilities
Due to customers 4,559 1.001 1,334 433 - 7.327
Debt securities in issue 578 2,150 2477 1,771 - 6,976
Other borrowed funds - - 971 - 971
Other liabilities - - - 51 51
Current income tax liabilities - - 12 12
Deferred income tax liabilities - - - 19 19
Retirement benefit obligations - - - 3 3
Total liabilities 92,614 14,546 5,935 13,598 85 126,778
Net liquidity gap -59,740 -8,350 5,942 62,491 2,299 2,642
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As at 31 December 2005 - Company € m Upto3 3-12 1-5 Over 5 Non-financial

months menths years years instruments Total
Assets
Cash and balances wilth central banks 1,398 10 - - - 1,408
Loans and advances to banks 24,205 8,379 2,206 5,078 - 39,868
Trading securities 1 - 10 68 - 79
Derivative financial instruments 209 120 603 4,984 - 6,006
Other financial instruments at fair value
through P&L - - - 561 - 561
Loans and advances to customers 1,514 1,020 3,942 28,574 - 35,080
Investment securities - available-for-sale 236 931 1,394 32,157 - 34718
Shares in Group undertakings - - - - 2,305 2,305
Intangible assets - - - 10 10
Property, plant and equipment - - - 18 18
Deferred income tax assets - - - 11 11
Other assets - - 48 48
Total assets 27,563 10,460 8,245 71,422 2,392 120,082
Liabilities
Deposits from banks 47,530 12,015 696 605 - 60,846
Qther deposits 23,726 8,013 - - - 29,739
Derivative financial instruments 1,137 81 1,128 9,214 - 11,580
and other trading liabilities
Due to customers 4,692 2,379 210 116 - 7,297
Debt securities in issue 121 964 4,026 2127 7,238
COther borrowed funds - - 1,065 1,065
Cther liabilities - - - 52 52
Current income tax liabilities - - - 2 2
Deferred income tax liabilities - - - 4 4
Retirement benefit obligations - - - 5 5
Total liabilities 77,106 21,452 6,060 13,127 63 117,808
Net liquidity gap -49,543 -10,992 2,185 58,295 2,329 2,274

The matching and controlled mismatching of the maturities and interest rates of assets and liabilities is
fundamental to the liquidity management of the Group. The maturities of assets and fiabilities and the ability
to replace, at an acceptable cost, interest-bearing liabilities as they mature are important factors in assessing
the liquidity of the Group and its exposure to changes in interest rates and exchange rates.




Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

The following table summarises the carrying amounts and fair values of those financial assets and liabilities
not presented on the Group’s balance sheet at their fair value. Bid prices are used to estimate fair values of

assets, whereas offer prices are applied for liabilities.

Group € m
Carrying value Fair value

2006 2005 2006 2005
Financial assets
Loans and advances to banks 34,708 42,870 34,879 43,047
Loans and advances to customers 125,247 116,437 125,663 117,247
Financial liabilities
Deposits from banks 63,199 67,023 63,202 67,023
Other deposits 31,118 29,779 31,118 29,779
Due to customers 7,904 7,672 7.900 7.673
Debt securities in issue 102,857 101,612 103,086 102,030
QOther borrowed funds 2,133 2,378 2,189 2,498

Company € m
Carrying value Fair value

2006 2005 2006 2005
Financial assets
Loans and advances to banks 45,020 39,868 44916 39,871
Loans and advances to customers 39,026 35,050 39,005 35,125
Financial liabilities
Deposits from banks 71,037 60,846 71,038 60,847
Other deposits 31,118 29,739 31,118 29,739
Due to customers 7.327 7297 7,327 7,297
Debt securities in issue 8,976 7,238 6,975 7,224
Qther borrowed funds 971 1,085 971 1,065
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a) Deposits from banks

The fair value of floating rate placements and overnight deposits is their carrying amount. The estimated fair
value of fixed interest bearing deposits is based on discounted cash flows using prevailing money-market
interest rates for debts with similar credit risk and remaining maturity.

b) Loans and advances to banks and customers

Loans and advances are net of provisions for impairment. The estimated fair value of loans and advances
represents the discounted amount of estimated future cash flows expected to be received. Expected cash
flows are discounted at current market rates to determine fair value.

¢} Deposits and borrowings

The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated maturity, which includes non-interest-bearing deposits,
is the amount repayable on demand. The estimated fair value of fixed interest-bearing deposits and other
borrowings without quoted market price is based on discounted cash flows using interest rates for new
debts with similar remaining maturity.

d} Debt securities in issue

The aggregate fair values are calculated based on quoted market prices. For those notes where quoted
market prices are not avaitable, a discounted cash fiow modet is used based on a current yield curve
appropriate for the remaining term to maturity.




Gains and losses from fair value adjustments for recognised assets and liabilities

The following table details the gains and fosses from fair value adjustments relating to available for sale
investment securities, financial assets at fair value through P&L, and from hedge accounting:

Group € m 2006

Financtal

AFS instruments
Hedge investment at fair value  Total fair vaiue
accounting securities through P&L adjustments
Loans and advances to banks 70 - - 70
Other financial instruments at fair value through P&L - - 3 3
Loans and advances to customers -3,383 - - -3,383
Investment securities - availabla-for-sale -2,941 -6 - -2,947
Total assets -6,254 -6 3 -6,257
Deposits from banks -1 - - -11
Other deposits 3 - - 3
Due to customers -25 - - -25
Debt securities in issus -2,959 - - -2,959
Cther borrowed funds -8 - - -8
Total liabilities -3,000 - - -3,000
Hedging instruments 3,257 - 3 3,260
Net equity 3 -6 3

Group € m 2005

Financial

AFS instruments
Hedge investment at fair value  Total fair value
accounting securities through P&L adjustments
Loans and advances to banks -419 - - -419
Other financial instruments at fair value through P&L - - 8 8
Leans and advances to customers B3 - - 891
Investrment securities - available-for-sale 623 26 - 849
Total assets 1,085 26 8 1,129
Deposits from banks -49 - - -49
Other deposits -4 - - -4
Due to customers -3 - - -3
Debt securitias in issue -272 - - -272
Other borrowed funds 2 - - 2
Total liabilities -326 - - -326
Hedging instruments -1,423 - -3 -1,426
Net equity -2 26 5 29
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Company € m 2006

Financial

AFS instruments
Hedge investment at fair value  Total fair value
accounting securities through P&L adjustments
Leoans and advances to banks 408 - - 408
Other financial instruments at falr value through PaL - - -3 -3
Loans and advances to customers -969 - - -969
Investment securities - avaitable-for-salg -1,495 30 - -1,465
Total assets -2,056 30 -3 -2,029
Ceposits from banks 30 - - 30
Cther deposits 2 - - 2
Due to customers -6 - - -6
Debt securities in issue -7 - - -7
Other borrowed funds - - - -
Total lizbilities 19 - - 19
Hedging instruments 2,080 - 3 2,083
Net equity 5 30 - 35

Company € m 2005

Financial

AFS instruments
Hedge investment at tair value  Total fair value
accounting securities through P&L adjustments
Loans and advances {o banks -410 - - -410
Other financial instruments at fair value through P&L - - 3 3
Loans and advances to customers 22 - - 22
Investment securities - available-for-sale 163 -7 - 156
Total assets -225 -7 3 -229
Deposits from banks -23 - - -23
Other deposits -3 . - 3
Due to customers 1 - - 1
Debt securities in issue -104 - - -104
Other borrowed funds - - - -
Total liabilities -129 - - -129
Hedging instruments a1 - -3 88
Net equity -5 -7 - 12
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4. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The Group believes that of its significant accounting policies and estimates, the following may involve a
higher degree of judgement and complexity.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Some of the Group's financial instruments are carried at fair value, including derivatives, available for sale
investments and loans and receivables at fair value through profit or loss. Fair values are based on quoted
market prices or appropriate pricing models. Where models are used, the methodology is to calculate the
expected cash flows and discount these back to a present value. The models use independentty sourced
parameters including interest rate yield curves, equity prices, option volatility and currency rates. The
calculation of fair value for any instrument may require adjustment to reflect credit risk (where not embedded
in the model used}. The valuation model used for a specific instrument, the quality and liquidity of market
data and other adjustments all require the exercise of judgement. The usea of different models or other
assumptions could result in changes in reported financial results.

Investment Securities
Investment securities are included as either available for sale investments or loans and receivables.

Available for sale investments are valued at fair value using market values where available. Where market
values are not available, fair values are represented by the use of other means such as price quotations for
similar investments, or pricing models.

Loans and receivables have fixed or determinable payments, recover substantially all of their initial
investment other than for reasons of credit and must not be quoted in an active market. Due to the
specialised market in which the Group operates and the fact that the majority of the Group’s securities
trades are done on a bilateral basis, judgement is required as to whether an active market may be held to
exist in a security. Details of the fair value of financial assets not carried at fair value in the financial
statements are disclosed in Note 3. If an active market was held to exist for these assets, the movement in
fair value, net of tax, would be posted to equity.

The Group conducts regular impairment reviews of its available for sale portfolic and considers indicators
such as downgrades in credit ratings or breaches of covenants as well as the application of judgement in
determining whether the creation of a provision is appropriate. The useg of different models or other
assumptions and methods with respect to the valuation of investment securities could result in changes
in reported financial results.

Taxation

The taxation charge includes amounts due to fiscal authorities in the various territories in which the Group
operates and includes estimates based on a judgement of the application of law and practice in certain
cases to determine the quantification of any liabilities arising. In arriving at such estimates, management
assesses the relative merits and risks of tax treatments assumed, taking into account statutory, judicial and
regulatory guidance and, where appropriate, external advice.
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Impairment provisions

Where there is a risk that the Group will not receive full repayment of the amount advanced, provisions are
made in the financial statements to reduce the carrying value of loans and receivables to the amount
expected to be recovered. The estimation of credit losses is inherently uncertain and depends on many
factors such as general economic conditions, cash flows, structural changes and other external factors.

The calculation of specific provisions is based on discounted cash flows. Certain aspects of this process
may require estimation, such as the amounts and timing of future cash flows.

The Group considered the impact of a change in +/- 5% of the net present value of the estimated cash flows
for all loans tested for impairment. This impact is considered to be insignificant.

The Group consider on that the provisions for impairment were adequate based on information available at
that time. However, actual losses may differ as a result of changes in the timing and amounts of cash flows
ar other economic events.

Pensions

The Group operates a defined benefit pension scheme. In determining the actual pension cost, the actuarial
value of the liabilities of the scheme are calculated. This involves modelling their future growth and requires
management to make assumptions as to price inflation, salary and pensions increases, and employee
mortality. There are acceptable ranges in which these estimates can validly fall. The impact on the results
for the period and financial position could be materially different if alternative assumptions were used.

Securitisations and Special Purpose Vehicles

The Group sponsors the formation of special purpose vehicles (SPVs) primarily for the purpose of allowing
clients to hold investments, for securitisations transactions, and for buying or selling credit protection,

The Group dees not consolidate SPVs that it does not control. As it can sometimes be difficult to determine
whether the Group controls the SPV, it makes judgements about its exposure to the risks and rewards, as
well as its ability to make operational decisions for the SPV in question.

5. Business segments
The Group is organised on a worldwide basis into the following main business segments:

Budget Finance

The Budget Finance segment incorporates the traditional public finance lending business of the Group in the
form of bond and loan financing with public sector authorities, The bank does not take any interest rate risks
within this segment. It also includes all of the Group’s funding positions which are recharged to other
segments at agreed rates. Other than floating trade instruments unhedged public sector loans and bonds
are included in Global Markets.




infrastructure Finance
Infrastructure Finance relates to financing of infrastructure projects. The Group focuses on projects providing
essential infrastructure e.g. roads, bridges, tunnels, public buildings, and other essential services.

Client Product Services

This area of business comprises the provision of various forms of batance sheet financing as well as
off-balance sheet products and services to customers. This segment relates specifically to derivative
products, structured transactions, securitisation and agvisory services.

Global Markets
Global Markets consists of the Group’s unhedged loan and bond books and the Group’s trading activities.

Corporate Centre
This segment contains overhead costs and project costs which cannot be allocated 1o other segments as
well as the residual property portfolio of the DEPFA Deutsche Piandbriefoank AG and surplus capital.

Segment assets and liabilities are those assets and liabilities that are directly attributable to the operating
activities of the segment. A calculated share of equity is allocated to each segment based on the risk profile
of the segment assets. Unallocated or surplus equity is retained at the Corporate Centre.

Expenses incurred centrally, including expenses incurred by support, administrative and back-office
functions are charged to the business segments where practical in accordance with their estimated
proportionate share of overall activities. Unallocated expenses are retained at the Corporate Centrs,

2006 €m

Corporate

Client Centre/

Budget Infrastructure Product Global Consolidation
€m Finance Finance Service  Markets iterns Group
Net interest incorne 356 39 2 59 -31 425
Nen interest revenues 283 16 59 85 6 449
Total revenues 639 55 61 144 -25 874
Total expenditure -84 -19 =24 =22 -79 -228
Impairment losses on loans and advances - - - - - -
Profit before tax 555 36 37 122 -104 646
Taxation -139
Profit for the year — continuing operations 507

Balance sheet
Assets 192,256 5,895 2,589 17,074 5,131 222,945
Liabilities 190,737 5,602 2,512 16,506 4,911 220,168




2005 €m

Corporate

Client Centre/

Budget Infrastructure Product Global Consolidation
€m Finance Finance Services  Markets items Group
Net interest income 309 20 1 102 -10 422
Non interest revenues 132 4] 21 244 -9 393
Total Revenues 441 25 22 346 -19 815
Total Expenditure -85 -14 -16 =34 -66 -215
Impairment losses on loans and advances - -3 - - - -3
Profit before tax 356 8 6 312 -85 597
Taxation -122
Profit for the year - continuing operations 475

Balance sheet

Assets 206,887 1,884 92 12,292 7,475 228,630
Liabilities 205,624 1,761 66 11,485 7,390 226,326

The Group's secondary segments are geographical in nature, For this purpose, a distinction is made
between ‘lreland’, 'Germany’ and ‘Cther” based on the registered office or location of the respective Group
company or branch office.

The calculation of results is based on the assumption that the Group companies in the region are legally
independent units responsible for their respective operations.

€m treland Germany Other Consolidation Total
Revenues 2006 503 224 153 -6 874
Total Assets 31/12/06 154,936 63,916 22,657 -18,6564 222,945
€m Ireland Germany Other Consolidation Total
Revenues 2005 463 313 37 2 815
Total Assets 31/12/05 139,830 83,51 17,070 -11,791 228,630
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6. Net interest income

2006 2005
€m €m
Interest income

Loans and advances 5,795 3,561
Qther lending business and money market transactions 654 454
Fixed income securities 2,059 3,530
8,508 7,545

Interest expense
Asset-covered bonds -3.527 -3,193
Other debt securities -472 -447
Bomowings -184 -137
Subordinated debt -109 -110
Other banking transactions -3,791 -3,236
-8,083 -7,123

Included within interest income is € 7 million (2005: € 7 million) with respect to interest income on impaired

loans.

7. Net fee and commission income

2006 2005
€m €m
Fee and commission income

Commission income from liquidity facilities 22 14
Cther fees 18 15
40 29

Fee and commission expense
Fees paid -8 -9
-8 -9
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8. Net trading income

2006 2005

€m €m

Securities and derivatives held for trading 144 -113
Foreign exchange transaction gains less losses -4 -1
140 -114

9. Gains less losses from financial assets

Gains less losses from financial assets reflect income from the sale of non-trading book financial assets and

amounted to € 277 million (2005: € 480 million).

10. Other operating income

2006 2005
€m €m
Other operating income - 7
- 7
Other operating income in 2005 it consists mainly of gains on buy-backs of debt securities issued,
and refunds of property taxes.
11. Operating expenses
2006 2005
€m €m
Staff costs (Note 12} -138 -132
Administrative expenses -78 -72
Depreciation and amortisation {Note 26, Note 27) -9 -9
Other operating expenditure -3 -2
-228 -215

Included in operating expenses are auditors’ remuneration of € 2 million (2005: € 2 million) and operating
lease rentals of € 11 million (2005: € 8 million).




12. Staff costs

2006 2005
€m €m
Wages and salaries -122 -112
Social security costs -6 -7
Pension costs:
- defined contribution plans -4 -4
- defined benefit plans {Note 36) -6 -9
-138 -132
The average number of persons employed by the Group during the year was 580 (2005: 465).
13. Impairment losses on loans and advances
2006 2005
€m €m
Loans and advances to customers {Note 23) - -3
- -3
14, Taxation
2006 2005
€m €m
Current tax -77 -55
Deterred tax (Note 35) -62 -67
-139 -122

Further information about deferred income tax is presented in Note 35.

The tax on the Group's profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the basic tax

rate of the parent as follows:

2006 2005

€m €m

Profit before tax 646 597
Tax calculated at a tax rate of 12%% (2005; 12%%} -81 -75
Effect of different tax rates in Ireland -8 9
Eflect of different tax rates in other countries -50 -55
Oiher - -1
Income tax expense : -139% -122

167




158

15. Result from discontinued operations

2006 2005

€m €m

Cther operating income 34 -
Tetal operating income 34 -
Operating expenses -1 -
Operating profit -7 -
Taxation 26 -
Profit for the year 19 -

During the year the Group received a tax refund and related interest in respect of a property company that

was sold to Aareal Bank AG {Aareal) prior to its demerger in 2002. Under the terms of the demerger

agreement with Aareal part of this refund was passed over to Aareal leaving a net profit after tax of 6 million.

Under the above mentioned demerger agreement the Group made payments to Aareal in previous years in
respect of certain taxation assessments arising from a restructuring prior to the demerger. As aresult of a
High Court (BFH) tax case in Germany Aareal will recover taxes paid in this regard and the Group will recover

payments made to Aareal. The profit after tax arising on this refund is 13.3 million.

The demerger of Aareal was accounted for as a discontinued operation in 2002 and therefore the above

profits have been accounted for on a consistent basis.




16. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to equity holders of the company
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year, excluding the average number
of ordinary shares purchased by the Company and held as treasury shares.

There is ne difference between the basic and diluted earnings per share as the company has no share
options or convertible debt outstanding.

2006 2005
Profit attributable 1o equity holders of the Company (€ mifions) 526 475
Woeighted average number of ordinary shares in issue {milions} 343 342
Basic earnings per share (expressed in € per share) 1.83 1.39
of which continuing operations 1.48 1.39
of which discontinued operations 0.05
Diluted earnings per share (expressed in € per sharg) 1.53 1.39
of which continuing operations 1.48 1.39
of which discontinued operations 0.05 -
17. Cash and balances with central banks
Group Company
2006 2005 2008 2005
€m €m €m €m
Balances with central banks other than mandatory reserve deposits 808 755 804 755
Mandatory reserve depasits with central banks 835 702 895 653
1,743 1,457 1,689 1,408
Mandatory reserve deposits are not available for use in the Group's day to day operations.
18. Treasury bills and other eligible bills
Goup
2006 2005
€m €Em
Treasury bills - 1
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19, Loans and advances to banks

Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
€m €m €m €Em
Public sector loans 23,669 22,166 8,924 5,335
Term deposits 2,641 5,002 1,955 2,874
Reverse repurchase agreements 1,574 4414 1,371 4,403
Cash coflateral 5,938 7,987 3,655 4,264
Other loans and advances BB6 3,301 23,115 22,992
34,708 42,870 45,020 39,868
Of which due from Group companies - 28,582 22,382
20. Trading securities
Group Company
2006 2005 2008 2005
€m €m €m €m
Debt Securities
Government and other public sector securities 1,311 210 747 79
Total trading debt securities 1,31 210 747 79
21. Derivative financial instruments and trading liabilities
Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
€m €m €m €m
Assets
Derivatives 6.880 8,147 6,223 6,006
6,880 8,147 6,223 8,006
Liabilities
Derivatives 11,895 16,458 8,704 10,521
Short sales of securities 588 1,083 560 1,039
12,583 17,541 9,264 11,560




Derivatives are contracts or agreements whose values are determined on the basis of changes in an
underlying, such as interast rates, foreign exchange rates, securities prices, financial and commeodity indices
or other variables. The timing of cash receipts and payments for derivatives is generally determined by
contractual agreement. Derivatives are either standardised contracts traded on exchanges or over-the-
counter (OTC) contracts agreed individually by the parties to the contract. Futures and certain options are
examples of standard exchange-traded derivatives, Forwards, swaps, and other option contracts are
examples of OTC derivatives. OTC derivatives are not fregly tradable. In the normal course of business,
however, they may be terminated or assigned to another counterparty if the current party to the contract
agrees.

Derivatives may be used for trading purposes or for risk management purposes. The Group uses derivative
financial instruments primarily as a means of hedging the risk associated with asset/liability management in
the context of interest bearing transactions. Interest rate derivatives are primarily entered into to hedge the
fair value interest rate risk in fixed-rate assets and liabilities. Derivatives are also entered inio, for the purpose
of hedging foreign currency risks. Foreign exchange risks are primarily hedged by means of suitable fair value
hedges for avaitable for sale securities, loans extended and debt securities in issue. However, some
derivatives used for risk management purposes do not qualify for hedge accounting and are therefore
classified as part of the ‘trading portfolio’ in the Group financial statements.

Derivatives used by the Group include:

s [nterast rate and currency swaps

* |nterest rate futures, FRAs and interest rate options
¢ Forward foreign exchange contracts

¢ Credit default swaps

Interest rate swaps involve the exchange of fixed and variable rate interest payments between two parties at
specified times based on a common nominal amount and maturity date. The nominal amounts are normally
not exchanged.

Cross currency swaps have nominal amounts in two different currencies. The interest is paid in these two
currencies. An exchange of the nominal amount often takes place at the beginning and at the end of the
contract.

Interest rate options are contracts that allow the purchaser to enter into contracts on financial instruments
or to buy or sell an underlying, at a specified price at a specified point of time. The option writer is obligated
to buy, selt or enter into a financial instrument, if the purchaser chooses to exercise the option. Option
contracts purchased or written by the Group include caps and ftoors, which are interest rate hedging
instruments, as the agreed payment covers the difference in interest between the agreed interest rate and
the market rate. Exposure to current and future movements in interest rates and the ability of the
counterparties to meet the terms of the contracts represent the primary risks associated with interest rate
options.
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Futures are standardised exchange-traded contracts to receive or sell a specific financial instrument at a
specific future date and price. FRAs (forward rate agreements) provide for the payment or receipt of the
difference between a specified interast rate and reference rate at a future trade date. Interest rate risks reflect
the material risks associated with such contracts. Where these are OTC transactions, counterparty default
risk also exists.

Forward foreign exchange contracts involve an agreement to exchange two currencies at a specific price
and date agreed in advance. Exposure to changes in foreign currency exchange rates and foreign interest
rates and the counterparty default risk are the primary risks associated with forward foreign exchange
contracts.

Credit default swaps are contracts which transfer credit risk on an underlying reference asset or group of
assets from one party 1o another in exchange for a fee. The material risk from credit default swaps is
exposure to changes in the credit risk of the underlying reference asset and the ability of the counterparties
to meet the terms of the contracts.

The notional amounts of certain types of financial instruments provide a basis for comparison with
instruments recognised on the balance sheet but do not necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash
flows involved or the current fair value of the instruments and, therefore, do not indicate the Group's
exposure to credit or price risks. The derivative instruments become favourable (assets) or unfavourable
(liabiiities) as a result of fluctuations in market factors such as interest rates or foreign exchange rates relative
to their terms. The aggregate contractual or notional amount of derivative financial instruments on hand, the
extent to which instruments are favourable or unfavourable, and thus the aggregate fair values of derivative
financial assets and liabilities, can fluctuate significantly from time to time. The fair values of derivative
instruments held are st out below.




As at 31 December 2006 Group Company
Fair values Fair vafuas
Contract/ Contract/

notional notional

amount Assets  Liabilities amount Assets Liabilities
1) Derivatives held for trading
Interest rate and currency swaps 97,149 2,908 2,847 219,893 4,773 4,756
Interest rate futures 6,286 1 5 6,286 1 5
Interest rate cptions purchased 4,645 23 3 4,601 22 3
Interest rate options written 5,777 1 a2 5,722 1 32
Qther interast rate derivative contracts 3.043 18 3 2,822 18 3
Foreign exchange contracts 13,457 66 196 11,079 56 179
Crediit derivatives 14513 57 10 15,206 17 3

144,870 3,072 3,096 265,609 4,888 4,981
2) Derivatives held for hedging
a) Derivatives designated as fair value hedges

Interest rate and currency swaps 217,566 3,806 8,468 61,123 1,333 3,298
b} Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges
Interest rate and currency swaps 1,936 2 431 1,908 2 425

Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held for hedging 219,502 3,808 8,899 63,029 1,335 3,723
Total recognised derivative assets/{iiabilities) 364,372 6,880 11,995 328,638 6,223 8,704
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As at 3t December 2005 Group Company
Fair values Fair values
Contract/ Contract/
notional notional
amount Assets Liabilities amount Assets  Liabilities
1) Derivatives held for trading
Interest rate and currency swaps 52,145 2,013 2,239 182,633 2,251 2,281
Interest rate futures 3,666 1 - 3,666 1 -
Interest rate options purchased 14,409 - 18 14,350 - 18
Interest rate options written 2,668 - 1 2,600 - 1
Other interest rate derivative contracis 1,098 10 1 1,098 10 1
Foreign exchange contracts 11,408 80 59 8,329 64 a1
Credit derivatives 10,285 44 11 10,648 2
95,679 2,148 2,339 223,324 2,328 2,352
2) Derivatives held for hedging
a) Derivatives designated as fair value hedges
interest rate and currency swaps 216,944 5,999 13,885 58,275 3,678 7,952
b) Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges
Interest rate and currency swaps 2,287 - 234 1,850 217
Total derivative assets liabilities held for hedging 219,231 5,999 14,119 60,125 3,678 8,169
Total recognised derivative assets liabilities 314,910 8,147 16,458 283,449 6,006 10,521
22. Other financial assets at fair value through profit or {oss
Group Company
20086 2005 2006 2005
€m €m €m €m
Loans and advances 1,846 561 1,846 561
Debt securities 229 25 -
2,075 586 1,846 561

The loans and advances consist of a portfolio of leans that have been designated as at fair value through
profit and loss to reduce the measurement inconsistency with the relevant hedging derivative.

The portfolio of debt securities have been designated at fair value through profit and loss as the performance

is managed on a fair value basis.




23. Loans and advances to customers

Group Company

2006 2005 2006 2005

€m €m €m €m

Public sector and infrastructure loans 123,417 113,684 39,028 34,509

Term deposits 1 56 1 255

Reverse repurchase agreements 6 289 - 289

Property loans 1,846 2,434 - -

125,270 116,463 39,029 35,053

Allowances for losses on loans and advances -23 -26 -3 -3

125,247 116,437 39,026 35,050

Of which due from Group companies - - - -

Allowance for losses on loans and advances
Movement in allowance for losses on loans and advances:
Group Company

2006 2005 2006 2005

€m €m €m €m

Balance at 1 January -26 -32 -3 -

Impaiment losses (Note 13) - -3 - -3

Loan transfers 3 9 - -

Total -23 -26 -3 -3

The total allowance for losses on Ioans and advances is made up as follows:

Group Company
20086 2005 2006 2005
€m €em €m €m
Public sector and infrastructure loans 3 3 3 3
Property loans 20 23 - -
23 26 3 3

Interest accrued on impaired loans at 31st December 2006 amounted to nil (2005: nil}.
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24. Investment securities

Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
€m €m €Em €m
Securities available-for-sale
Debt securities — at fair value :
- listed 41,276 54,973 27,047 33.009
- unlisted 9,536 3,708 5,407 1,689
Equity securities — at fair value:
- listed - - -
- unlisted 21 95 21 20
Total securities available-for-sale
50,833 58,776 32,475 34,718
Net gains on disposal of investment securities for the year amounted to € 213 million (2005: € 152 million).
The movement in investment securities may be summarised as follows:
Group Group Company Company
Available- Available- Available- Available-
for-sale for-sale for-sale for-sale
€ m 2006 €m 2005 € m 2006 €m 2005
At 1 January 58,776 46,212 34,718 27,929
Exchange differences -1,250 523 -930 353
Additions 13,767 32,495 12,098 22,798
Disposals (sale and redemption) -18,989 -22,657 -14,445 -16,209
Gains/(losses) from changes in fair value -1,471 2,203 1,034 -153
At 31 December 50,833 58,776 32,475 34,718




The investment securities batance at 31 December is analysed by counterparty risk below:

Group
2006 €m 2005€m
AFS-debt  AFS-equity Total AFS AFS-debt  AFS-equity Total AFS
securities securities securities securities securities securities
Government bonds 45,820 45,820 54,226 - 54,226
Local government bonds 3,795 - 3,795 3,332 - 3,332
Other bonds and notes 1,198 20 1,218 1,123 95 1,218
Total 50,813 20 50,833 58,681 95 58,776
Company
2006 € m 2005€m

AFS-debt  AFS-equity Total AFS AFS-debt  AFS-equity Total AFS
securities securities securities securities securities securities
Government bonds 30.352 - 30,352 33,204 - 33,204
Local government bonds 1,788 - 1,788 1,127 - 1,127
Other bonds and notes 315 20 335 367 20 387
Total 32,455 20 32,475 34,698 20 34,718

25. Shares in Group undertakings

Company

2006 2005
€m €m
At 1 January 2,305 2,437
Capital repayments - -176
impaiment of investment -27 -100
Net increase in investments 144
At 31 December 2,278 2,305

The impairment relates to the writedown of the investment in a subsidiary to its net asset value.
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Shares in Group undertakings are included in the financial statements on a historical cost basis.
The Group undertakings at 31 December 2006 were:

Name

DEPFA Bank Europe pic

DEPFA Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG

DEPFA Investment Bank Ltd

DEPFA ACS BANK

DEPFA UK Ltd
DEPFA Finance N.V.

DEPFA Bank plc Deferred Stock Trust

DEPFA Asset Management Romania S.A.

DEPFA Royally Management Ltd
DEPFA international Holdings GrbH i.L

DEPFA Erste GmbH

Nebra Hold One Limited (formerty DEPFA

Assurance Limited)
DEPFA Hold Six

DEPFA Ireland Holdings Ltd

DEPFA Funding Il LP
DEPFA Zweite GrmbH i.L

DEPFA Hold One Ltd
DEPFA Hold Two Ltd
DEPFA Hold Three Lid
DEPFA Hold Four Ltd
DEPFA Holdings B.Y

DEPFA Funding Il LP

DBE Property Holdings Ltd

DEPFA Bank Representagoes Lid

DEPFA Performance Converging Markets

Lid

The india Debt Opportunities Fund Ltd

DEPFA Securities LLC

Principal Activity

Public finance banking
Public finance banking

Advisory services and
placernent of securities

Issuance and ongoing
administration of asset
covered securities

Dormant
Financial services

Purchase of shares for
Incentive Compensation
Programme

Asset management

Dormant
Halding company

Dormnant
Domant

Hotding Company
Holding Company

Special purpose vehicle
for Tier | capital raising

Dormant

Holding company
Halding company
Holding company
Halding company
Holding company

Special purpose vehicle
for Tier 1 capital raising

Holding of office equipment

Representative Office

function of DEPFA Bank pic

in Brazil

Special purpose vehicle in
retation to asset
managernent activities
Investing in public sector
securities in India
Securities Brokerage

Country of
Incorporation

Iretand
Germany

Cyprus
Iretand

UK
Netherlands

Jorsay

Romania

Ireland
Germany

Germany
Irgland

Ireland
Irsland
UK

Germany

Irsland
Irgland
Ireland
Ireland
Netherdands

UK

Ireland
Brazil

Cayman

Mauritius

Usa

Registered Office Share in

Capital
1 Commoens Street, Dubiin 1, ireland 100%
Ludwig-Erhard-Str. 14, 5760 Eschborn, 100%

Germany

10 Diomidous Street, 2024 Nicosia, Cyprus  100%
1 Commens Street, Dublin 1, treland 100%
105 Wigmoare Street London W1U 1QY, UK 100%
Herengracht 551, 1017 BW Amsterdam, 100%
Netherlands

1 Commans Street, Dublin 1, Ireland -
155 Calea Victoniei Street, Buiiding D1, 87.8%
Bucharast, Romania

1 Commons Street, Dublin 1, Ireland 100%
Ludwig-Erhard-Str. 14, 85760 Eschbiorn, 100%
Germany

Ludwig-Erhard-Str. 14, 65760 Eschborn, 100%
Germany

3 Harbourmaster Place, Dublin 1, Ireland 100%
1 Commons Street, Dublin 1, Ireland 100%
1 Commaons Street, Dublin 1, Ireland 100%
105 Wigmore Street London W1U 1QY, UK 100%
Ludwig-Erhard-Sir. 14, 65760 Eschbom, 100%
Germany

1 Commons Sirest, Dublin 1, Ireland 100%
1 Commons Street, Dubiin 1, Iretand 100%
1 Commons Street, Dublin 1, Ireland 100%
1 Commons Street, Dublin 1, Ireland 100%
Herengracht 551, 1017 BW Amsterdam, 100%
The Netherlands

1085 Wigmore Street London W1L 1QY, UK 100%
1 Commons Street, Dublin 1, Ireland -
Av. Brig. Faria Lima, 201 13" Floor - 100%
Suite 131, 05426-100 Sao Paulo, SP, Brazil

Walker House, Mary Street, PB Box 908 GT, 100%

George Town Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands

¢/o international Fund Services Limited, IFS  100%
Court, Twenty Eight, Cybercity, Ebene, Mauritius
823, Fifth Avenwue, 22rd floor, New York, 100%
NY 10022, USA




26. Intangible assets

Group Company
Other Cther
intangible intangible
Goodwill assets Total Goodwill assets Total
€m €m €m €m €m €m
Cost
At 1 January 2005 a3 - a3 7 -
Additions 18 4 22 - 3
Disposals - - - - - -
At 31 December 2005 51 4 55 7 3 10
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2005 - - - - - -
Bisposals - - - - -
Amortisation charge for year - - - - -
At 31 December 2005 - - - - - -
Net book value
At 31 December 2005 51 4 55 7 3 10
Cost
At 1 January 2006 51 4 55 7 3 10
Additions - 1 1 - - -
Disposals - -3 - -1
At 31 December 2006 51 2 53 7 2 g
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2006 - - - - - -
Disposals - - -
Depreciation Charge for year - - - -
At 31 December 2006 - - - - - -
Net book value
At 31 December 2006 51 2 53 7 2 9

Other intangible assets include computer software.
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27. Property, plant and equipment

Group Company
Land and Fixtures Land and Fixtures
property and fittings Total property and fittings Total
€m €m €m €m €m €m
Cost
At 1 January 2005 2 36 38 - 23 23
Additions - 8 8 - 6 6
Disposals - -1 - -1
At 31 December 2005 2 43 45 - 28 28
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2005 - 12 12 - 4 4
Disposals - - - -
Charge for year - 9 9 - 6
At 31 December 2005 - 21 21 - 10 10
Net book value
At 31 December 2005 2 22 24 - 18 18
Cost
At 1 January 2006 2 43 45 - 28 28
Additions 13 13 - 4 4
Disposals - -6 -6 - -2 -2
At 31 December 2006 2 50 52 - 30 30
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2006 - 4 4 - 10 10
Disposals - -1
Charge for year - 5 5
At 31 December 2006 - 26 26 - 14 14
Net book value
At 31 Decemnber 2006 2 24 26 - 16 16




28. Other assets

Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
€m €m €m €m
Accounts receivable and prepayments 2 4 20 33
Accrued incoms 1 2 1 -
Other 27 o 39 15
30 15 60 48
Of which due from Group Companies 20 32
29. Deposits from banks
Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
€m €m €m €m
Term deposits 13,782 16,664 10,859 10,685
Call deposits 1,757 2,027 1,582 1,972
Repurchase agreements 42,477 43,188 39,345 36,073
Cther liabilities 5,183 5,144 19,251 12,136
63,199 67,023 71,037 60,846
Of which due to Group Companies 15,501 8,620
30. Other deposits
Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
€m €Em €m €m
Money-market securities 31,118 29,779 31,118 29,739
31,118 29,779 31,118 29,739

Money market securities consist primarity of commercial paper issues and certificates of deposits.
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31. Due to customers

Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
€m €m €m €Em
Term deposits 4,728 3,753 4,421 3.753
Call deposits 689 120 689 120
Repurchase agreements B5 3,213 85 3,213
Other liabilities 2,402 586 2,132 211
7,904 7,672 7,327 7,297
Of which due to Group Companies - -
32. Debt securities in issue
Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
€m €m €m €m
Public sector covered bonds 93,440 91,756 -
Other covered bonds 392 515 -
Other debit securities in issue 9,025 9,341 6,976 7,238
102,857 101,612 6,976 7,238
33. Other borrowed funds
Greup Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
€m €m €m €m
Subordinated dett 1,186 1.422 a7 1,065
Profit participation certificates 947 956 -
2,133 2,378 a7 1,065
Of which due to Group Companies 471 566

172




The subordinated debt and profit participation certificates are analysed by nominal, maturity and interest rate

below:
Group
Interest rate % 2008 2005
Nominal Nominal
€m €m
Subordinated notes
DEPFA Bank plc 15/12/15 Euribor + 0.2% 500 500
DEPFA Funding Trust, perpetual note Euribor + 1.6% - 220
DEPFA Funding Il LP, perpetual note 8.5% 400 400
DEPFA Funding ill LR, perpetual note 7% until 2008, thereafter 300 300
CMS10yr+0.1%
1,200 1,420
Profit participation certificates
1886 DEPFA Deutsche Plandbriefbank AG 31/12/10 7.5% 102 102
1994 DEPFA Deutsche Ptandbriefbank AG 31/12/08 6.5% 256 256
1996 DEPFA Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG 31/12/11 7.65% 383 383
2000 DEPFA Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG 31/12/09 7.44-7 56% 45 102
2000 DEPFA Deutsche Piandbriefbank AG 31/12/14 7.75-7.82% 77 20
863 863
2,063 2,283

The Group has not had any defaults of principal, interest or redemption amounts during the period on its

borrowed funds (2005: nil).
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34. Other liabilities

Group Company

2006 2005 2006 2005

€m €m €m €m

Creditors 64 47 38 22
Accruals 15 17 3 1
Other 21 33 10 29
100 97 51 52

Of which due to Group Companies 3 g

35. Deferred income tax

Deferred income taxes are calculated on all temporary differences under the liability method using the

effective tax rate in the relevant jurisdiction.

Deferred tax balances consist of the following:

Group Company
2006 2005 2008 2005
€m €m €m €m
Defarred tax assets 39 52 21 1
Deferred tax liabilities -141 -110 -19 -4
Net deferred tax balance -102 -58 2 7
The movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows:
Group Company
2006 2005 2008 2005
€m €m €em €m
At 1 January -58 9 7 -1
Income staternent charge -62 -67 -7 3
Fair value measurament on AFS securities 18 -1 2
Fair value measursment on cash-flow hedges 1 - -
At 31 December =102 -58 2 7
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Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following items:

Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
€m €m €m €m
Fair value hedges -3 -8 -
Derivatives valuation -85 -55 -3
Unrealised gainsfosses on AFS securities -20 -38 4 2
Pensions <] B -
Cash-flow hedges -1 -1 -
Tax losses camied forward 1 4 - 3
Future tax receivable - 20 -
Other temperary differences 10 14 1
-102 -58 2
The deferred tax charge in the income statement comprises the following temporary differences:
Group
2006 2005
€m €m
Fair value hedges 8 -10
Derivatives -43 -65
Cash-flow hedges -
Pensions -1 1
Tax loss carry forwards -3 2
QOther temporary differences -23 -5
-62 -67

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards only to the extent that realisation of

the related tax benefit is probable.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes related to the same fiscal

authority.

Deferred income tax liabilities have not been established for the withholding tax and other taxes that would
be payable on the unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries, as such amounts are permanently reinvested;

unremitted earnings totalled € 576 million at 31 December 2006 (2005: € 539 million).
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36. Retirement benefit obligations

Amounts recognised in the balance sheet:

Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
€m €Em €m €m
Pension schemes - defined benefit 64 63 3 5
64 63 3 5
The Group operates a number of defined benefit schemas which are unfunded. The schemes are valued by
independent actuaries every year using the projected unit credit method. The latest actuarial valuation was
carried out as at 31 December 2006. The pension payments are based on a percentage of pensionable
salary and years service.
The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are determined as follows:
Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
€m €Em €m €m
Present value of unfunded cbligations 64 83 3 5
Liability in the balance sheet 64 63 3 5
The amounts recognised in the income statement are as follows:
Group
2006 2005
€m €m
Current service cost -1
Interest cost -2 -3
Net actuarial losses recognised in year -3 -6
Total, included in staff costs (Note 12) -6 -9
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Movement in the liability recognised in the balance sheet:

Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
€m €m €m €m
At 1 January 63 58 E] 3
Total expense 6 9 1 2
Transfer to Group company - -3 -
Contributions paid -5 -4 - -
At 31 December 64 63 3 5
The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows:
Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
€m €Em €m €m
Ciscount rate 4.25% 3.75% 4.50% 4.25%
Future salary increases 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%
Inflation rate 1.75% 1.75% 1.75% 1.756%
An actuarial valuation of the scheme is undertaken annually. Mortality rates are calculated based on the
Heubeck tables of 2005.
37. Contingent liabilities and commitments
{a) Contingent liabilities
Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
€m €m €m €m
Contingent liabilities & indemnity agreements 23 29 - -
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{b) Loan commitments

Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
€m €m €m €m
lrrevocable undrawn loan commitments 8,833 9,083 . 7.562 7,534
Revecable undrawn loan commitments 16,508 12,380 15,508 12,390
Total loan commitments 24,341 21,473 23,070 19,924
(c) Assets pledged
Pledged assets for which the counterparty has the right to sell or re-pledge the assets are disclosed in
note 38.
In addition, at the balance sheet date, restricted assets consisting of investment securities and loans in the
amount of € 98 hillion (2005: € 94 billion) were entered on a trustee register as ¢ollateral for covered bonds.
The Group has accepted collateral that it is permitted to sell or repledge in connection with reverse
repurchase transactions and as collaterat for swap agreements. The fair value of the collateral accepted
is € 1,408 million (2005: € 4,846 million).
(d) Operating lease commitments
Where a Group company is the lessee, the future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable building
operating leases are as follows:
Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
€m €m €Em £m
No later than 1 year 10 8 8 5
Later than 1 year and no iater than 5 years 29 22 24 21
Later than 5 years 56 43 56 43
95 73 88 69




38. Pledged assets

Group

2008 €m 2005 €m
Asset Related Liability Asset Related Liability
Loans and advances to banks 5,349 4979 3,313 3,256
Leoans and advances to customers 10,000 9,778 10,132 9,596
Investment securities 30,649 28,673 34,668 31,157
Total 45,998 43,330 48,113 44,009

Company

2006 € m 2005 €m
Asset Related Liability Asset Related Liability
Loans and advances to banks 4,427 4111 2,512 2,463
Loans and advances to customers 9,537 9,343 10,251 9,764
Investment securities 28,960 26,868 28,224 25,323
Total 42924 40,322 40,987 37,550

Pledged assets consist of assets pledged under repurchase agreements and as collateral for swap
agreements.

39. Own shares and Incentive Compensation Programme

In 2002, the Group established an Incentive Compensation Programme (the *Scheme") under which the
Compensation Committee is entitled to pay an annual cash bonus and to make awards of restricted shares
to employees and directors of the Group.

In conjunction with the formation of the Scheme, the Group established a Trust that is used to purchase
shares of DEPFA BANK plc with funds provided by the Group. Shares purchased will be held for the benefit
of employees until the satisfaction of the associated vesting requirements. On 31 December 2006 the Trust
held 8,736,288 shares (2005: 11,485,170 shares) on behalf of the Group employees and directors for stock
awards representing 2.5% (2005: 3.3%) of the issued share capital. These shares had a fair value of € 118
million at 31 December 2006 (2005: € 143 million).

The Scheme authorises the granting of restricted shares to be held by tha Trust, until vesting conditions
specified by the Group are satisfied. The restricted shares carry no voting rights, but are entitled to receive
dividends as and when declared, Restricted shares are awarded for no consideration, and are subject only
to continued employment over the three-year vesting period. Dividends declared during the vesting period
will be used to purchase additional shares in DEPFA BANK plc¢, which will vest three years from the date of
the award.
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Details of the share awards under the compensation scheme are as follows:

No of shares Weighted average grant
Award date awarded date fair value € m
Feb 2003 4,521,000 18
Jan 2004 3,280,100 38
Feb 2005 2,373,850 29
Feb 2006 1,979,300 26
Feb 2007 2,744,388 38
Total 14,898,638 149
Compensation
cost recognised
Year ended €m
2003 10
2004 27
2005 32
2006 31
Total 100

The movement on own shares held in the Trust during the year is as follows:

No of Shares Cost of Shares
€m
Own shares held 1 January 2006 11,485,170 103
Purchased in year 675,726 9
Vested in year -3,424 608 -18
QOwn shares held 31 December 2006 8,736,288 94

The fair value of employee services received is measured by reference to the fair value of the shares awarded
at the award date.




40. Share capital and share premium

Group and Company
Number of Ordinary Share
shares Shares € m Premiucm (€ m) Total € m
At 31 December 2005 353,019,720 106 1,142 1,248
At 31 December 2006 353,019,720 106 1,142 1,248

The total authorised number of ordinary shares at year end was 433,333,340 (2005: 433,333,340} with a par
value of € 0.30 per share (2005: €0.30 per share). Alt issued shares are fully paid.

The total authorised number of non-cumulative redeemabte preference shares at year end was 10,000,000
(2005 10,000,000) with a par value of € 0.01 per share (2005: € 0.01 per share). No non-cumulative

redeemable preference shares have been issued to date.

41. Capital reserve

Company

2006 2005

€m €m

At January 1 903 203

At December 31 903 903
The capital reserve is non-distributable.

42, Retained earnings
Group Company

2006 2005 2006 2005

€m €m €m €m

At January 1 940 538 97 26

Net profit for year 526 475 400 144

Dividends -86 -58 -86 -58

Purchase of shares for compensation scheme -9 -47 -9 -47

Share compensation scheme 31 32 31 32

At December 31 1,402 940 433 97

The Gompany has availed of the exemption in Regulation 5 of the European Communities (Credit Institution:
acceunts) Regulations 1892, Accordingly, the income statement of the Company is not shown.
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43. Other reserves

Group Company
2008 2005 2006 2005
€m €m €m €m
Unrealised gains/losses from cashflow hedges 2 2 - -
Unrealised gains/osses from avallabla for sale investment securities 125 114 58 26
Total other reserves at 31 December 127 116 58 26
Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
€m €m €m €m
Unrealised gains/losses from cashflow hedges
At January 1 2 3 - -
Net gainf{loss) from changes in fair value, net of tax -208 202 -162 153
Net (gain)/loss transferred to net profit, net of tax 206 -203 162 -153
At Dacember 31 2 2 - -
Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
€m €m €m €m
Unrealised gains/losses from available for sale investment
securities
At January 1 114 86 26 19
Net gain/{loss) from changes in fair value, net of tax 173 167 22 121
Net (gainsiloss transferred 1o net profit, net of tax -162 -139 -80 -114
At December 31 125 114 58 26




}

44, Dividends per share

Final dividends are not accounted for until they have been ratified at the Annual General Meeting.

At the Annual General Meeting on 20 April 2007, a dividend in respect of 2006 of € 0.40 per share (2005:
actual dividend € 0.25 per share) will be proposed. The financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2006 do not reflect this resolution, which will be accounted for in shareholders’ equity as an appropriation of

retained profits in the year ending 31 December 2007.

45, Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprises the following balances

with less than three months' maturity from the date of acquisition.

Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
€m €m €m €m
Cash and balances with central banks 808 755 804 755
Treasury bills and other eligibie bills - 1 -
Loans and advances to banks 4,140 11,283 3.100 6.088
4,948 12,049 3,904 6,843
46. Related-party transactions
The shares of DEPFA BANK plc are traded on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange.
(A} Group
Transactions with companies in which a participating interest is held amount to:
Group 2006 2005
€m €m
Investment securities - available for sale 20 20

The above investment is in funds managed by Arsago ACM GmbH, in which the Group has a 5 %

shareholding.
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Key management compensation 2006 2005
€ €
Short-term benefits 10,118,424 13,018,603
Post employment benefits 2,001,923 1,362,078
Share awards 16,125,972 19,678,354
28,246,319 34,059,035

Included above is Direclors’ compensation as follows:
Directors’' compensation 2006 2005
€ €
Directors’ fees 964,934 763,089
Gther remuneration 15,947,766 26,110,617
16,912,700 26,873,706

Key management include the Board of Directors and Executive Committee members.

Loans to directors of DEPFA BANK plc

There were no 1oans to members of the Board at 31 December 2006 {2005: € nil)

DEPFA BANK plc, as the parent company of the Group, has issued letters of comfort to certain of its
subsidiaries. These letters of comfort set out that the parent will ensure that DEPFA ACS BANK, Dublin,
DEPFA Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG, Frankfurt, DEPFA Bank Europe plc, Dublin, DEPFA Investment Bank

Ltd, Nicosia, DEPFA Funding Il LF, London and DEPFA Funding it LP, London are able to fulfil their

contractual obligations.




(B) Company
Balances due to and from Group companies are disclosed in the notes to the balance sheet. Transactions
with Group companies consisted of:

Company

2006 2005

€m €m

Interest income 795 554
Interest expense -312 -333
Net trading result -11 8
Gains less losses from financial assets 1 -5
Other operating income 22 23
Other operating expenditure -6 -5

These amounts arise on intercompany borrowings and derivatives, lending and transfers of assets between
DEPFA BANK plc and other Group entities as well as recharges for certain services provided.

47. Events after the balance sheet date

On 6 March 2007, the Group signed an agreement under which the Group will acquire the US municipal
capital markets business of First Albany Capital Inc. The Group intends to operate this business through

a licensed US broker-dealer, subject to US Regulatory approval. The closing of the transaction is subject to
the Group obtaining a US broker-dealer license, regulatory approvals and other customary conditions.

The transaction is expected 1o close in the third quater of 2007 pending such approvals.

There have been no other significant events after the balance sheet date which require disclosure.

48. Approval of financial statements

The Financial Statements were approved by the Directors on 22 March 2007,
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Financial Calendar 2007

12 February Publication ¢of prebminary Annual 2006 Results

20 April Annual General Meeting, Dublin
02 May Publication of ist Quarter Results
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